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GLOSSARY

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalised terms M X E R A ATIEIN - RBRIER - MHBEHE -  TFEHE - 5
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, M EwEDIT - EFERE  CEEAHRE - &BE
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and EREARHRE EERSRTEEZEEFHE  MHEHE
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, NYZEAESFAREEEGUTIHNSERE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial

Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2022 AGM”

[—TE_—FRFAFKRE]

“AGM(s)’
[RERBEF R

“ASP”
[FHEE]

“Audit Committee”
[E%EEg]

“Board”
[EEg]

“business day”

[&%A]

“Bye-Laws”
(4B A

“Chairman” or “Mr. Wong”
[EfE s EEE]

“Chief Executive Officer”

[BAFENTE]

“close associate(s)”
[EZHEA

“CMA”
[CMA]

“CMC”
ME& ~ EEMEZEH

“CNAS”
[CNAS]

“Company” or “Sino Harbour”

RAVNCINEADE ¥ 3230 d

“Company Secretary”
[RaElMmE]

AGM to be held on Friday, 30 September 2022
BRZZBZZFAA=THERR)BTHNRRBAFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARRBRRBFERE

average selling price

FHHEER

audit committee of the Board
EERERZEEY

board of Directors
=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BEAEWRAFMETHRE

bye-laws of the Company
ZAYNSIFE]

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the ED, chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and general manager of the Company

EMKRELE  BRARBATES  BEFEEEFE  BFRTEREKRE

the chief executive officer of the Company
RRAREREHITE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB FWARAMETERE

China Metrology Accreditation
h B 5t B R

an important section in drug development process

EYpmBERETN—EEEID

China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
FRSETERRRAIEZER

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)
EBEREEERAR  —HRABREIMKIZBRAR - HE &
TR BRI PTEIR B R A2 5 (IRIH AR - 1663)

company secretary of the Company

ARBZRAIME
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“Consolidated Financial Statements”

[#R & 5K

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
e

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ E/R~FA

“COVID-19”
[ 3 7 i ¢ )

“Deputy Chairman”
EIES

“Director(s)”

S

“ESG Report”
[ESG#RE |

“Executive Director(s)”

[BTTESE]

“Extra Good”
[Extra Good

“Fenghuang Jincheng’

[BlE &3

“Final Dividend”

[REAEE

“FVOCI”

AR ERE 2RSSR ]
“FY2021”

[T =——8F]

“FY2022” or “Year’
R _HFIRIAFE]

“Ganghua Dentistry”

“GFA”
[2sEmE)

“Group”
[REE

GLOSSARY

audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

AEBARFENREZRE P BRER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EWARRIATE T HRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

LR RIS+ PO AT Lz R EE R ST R

novel coronavirus disease 2019
2019% BV AR R BB A

deputy chairman of the Board
EEgRlER

director(s) of the Company

ARAES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B HEREARE

executive Director(s)

HITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

Leiping City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. ($4F BB & 5
F AR A A)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect subsidiary of the Company
LTTEBSNELBRAT - —FARNFEEMRLZERAR - B
VNN i3l PENG]

payment of a final dividend for FY2022
T CHFEIRNRERE

fair value through other comprehensive income

BonEREMEEKETIR

year ended 31 March 2021
HE-ZT-_—F=-A=+—HILFE

year ended 31 March 2022
BHE_ZE-__F=-A=+—HILFE

Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry Hospital Company Limited GE45/5 %
M e 8 ft A R A A), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect subsidiary of the Company

A EORERERAE - —EARFPRFMEKLZERAR - BX
nalz EER B AR

gross floor area

BEREE

Company and its subsidiaries

ARRREKME QR

EBEREBMARAT  2021/22 £ 3



GLOSSARY

“Hangzhou Ganglian”
[0 A B

“HK$”

[T

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“Huzhou Runhe”

AN B0

“Independent Auditor’
[ Y8 37 4% B |

“INED(s)”
(B IENTESE]

“JX Asia City”
(VL 78 e M 3
“Listing Rules”
[ ErAR ANl
“Model Code”
M= Al

“Ms. Chan”
(PR -]

“NED”
[BEITEE]

“Nomination Committee”

EBZEE]

“Pan Hong Holdings”

DRBTER

“PRC” or “China”

[ B

Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Company Limited ({1 /BH# & (AR
A \]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNBEEZEER AT - —FARPBEGEMKZ2EBRAF - BERQF]
ZEEZENRB AR

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BEEERE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBFRITTHE

Huzhou Pan Hong Runhe Property Development Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Pan Hong Holdings

MIANAEENEHERZEERAT - —ARPEFMXN I 2ERA
Al ANABERNEEZEEZENE QTR

independent auditor of the Company

KRR AZEED

independent non-executive Director(s)
BYENITES

Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (T 7828 M = b &=
B2 AR A 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
IASMEEEREERAR - —MRPBEGZMKIZERAR -
RARNANEEEENEAQ R

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PR £ AR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
ETARAIR SR TS 2 EBITAZESETIESFRX S HELEFE

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the wife of Mr. WONG
Rimiet » RELEZE

non-executive Director

FHITES

nomination committee of the Board
ExgR%EETE

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability whose issued shares are listed on the main board of
the SGX-ST

NABEZEREBERAR  REREIMRINERAA - ABETR
RSP EIR B

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Taiwan

REARKNE  iAFRHE - TREEE  RFIFITHRERAS

=
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“Register of Members”

[ A% 3R & we

“Remuneration Committee”

ET k-

“RMB”
[ARE]

“SFO”
[E %5 KR RS

“SGD”
[N ]

“SGX-ST”
[T AP

“Share(s)”
A&7 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
&

“SHCM”

EEmEE]

“Special Dividend”

[ RIBLE

nSq.m.n

1K)

“Stock Exchange”
(B 22 PR

“subsidiary(ies)”

(Riop==pNl

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[EZ2ARE]

“Us§’
EZd

“Zhejiang IPS”

DA 3281

wg
FAEARER

GLOSSARY

register of members of the Company

RRRRRE DM

remuneration committee of the Board

ExeyMERES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - REEEEH

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
BH KRB GO(BEAEEFFEETE)

Singapore dollar(s), the lawful currency of the Republic of Singapore
FONTT - F R HMBEDEE B

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

IR EZZ 5 AR QR

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
RARRAREAR0.01B T2 EBR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SRESEEUN

Hangzhou Sino Harbour Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (fi/1;& %
EEER AR AT, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNEEBEERBRAR - —ARPEIMAZZERLAGF - BAE
RAMZEWE A

payment of a special dividend for FY2022
T HFIRMERIRE

square metre(s)

FhK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERXGMARAQT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AA LR T RHE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB AR T HRE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of United States of America
£ ENRERBEEAEES

Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited (#7138l
@RI AR A F)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
ANTIEBEERMBEBRAR - —HRPREEMARLZBRAGE - AR
NAWNEEZEEEZ BB AR

per cent. or percentage
Aot

EBEREBMARAT  2021/22 £ 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION
DEEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. YUE Sau Lan

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. YUE Sau Lan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lam Ping
Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

E=E
BTES:
SEMIKSTE (X/E - BIEHTTE RBAETE)

RSt (B2 E)
Pt b intas
mEZL

FHTES:
BRf2E 4

BYFHTES:
fEm

BT TxE
ERERLE

DREAME
REMLL

REAKR
FEmRE
REML L

EREES
mRRESTE (E/E)
fEM

BT Tx4E

FMESS
FREM S (EE)
BT Txr4E
=ML E
SEMIK SR
vl

REEES
BRI L (EE)
BT TxRE
BMERE

Pt =pintas
mEZL
PREEAESTAE
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SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 15668 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

Bfr £
BEABMAERZAIBRAREIR
&1 5% © 01663

AR 484
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BBRPEETEE £
Y

IPEEmAa™
ALAVEER /D& AL K 38 156857
e A AT

EB S EP 025268
ERTEEEMY

B

JUBEALR

558 E 78 37-395%
FARIESESs I
BEE1215%

BEEE ¢ (852) 2363 1300
25 : (852) 2764 2160

A EE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FERNBFELE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

RIODBFETDE

EERELSSTARAT
E84L A
ERIE1485:211#22103BE

B BED

BRI EEREMETMERAT]
EES -]
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
LR EES

(RMB’000)
(AREFor)

1,738,833

412,826 448,420 426,884

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  2021/22
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (KEH) (KE5))

Revenue
WA
(RMB’000)
(AR¥Fr)
1,602,106 1,602,182 1,619,349 1,656,415
T T
2017/18  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21
Net Assets
FEE
(RMB’000)
(AREFT)

222147 215320 216,274

92,212 94,195

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Cash and Cash Equivalents

RERBRESEY

(RMB’000)
(AREFT)

259,119

56,958 57,544

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21  2021/22

Profit Attributable to Owners of
the Company
ARAREE AEMEEF

2,014,076

2021/22

61.7%

59.9%

2017/18  2018/19  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Gearing Ratio:

Total Borrowings Less
Related Deposit Collateral/Total Equity
EAHEAMELE
BEE
WA R F R R AR A

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

In 2021, the central government of the PRC tightened its
control over real estate and implemented strict control
policies, such as “the three red lines”, “each city its own
policies” and “housing is for living in, not for speculation”. As
a result, the Group had to be more prudent in its financial
management and bided its time in the face of uncertainties.
Since the beginning of 2022, the real estate market has
begun to stabilize. It is expected to recover at a faster
pace in the second half of 2022, thereby boosting investor
sentiment significantly. Real estate transactions in third- and
fourth-tier cities are expected to remain on the same level
year-on-year, assuming that these cities will not be hit by a
new wave of pandemic.

BUSINESS REVIEW

To ensure diversified development of the Group and
enhance its competitiveness, we will continue to innovate
and actively expand our property operation services,
pharmaceutical R&D and other medical-related businesses.

The reporting period saw significant development of the
Group’s pharmaceutical “big health” segment. For its
pharmaceutical research and development as well as
services, the Group attaches great importance to the
upgrading of its hardware and software. Zhejiang IPS
has completed the relocation of its entire laboratory to
Hangzhou Pharmaceutical Port Town. With a research site
measuring nearly 3,500 square meters and outfitted with
state-of-the-art equipment, Zhejiang IPS has attracted
a lot of talent and set up a first-class research team.
Meanwhile, in terms of qualification certification, Zhejiang
IPS has passed the laboratory onsite change review and
regular supervision and inspection of the CNAS, as well
as the application review for the change of its CMA testing
and inspection institution qualification certificate, which
demonstrate the high standard of operation maintained
by the laboratory of Zhejiang IPS. The Group has already
selected a segment with a global market amounting to
RMB40 billion. It has also carried out the research and
development of a number of high-threshold varieties of
active ingredients and preparations, seeking to build a
leading pharmaceutical company with core competencies in
that segment. Ganghua Dentistry has officialy commenced
operation, thereby laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
goal of building a chain of dental hospitals.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

RREE

BT —FHhEPRBTEFHENRES - BT

BENHAZERER  BRE[ZEAK]  [BAEERIRIEE
T IEER  SEEFEEMNEERNMBEE - K

g UENERTHEERERZ S _FHEHMEMSH
BRERE  BETEFEMAEMRELE  SKEES
BEBRELA T —FERBFE  —HEHETHEL
EXSHLEREEHES -

OB

RERAEEBZ TCERABAEBT N - RABTEH
RInAF  HEBRERYEELRYE - EmifEREM
BREERRER -

BERMAN > FEBZNERRRERBE RI4r - EEEN

BRRETE - EEIEFEREEFME R < MLk
AE RN EBEEREMNRE  EMMEBSEE/ NEEAR
3500 F T KM GH BB T AESHRE @ AKX

NBABAM - T — mm&ml%°ﬁ% EEERA
NI ERBIRKIBECNASEREHRISEENE
ﬁi%?ﬂﬁE&MMﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁégﬁmﬁgﬁ
R EAMIXAEREERT T RIRENEEKYE -
Al SECETE —@E2ERMSEI00RTARBENAS
3 AREERRZERESPIES EMFM$&%WH
T 2 NTEEZANDBEBABRUBRF INERBED
o BFEONREDCEARKESZ  YR/EEITEEHNESR
RERNBZIT T TRERRRE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

SHCM has been providing property operation services
to the Group’s self-owned commercial properties. As
of mid-June 2022, the total area of the Group’s self-
owned commercial properties managed by SHCM was
approximately 55,000 square meters with an occupancy
rate of approximately 65%. SHCM is currently carrying out
upgrade and renovation works for the remaining parts of the
Group’s self-owned commercial properties and will continue
to source tenants after the completion of the works.

In addition to the Group’s self-owned commercial properties,
SHCM has entered into a cooperation agreement with a
computer software technology service provider to jointly
develop an integrated intelligent asset management system
covering commercial property virtualization, tenant-sourcing
management, energy consumption management and other
functions. This system aims to strengthen SHCM’s service
quality and operational management capabilities and thus
differentiate SHCM from its competitors.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead to the second half of 2022, the global
economy is expected to pick up steadily due to interest rate
hikes around the world. However, “housing is for living in,
not for speculation” remains the PRC government’s central
tenet when it comes to the real estate sector, with stricter
regulations implemented. Homebuyers’ sentiment remains
weak, although real estate is still regarded as a good hedge
and the housing demand is still there. In view of this, the
Group still needs to strive for stability and take a wait-and-
see approach.

The future strategic positioning of SHCM will focus on
developing “boutique” commercial property projects.
Target projects include community commercial centers,
commercial streets and various kinds of industrial parks with
a scale of less than 100,000 square meters. In the long run,
as the pandemic continues to affect the norms of consumer
behaviors and needs, SHCM will develop in-depth strategic
partnerships with brands that are highly compatible with
new consumer trends, thus improving its overall strength
and market competitiveness.

ZABERNRAREERNARNEREEMRELR
B BE_T__FRATA ZEAHEEENAEE
BRANEAYEEEERLS5000F 5K HEXOR
65% - EABEE B A LETTH BRI EAMER R E
THEREBN IR WHETRTREEEBEIE -

BRAKEAROAAYEIN  ZEmECE —HKEREUF
BRI ERI LA EhE - RRARERERRYEE#R
£ HEEE  EREESFEN —BILEREEEER
B REANREERENRGERBLELEEE S > KM
B EMSFHEFHEREEN

KRRE

RE-_FT__HT¥F Z2HRNEFE  RERLER
FERE - BIEETYHDRARPREEMETENE
W BEENELARNERE - MSERATKEL - EF
ENRMS LHERER  TROBEFRINEFE - A
R REBDTHBLERE - ARERER -

EEBENARREBECSERITENMEINEAYE
HERRM - BEAEER SBREE108FII KA THOME
BEFRL  AXERSEERR - REME @ £REFE

ARENSRREFTEEREAZAERSNREEARAE
REBRAIERE BREAMZEHENGAENRTS
BES e
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In 2021, the Chinese real estate market was affected by the
tightening of policies, which led to a drop in real estate sales
in major cities and made potential buyers think twice before
buying. In the first half of 2022, the commercial residential
sector in first- to fourth-tier cities performed evenly. Prices
in first-tier cities rose by 0.4% month-on-month, signalling
that the property market in first-tier cities is more resilient.
Prices in second-tier cities fell by 0.1% month-on-month,
which was on a par with first-tier cities. Prices in third- and
fourth-tier cities fell by 2.2% month-on-month, indicating
sluggish demand. However, the pre-sale rate of the Group’s
real estate project “Yichun Sino Harbour ® Guanlan” (which
ranked as number one in terms of sales in Yichun in 2021)
reached approximately 67%, showing that high-quality real
estate properties are still in demand. The Group expects
that the domestic real estate market will rebound in the
second half of 2022. As the relevant policies have begun
to show signs of relaxation, real estate will continue to be a
good hedge, which leads us to believe that the recovery of
the property market in third- and fourth-tier cities will catch
up with that in first- and second-tier cities.

The Group remains focused on real estate, with its sales
performance slightly better than the market forecast. We
will adhere to our philosophy of “seeking steady progress”
when developing our real estate business, which will grow
in tandem with our prospering “big health” business. With
the easing of real estate policies in 2022, we will seize new
opportunities, take solid steps and forge ahead. The Board
will implement prudent and flexible financial policies to bring
long-term returns to our Shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Group believes that its property
operation services and “big health” businesses will grow
along with its real estate business, and with this three-
pronged approach we will make steady progress in the
current year. Above all, the Board will remain duly cautious
in an ever-changing environment.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
Shareholders, business partners and customers of the
Group for their support and trust over the past year
and express my sincere gratitude to the Directors, our
management team and all our employees for their hard
work and contribution to the Group.

Wong Lam Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 June 2022

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

FEEMER T —FRERRNRE  SEAMTHE
WEHREEMPE  BEERSTREEHERZAL -
RIZB-_FE¥F —QRENKAMMEETARIREAF
1 — BB ERIRLL EFR0.4% @ R — R HE M
Mog 0 — T ERIRL TR0.1% @ EER—RWHEE
= BB ERRLE TE22%  FTR&EABEX - BERE
BETEMERBIEREL BRI AERENGT% &%
HEARER - T —FREFTNHETE  fJEWmSNE
BAREERFNEHENE KERZBEAFHETSRN
THERELRA -  ABRABERENTR - BHEDNE
THOERER  BE= IR/RETREEL— - —GH
MEY LK o

AEBDABMERERESR - HEREL TSR -
SEDERFRTRENBEZREMERT  BRF L
BROIAREIXBERER  -RERE_T__FEHE
MBERER  REBDKHEBLIZENT  BLHEBEEY
- BITERBEENVBEER  REREREENEED
3 o

RERK  AEBEREMFELRE - (KRR ZEKEHR
AEEMERT =REBER  RAFERTIGE - Am - &
FEREREEENRETDASREERBENEFREE

&l

K& RARREFEHEE—FAKRBEZEBRR - £
BHEEPHAKBENIHREL  UEAHES  £HEE
BRERETHWFHTIERER @ RIRROHREHE

FE
SERIK
BE T _FXA-TNAH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2022
COMPARED TO FY2021

Revenue

In FY2022, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB1,738.8 million, representing an increase of 307% from
approximately RMB426.9 million in FY2021.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in FY2022
was primarily derived from the delivery of residential units of
Sino Harbour e Guanlan (£ e Z#) Phase 1 in Yichun,
the PRC. In FY2021, revenue was mainly attributable to the
delivery of residential units of apartment and commercial
units of Sino Harbour ® Wu Lin Hui (278 ¢ E#[E) in
Hangzhou, the PRC.

CMC is an important section in drug development process.
Revenue from CMC related services in FY2022 and
FY2021 mainly included small molecule chemical drugs
quality research and control, synthesis process R&D and
preparation R&D services provided to pharmaceutical
companies.

CECCHEH_E_-RECHEEELREE
WA

RIBE-_9F  AEEHSRANARE1,738.888
T BT FEHAREE426.98 8 TIEMN307% °

TR CHMF s HEGEYREZRATERERNTE
HEEEBEWN —HEEEM -R_T_—HF - KAZE
EXRARMNFEMMNELBRAMELABEEEMNEEE
£i7 o

CMCREYHERETFHN—RHEEHD - —TZ_FFM
—ZT - B FCMCIHERRTE A EZ 0 FE A & S 1R
BEND FILENE ST - G2 - A TE & HIE
TEMRFERS

Dental service income in FY2022 mainly included general —Z - —HHEOBRRERKBATIEBIERE B TRR
dentistry, orthodontics and implantology. % FEBIERETRE -
2022 2021
—E=-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTF T
Revenue from contracts with customers RIEEEBMEHREERZE
under HKFRS 15 155 REFEFENZBA
Sales of properties held for sale HEFEME 1,667,208 385,059
CMC related service income CMCHE 8 IR s U A 8,613 5,730
Dental service income A & 5 AR A5 U A 4,601 =
Consultancy service income A RIS 383 1,151
1,680,805 391,940
Revenue from other source REHAMRFEZBA
Rental income el A 58,028 34,944
1,738,833 426,884
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2022
COMPARED TO FY2021 (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (j)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties and (i) car
parking spaces during FY2022:

EEE WD

CECCUEFHE-_SC-UEUBRELRDEE

WA (&)
TRHFH -_ZE - —BHERNOEEDE - (IEEDE K)E
B Z WA

Percentage
2022 2021 change
—E-—F T AL
0] Residential *=
- GFA sold (in sg.m.) -EERERE
(LAF7KRET) 271,241 13,944 1,845.2%
- ASP (RMB per sq.m.) - FHEE
(BEFFRARE) 6,044 26,135 (76.9)%
~ Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — W (AIA ¥ T 7T) 1,639,305 364,425 349.8%
(ii) Commercial [EES
- GFA sold (in sqg.m.) -EERERE
(KAFFKE) 759 733 3.5%
- ASP (RMB per sq.m.) -FHEE
(BEFFRARKE) 36,256 27,464 32.0%
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — WA (FIA ¥ F ) 27,518 20,131 36.7%
(i)  Car parking spaces 2B
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) — W (AIA ¥ T r) 385 503 (23.5)%
Revenue from sales of properties held for ~ HEFEWERMUA
sale (approximately RMB’000) (FIARTFoT) 1,667,208 385,059 333.0%
Note: sqg.m. means square metre(s)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin HEREREBR=R

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB257.5
million in FY2021 to approximately RMB1,236.1 million
in FY2022. Gross profit margin decreased from 39.7%
in FY2021 to 28.9% in FY2022. In respect of gross profit
margin from sales of properties held for sale, as a higher
portion of the revenue of the Group was attributable to the
delivery of residential units of Sino Harbour ® Guanlan phase
1 in FY2022 as compared with FY2021, which had lower
gross profit margin compared with residential units of Sino
Harbour ® Wu Lin Hui.

HEXNAR T -_—UFOARB275HELHEMNES
T _HEMHARB12361BET > EFRFE - -8
FR7%RMPEZTZZBIF28.9% c L EFEMEM
BWENEmMS AR _Z-—8FE AR -5
FRRIBOMAEBWR AR Z BB —HEEEMM
A MEEES e R AE FE MM EFRER -

EBEREBMARAT  2021/22 £ 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2022
COMPARED TO FY2021 (CONTINUED)

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses increased from
approximately RMB21.9 million in FY2021 to approximately
RMB204.8 million in FY2022. The increase was mainly
attributable to a net gain of approximately RMB201.6 million
from the land resumption in Leping City, Jiangxi Province,
China and an exchange gain amounted to RMB3.7 million
compared to exchange loss of RMB7.1 million in FY2021.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB17.4 million in FY2021 to approximately
RMB36.0 million in FY2022. The higher selling and
distribution expenses in FY2022 were mainly due to an
increase in the marketing expenses incurred for Sino
Harbour e Guanlan and Sino Harbour ¢ Wu Lin Hui.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased to approximately
RMB59.8 million in FY2022 from approximately RMB52.5
million in FY2021. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in staff cost and depreciation.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB4.7 million non-
capitalised finance costs in FY2022, which had increased
from approximately RMB4.0 million in FY2021. The increase
was mainly attributable to the net effect of the decreases of
the average bank and other loans balances in FY2022 and
decrease of capitalisation of finance cost in properties held
under development compared to those in FY2021.

Profit before Income Tax

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB607.1 million in FY2022, compared to approximately
RMB117.4 million in FY2021, representing an increase of
approximately RMB489.8 million.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased to approximately RMB290.8
million in FY2022 from approximately RMB66.5 million
in FY2021. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increases in profit before income tax for FY2022.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of

approximately RMB316.4 million in FY2022, compared to
approximately RMB50.9 million in FY2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB49.3 million, compared to
approximately RMB79.3 million as at 31 March 2021. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the net effect of addition
of equipment and the transfer to investment properties
during FY2022.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB1,410.7 million, compared
to approximately RMB1,127.3 million as at 31 March 2021.
The increase was mainly attributable to the transfer from
properties held for sale and property, plant and equipment.

Intangibles

Intangible assets represented copyright and customer
relationships, amounting to approximately RMB3.1 million
as at 31 March 2022, compared to approximately RMB4.6
million as at 31 March 2021. The decrease was attributable
to the amortisation and impairment.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

It represented equity interests in a number of entities
incorporated in the PRC and Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited, on which the Group does not have control
nor significant influence. It increased from approximately
RMB10.3 million as at 31 March 2021 to approximately
RMB13.0 million as at 31 March 2022 which was
attributable to the fair value changes on equity interests.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits increased from
approximately RMB40.1 million as at 31 March 2021 to
approximately RMB53.5 million as at 31 March 2022. The
increase was mainly due to an increase in deposits pledged
for bank loans.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s properties held under
development decreased to approximately RMB1,658.7
million from approximately RMB1,903.3 million as at 31
March 2021. The decrease was due to the net effect of the
completion of construction and construction-in-progress of
Sino Harbour ® Guanlan (2% e &) phase 1 and phase 2
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2022 (CONTINUED)

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately
RMB542.8 million as at 31 March 2021 to approximately
RMB392.4 million as at 31 March 2022, which was mainly
due to net effect of completed property units of Sino
Harbour e Guanlan phase 1 and handover of completed
property units and transfer to investment properties for Sino
Harbour e Wu Lin Hui.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB698.9 million as at 31 March 2022,
compared to approximately RMB1,081.6 million as at 31
March 2021.

Prepayments and other receivables decreased, which was
mainly due to the transfer of the deposit paid for land-use
rights of three out of four land parcels located in Leping
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC to properties held under
development.

Tax Recoverable

Tax recoverable decreased to approximately RMB1.9 million
as at 31 March 2022 from approximately RMB44.3 million
as at 31 March 2021, which was mainly attributable to an
decrease in prepayments of income tax during FY2022.

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB30.5
million as at 31 March 2022 from approximately RMB33.2
million as at 31 March 2021 due to a decrease in amounts
payable to the contractors for construction costs incurred in
respect of Sino Harbour e Guanlan.

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that were
based on the progress of project development but were not
due for payment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2022 (CONTINUED)

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Accruals and other payables decreased to approximately
RMB525.5 million as at 31 March 2022 from approximately
RMB667.0 million as at 31 March 2021, which was due to
the net effect of an increase in accrued construction cost for
Sino Harbour e Guanlan and the decrease of other payable
due to recognition of other income from land resumption
consideration of approximately RMB222.8 million from
Leping City Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (the
“Local Authority”) in FY2021.

Contract liabilities which comprises sales deposits and
installments received from customers decreased from
approximately RMB2,000.3 million as at 31 March 2021 to
approximately RMB1,131.9 million as at 31 March 2022.
The decrease was mainly due to the net effect of a decrease
due to the recognition of sales of properties and an increase
in pre-sale proceeds from the launch of Sino Harbour e
Guanlan phase 2.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB96.9 million as at 31 March 2021 to approximately
RMB123.8 million as at 31 March 2022, mainly attributable
to the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair
value gain on investment properties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2022, the Group had recorded a net cash inflow of
approximately RMB212.3 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to a decrease in properties held under
development and properties held for sale.

Net cash outflow from investing activities in FY2022 was
approximately RMB43.1 million, which was mainly due to
purchase of property, plant and equipment and an increase
in pledged deposit.

Net cash outflow from financing activities in FY2022
was approximately RMB169.2 million, which was mainly
attributable to receipts from new loans, which were partially
offset by repayments of loan principals and interests.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

Cash Position (Continued)
Cash and Bank Balances (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB291.7 million (31 March
2021: RMB299.4 million), which consisted of cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB94.2 million (31
March 2021: RMB92.2 million) and bank balances restricted
for construction work of approximately RMB197.5 million
(31 March 2021: RMB207.2 million), and were mostly
denominated in RMB.

Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB466.0 million, compared to
approximately RMB592.0 million as at 31 March 2021. The
Group’s bank and other loans were denominated in RMB (31
March 2021: RMB). In FY2022, the effective annual interest
rates of the bank and other loans were ranging from 6.85%
10 10.6% (FY2021: 7.5% to 10.6% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank and other loans) less related deposit collateral over
total equity and then multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March
2022, the Group’s gearing ratio was 22.5% (31 March
2021: 35.4%). The Group has implemented certain loan
management policies which include close monitoring of the
gearing ratio and any changes in interest rates.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital
and other liquidity requirements principally from cash
generated from our operations and bank and other loans.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from our operations, bank and other loans
as well as other external equity and debt financing. The
Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances, other receivables and other payables which
are denominated in HK$ and US$. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency exposures
regularly and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 26 March 2021, Fenghuang Jincheng entered into
a land resumption agreement (the “Land Resumption
Agreement”) with the Local Authority which Fenghuang
Jincheng shall surrender its land parcel located at the
Hushan Meiyan Reclamation Farm, Leping City, Jingdezhen
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC to the Local Authority
at a consideration by way of cash compensation of
RMB222,760,000 (the “Land Resumption”). On 21 May
2021, the approval, confirmation and ratification of the Land
Resumption Agreement were duly passed as an ordinary
resolution of the Company by the Shareholders in a special
general meeting of the Shareholders, details of which are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 26
March and 21 May 2021 and the circular of the Company
dated 30 April 2021.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios set out
in Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Land
Resumption exceed 75%, the Land Resumption constitutes
a very substantial disposal transaction for the Company and
is therefore subject to reporting, announcement, circular
and Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules.

On 16 July 2021, finance lease agreements were entered
into between Zhejiang IPS, as lessee, and Jiangsu
Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., as lessor, to purchase certain
equipment from Hangzhou Ruiteshi Technology Co., Ltd.
for a consideration of RMB25,600,000, and leased the
equipment to Zhejiang IPS for a term of five years (the
“Finance Lease Arrangements”), details of which are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 16
July 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
(CONTINUED)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios set out in
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the transaction
contemplated under the Finance Lease Arrangements
exceed 5% but less than 25%, the transactions
contemplated under the Finance Lease Arrangements
constitute discloseable transactions of the Company and
are therefore subject to the notification and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2022

There was no event after the end of FY2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in FY2022
(FY2021: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2021: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 311 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2022 (31 March 2021: 240). Staff’'s remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions, the
Group’s results as well as the experience and performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from
time to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits,
including medical insurance, and grants of discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance
and contributions to the Group. Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
RMB42.9 million in FY2022 (FY2021: approximately
RMB37.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

COMPANY UPDATE AEEBRFHER
Property Pre-sales YIERE
The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of BHZE-_ZT-_—FXA-++tH SEBEZWEEELXIM
properties under each project up to 27 June 2022 are 2 Z2FtEEBMAT ¢
summarised as follows:
Yichun Yichun
Sino Harbour ¢ Sino Harbour ¢
Guanlan - Guanlan -
Residential Units Phase 1 Phase 2
HEEBEHR EHEEBEBN
EEE N —H g
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 285,219 sq.m. 192,163 sg.m.
(2,512 units) (1,653 units)
EEtHEL AT I E 2 AR EmTE 285,219F 5K 192,163 75K
(BERIEA) (2,512 B A7) (1,6531E & fir)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 284,837 sq.m. 127,874 sq.m.
(2,509 units) (1,102 units)
MFtEREZAREmE(RELEE) 284,837 77 K 127,874F 752K
(2,5091E B i) (1,1021& Efz)
Percentage of pre-sale 99% 67%
e X
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed 16,954 sg.m. 102,558 sg.m.
over to buyers as at 31 March 2022A (152 units) (880 units)
RZZZZF=ZA=1+t—HAHABRER 16,954 75 K 102,558 75K
ZETEERREEmBE(ETHEESEMEE)A (1521E 2 1) (8801E B fiz)

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers
as at 31 March 20227

RZZE-_—F=ZA=F+—HHABRER
Z BEEEEAN

ASP per sq.m.*

RMB109.5 million

RMB860.4 million

AR AR
100.58 & 7T 860.4B & T
RMB6,459 RMBS8,389
AR¥6,4597T AR #8,3897T
Completed CY2023Q1

B 5K —E-CEE
F—FFE

SFIKTHER"

Expected completion date

TREATEAK B A

- ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not
handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed over
to buyers.

A Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows:

Pre-sales at the beginning of FY2022 plus new pre-sales during
FY2022 less those handed over to buyers during FY2022, which
was recognised as sales during FY2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

In 2021, the central government tightened its control over
real estate and implemented strict control policies, such
as “the three red lines”, “each city its own policies” and
“housing is for living in, not for speculation”. As a result, the
Group had to be more prudent in its financial management
and bided its time in the face of uncertainties. Since the
beginning of 2022, the real estate market has begun to
stabilize. It is expected to recover at a faster pace in the
second half of 2022, thereby boosting investor sentiment
significantly. Real estate transactions in third- and fourth-
tier cities are expected to remain on the same level year-
on-year, assuming that these cities will not be hit by a new
wave of pandemic.

In 2021, the Chinese real estate market was affected by the
tightening of policies, which led to a drop in real estate sales
in major cities and made potential buyers think twice before
buying. In the first half of 2022, the commercial residential
sector in first- to fourth-tier cities performed evenly. Prices
in first-tier cities rose by 0.4% month-on-month, signalling
that the property market in first-tier cities is more resilient.
Prices in second-tier cities fell by 0.1% month-on-month,
which was on a par with first-tier cities. Prices in third- and
fourth-tier cities fell by 2.2% month-on-month, indicating
sluggish demand. However, the pre-sale rate of the Group’s
real estate project “Yichun Sino Harbour e Guanlan” (which
ranked as number one in terms of sales in Yichun in 2021)
reached approximately 67%, showing that high-quality real
estate properties are still in demand. The Group expects
that the domestic real estate market will rebound in the
second half of 2022. As the relevant policies have begun
to show signs of relaxation, real estate will continue to be a
good hedge, which leads us to believe that the recovery of
the property market in third- and fourth-tier cities will catch
up with that in first- and second-tier cities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

The reporting period saw significant development of the
Group’s pharmaceutical “big health” segment. Ganghua
Dentistry has officially commenced operation, thereby laying
a solid foundation for the Group’s goal of building a chain
of dental hospitals. For its pharmaceutical research and
development as well as services, the Group attaches great
importance to the upgrading of its hardware and software.
Zhejiang IPS has completed the relocation of its entire
laboratory to Hangzhou Pharmaceutical Port Town. With
a research site measuring nearly 3,500 square meters and
outfitted with state-of-the-art equipment, Zhejiang IPS has
attracted a lot of talent and set up a first-class research
team. Meanwhile, in terms of qualification certification,
Zhejiang IPS has passed the laboratory onsite change
review and regular supervision and inspection of the CNAS,
as well as the application review for the change of its CMA
testing and inspection institution qualification certificate,
which demonstrate the high standard of operation
maintained by the laboratory of Zhejiang IPS.

Zhejiang IPS now possesses full-service capabilities
for generic drugs and innovative drugs in the drug
discovery and pharmaceutical research stages. As to the
industrialization planning of pharmaceutical products,
the management has comprehensively considered the
changing trends of the domestic pharmaceutical industry
under the influence of centralized procurement of drugs
policies. Capitalizing on the technical accumulation of
Zhejiang IPS over the years, the Group has formulated the
development strategy of becoming a “specialized active
ingredients + preparation + innovative drugs” contract
research, development and manufacturing organization.
The Group has already selected a segment with a global
market amounting to RMB40 billion. It has also carried
out the research and development of a number of high-
threshold varieties of active ingredients and preparations,
seeking to build a leading pharmaceutical company with
core competencies in that segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

SHCM has been providing property operation services
to the Group’s self-owned commercial properties. As
of mid-June 2022, the total area of the Group’s self-
owned commercial properties managed by SHCM was
approximately 55,000 square meters. SHCM is currently
carrying out upgrade and renovation works for part of the
Group’s self-owned commercial properties to be leased and
will continue to source tenants after the completion of the
works.

In addition to the Group’s self-owned commercial
properties, SHCM will focus on the business of serving
external property owners in the future. SHCM is currently
in negotiation with certain external property owners on the
provision of property operation or property sublease services
to their commercial properties located in Zhejiang, Jiangxi
and Jiangsu provinces in the PRC. Engagement agreements
are expected to be entered into within 2022. Moreover,
SHCM has entered into a cooperation agreement with a
computer software technology service provider to jointly
develop an integrated intelligent asset management system
covering commercial property virtualization, tenant-sourcing
management, energy consumption management and other
functions. This system aims to strengthen SHCM’s service
quality and operational management capabilities and thus
differentiate SHCM from its competitors.

The future strategic positioning of SHCM will focus on
developing “boutique” commercial property projects.
Target projects include community commercial centers,
commercial streets and various kinds of industrial parks with
a scale of less than 100,000 square meters. To achieve this
strategic goal, SHCM has built a team with strong business
acumen in the field of retail and commercial spaces as well
as extensive experience in tenant-sourcing and operation
since its establishment in late 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

In the long run, as the pandemic continues to affect the
norms of consumer behaviors and needs, SHCM will
develop in-depth strategic partnerships with brands that
are highly compatible with new consumer trends, thus
improving its overall strength and market competitiveness.

The Group remains focused on real estate, with its sales
performance slightly better than the market forecast. We
will adhere to our philosophy of “seeking steady progress”
when developing our real estate business, which will grow
in tandem with our prospering “big health” business. With
the easing of real estate policies in 2022, we will seize new
opportunities, take solid steps and forge ahead. The Board
will implement prudent and flexible financial policies to bring
long-term returns to our Shareholders, while remaining
cautious in a rapidly changing environment.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL
DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of the
Final Dividend of HK1 cent per Share (FY2021: HK1 cent
per Share) (equivalent to SGD0.177 cent per Share at the
exchange rate of HK$1:SGD0.177) and the Special Dividend
of HK1 cent per Share (equivalent to SGD0.177 cent per
Share) (FY2021:Nil) for FY2022.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM to be held
on Friday, 30 September 2022, the proposed Final Dividend
and Special Dividend will be paid on Friday, 23 December
2022 to Shareholders whose names will appear on the
Register of Members on Wednesday, 12 October 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND SPECIAL
DIVIDEND (CONTINUED)

If the proposed Final Dividend and Special Dividend are
approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM,
they will be payable in cash in HK$ or SGD, at the exchange
rate of HK$ to SGD as published by the Monetary Authority
of Singapore on Tuesday, 28 June 2022 and Shareholders
will be given the option of electing to receive the Final
Dividend and Special Dividend in either HK$ or SGD.

To make the dividend election, Shareholders should
complete the dividend election form (if applicable) that will
be despatched to their registered address on Monday, 17
October 2022 and return it to the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share
Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Monday, 31 October 2022. If no dividend election is
made by a Shareholder, such Shareholder will receive
the Final Dividend and Special Dividend in HK$.

AGM

It is proposed that the forthcoming AGM will be held at
Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-
39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
at 10:00 a.m. on Friday, 30 September 2022. The notice
of the Company’s forthcoming AGM will be published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course in the manner as required by the Listing Rules.
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The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND AND
SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
119 and 120 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of the
Final Dividend of HK1 cent per Share (FY2021: HK1 cent
per Share) (equivalent to 0.177 in SGD cent per Share at
the exchange rate of HK$1:SGDO0.177) and the Special
Dividend of HK1 cent per Share (FY2021: Nil) (equivalent to
SGDO0.177 cent per Share) for FY2022.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the 2022 AGM to be
held on Friday, 30 September 2022, the proposed Final
Dividend and Special Dividend will be paid on Friday, 23
December 2022 to Shareholders whose names will appear
on the Register of Members on Wednesday, 12 October
2022.

If the proposed Final Dividend and Special Dividend are
approved by the Shareholders at the forthcoming 2022
AGM, it will be payable in cash in HK$ or SGD, at the
exchange rate of HK$ to SGD as published by Monetary
Authority of Singapore on Tuesday, 28 June 2022 and
Shareholders will be given the option of electing to receive
the Final Dividend and Special Dividend in either HK$ or
SGD.

To make the dividend election, Shareholders should
complete the Dividend Election Form (if applicable) and
return it to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at
Room 21083B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 October
2022. If no dividend election is made by a Shareholder,
such Shareholder will receive the Final Dividend and Special
Dividend in HK$.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2022 AGM will be held at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong at 10:00
a.m. on Friday, 30 September 2022. The notice of the 2022
AGM will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by
the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2022 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 27
September 2022 to Friday, 30 September 2022, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2022 AGM to be held on Friday, 30 September 2022, non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed and
signed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 26 September 2022.

Proposed Final Dividend and Special Dividend

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving the
Final Dividend and Special Dividend by the Shareholders
at the 2022 AGM, the Register of Members will be closed
for determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to the Final
Dividend and Special Dividend from Friday, 7 October 2022
to Wednesday, 12 October 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of the Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the Final Dividend and
Special Dividend, non-registered Shareholders must lodge
all duly completed and signed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 6 October 2022.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9
to 11 and pages 12 to 26 of this annual report, respectively.
The above sections form part of this report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies.
Our Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 241 and 242 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects in the PRC before the commencement
of construction and obtained approval from the relevant
environmental protection bureau after completion of each of
the projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 241 and 242 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022 are set out on pages 119 to 240 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for FY2022
of RMB259,119,000 (FY2021: RMB57,544,000) has been
transferred to retained profits. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 123 and 124 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB48,286,000 (FY2021:
RMB31,611,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2022, the Company did not redeem any of
its listed securities; nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue of
new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 0.7% and
approximately 1.0%, respectively of the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 24.5% and 57.2%, respectively of the
Group’s total payment under construction contracts for the
Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr.
WONG Lam Ping (an Executive Director), CHAN Kin Sang
(the NED) and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (an INED) will retire
from office and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the 2022 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations and
not aware of any unfavourably reported incidents, as at the
date of this report, the Company considers that all of them
are independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 103 to 109
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan,
the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10 June
2020; while Mr. WONG Lam Ping, an Executive Director,
has a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 1 April 2020. Each of these service
contracts is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than six months’ written notice to the other and each
of the above Executive Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the AGMs in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.

Each of the NED and the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year, which shall thereafter continue year to year subject to
termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other and each of them is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account the Group’s operations, earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability and
other factors as it may deem relevant at such time. Any
declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends
will be subject to the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of
Bermuda, including the approval of the Shareholders. Future
declarations of dividends may or may not be reflected from
the Company’s historical declarations of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and the Board’s approval.
The emoluments are determined by the Board by reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, recorded in the register referred therein; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares
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Name of Directors/ Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
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Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 178,561,643
TR EnEAA
Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120
(Note @)

R EE R (M7 (@)
Interest of spouse (Note (a))
Fe (B (M7t (a)

Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b))
FR R 52 4 Fe Bt (Mat ()
Notes:

(@) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
the issue share capital of which is owned as to 52% and
48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, respectively.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares held by Extra Good and Ms. Chan
(whether by herself or through her controlled corporation)
under the SFO.

50,746,390 1,241,193,153 50.37%

5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

() Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun, who
is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE Gang is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the SFO.

* The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares, if any, interested divided by
the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at 31
March 2022.

(ii) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

EEREFRITHRAR 2 #z (H)

(i) RERHBzZHEEGE
BisE - (48)

(b) 5,902,663 8 FAWong Man Bunz + (iRl 54 2~ )
#AE - Bt - RIEBFHRBAEGRG - BALAERR AR
Wong Man BunZ T35 8 2 B — 8RO P H B = o

: B ER B R R0 ARG () MR AR
SR F= A=+ AR HTRHEE 2,464,000,000
BB

(i) REBEEIERAPZFE

Number, class and
percentage of issued

Name of shares in associated

Name of Director/ associated Capacity/ corporation held/
Chief executive corporation Nature of interest interested Total

i AR

94 HEZENESRTRE

TETBRAEHRE HEEZEER B/ @Y #E - EARBEAL st

Mr. Wong Extra Good Beneficial owner 52 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares

(52%) (100%)

TRE Extra Good EnlEAA SRR L AR (52%) 1008 E@AX(100%)

Interest of spouse 48 ordinary shares
(Note) (48%)
e B = (Hat) 48H% & 3% (48%)

Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as to BfaE :  Extra Good®W B BEITRARTLEEREETRLLY
52% and 48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, RIBEES52% K 48%  RIBFFH REE BRG] - TR ER
respectively. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to be R AENRZZ T A Extra Good#H A MK P A RS -
interested in the shares held by Ms. Chan in Extra Good. YE Jo 4 BExtra GoodME —E 5 o
Mr. Wong is a sole director of Extra Good.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of B EXFIHEZEIN R-E-__F=A=+—H HE=E

the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, recorded
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2022, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entity or person other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
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Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good EnEAA
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
R+ EnEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note) 1,011,885,120

Rt AR (A7)

Interest of spouse (Note) 178,561,643 1,241,193,153 50.37%

[ Sl ()

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 48% by Ms. Chan, the wife of Mr.
Wong, and 52% by Mr. Wong. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held by
Extra Good and Mr. Wong (whether by himself or through his
controlled corporation).

The percentage represents the number of the Shares interested
divided by the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at
31 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
entity or person (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of car park rental agreement,
office rental agreement and decoration service agreement
as disclosed in note 32 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements also fell under the definition of “continuing
connected transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As the aggregate annual amount involved in
these continuing connected transactions was less than
HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected transactions
qualify as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The “Other loan — guaranteed” balance as disclosed in
note 25 together with the interest expense as disclosed in
note 32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements also fell
under the definition of “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details are set out as
below:

On 10 January, 2020, Hangzhou Ganglian, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower,
entered into a revolving loan facility agreement of RMB150
million with Huzhou Runhe as lender, of which Mr. Wong is
a beneficial owner. As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding
balance of RMB142,490,000 was guaranteed by Mr. Wong,
interest-bearing at a fixed interest rate of 9.35% was
repayable within one year after 31 March 2021 and subject
to a repayment on demand clause. During the Year, the
revolving loan facility was expired and other loan was fully
repaid by the Group.

The INEDs have reviewed, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules, the continuing connected transaction as
set out above and have confirmed that such continuing
connected transaction had been entered into by the Group (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (ii) the loan facility is not secured by any
assets of the Group and is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no arrangements,
transactions or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected
with a Director has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for Executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 March 2018, the Company and Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan
and Extra Good entered into a non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Group and Mr.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good that each of
them had complied with the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking during the Year. The INEDs have also reviewed
the said confirmation and are of the view that Mr. Wong,
Ms. Chan and Extra Good had complied with the terms of
the Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duties. In addition, the
Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group had not made any charitable
donation (FY2021: RMB108,000).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no change on the Directors’ information pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment
as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2022
AGM. There has been no change in the Independent Auditor
since the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board

WONG Lam Ping
Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
General Manager

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code during the
Year and thereafter up to the date of this annual report
(collectively, the “Period”) except as disclosed in this report.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that
the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors,
including four Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping (the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager), Mr. SHI Feng (the Deputy
Chairman), Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED,
Mr. Chan Kin Sang (“Mr. Chan”) and three INEDs,
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping
Kuen. Mr. WONG Lui is the son of Mr. WONG. Mr.
Chan is a nephew of Mr. WONG and a cousin of
Mr. WONG Lui. Save as disclosed above, there is
no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 103 to 109 of this
annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
merits while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

All Executive Directors have entered into service
contracts with the Company for a specific term of
three years. All NED and INEDs have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year.

As at the date of this report, the Company has
appointed three INEDs, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. Each of the INEDs has confirmed his
independence of the Company and the Company
considers each of them to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal
vacancy or, subject to authorisation by the
Shareholders in general meeting, as an additional
Director. Where vacancies exist, the Board shall
carry out selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, qualification, integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each
AGM provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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EREBRE
(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

44

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The
INEDs have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between the Executive
Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses
and affairs as well as unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with
Board papers and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with code
provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
had received for the Period to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A E=20

The individual training record of each Director received

for the Year is set out below:

EREBHRE

AERZESEXIEI 2 EACSEEIMT

Reading materials and/

or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,

operations and corporate
governance matters

FEREXY  &gER

TCEEREEREFENR

Name of Directors EEHS REEEEEE EREY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong (Chairman, TERE(EE - BEHITERBITE) v

Chief Executive Officer and

General Manager)
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman) & 5e 4 (B3 /%) v
Mr. WONG Lui &aﬁai v
Ms. GAO Lan =EZL v
NED FHITES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang ReR ik A o A v
INEDs BIYEHTES
Mr. XIE Gang A% Bl 5t A v
Mr. HE Dingding BTTEAE v
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen =R E v

During the Year, the Board held four meetings and
a meeting on 28 June 2022 and, amongst other
matters, approved the Consolidated Financial
Statements. At these Board meetings, the Directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant

BE - REAFEF
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issues and general operations of the Group, reviewed
the financial performance, reviewed and approved
the interim and final results and approved a circular
in relation to a very substantial disposal as well as
a discloseable transaction in relation to the Finance
Lease Arrangements.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. She also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. This deviates from Code Provision A.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code, which stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. In view of the present composition
of the Board as well as the in-depth knowledge and
experience of Mr. Wong in relation to the operation
and business of the Company and in the industry, the
Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the
best interest of the Company at the present stage to
vest the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person as it helps to facilitate the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and
maximize the effectiveness of its operation. In addition,
Mr. SHI Feng (“Mr. Shi”), the Executive Director, is the
Deputy Chairman, and hence, there will be a balance
of power and authority for Mr. Wong as both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wong, being the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. He would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage the Directors
to actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. Shi, being the Deputy Chairman, is responsible
for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a specific
enquiry by the Company with each of the Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2022
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended and are properly prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their reporting
responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s report of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
(the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Mr. HE Dingding.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

o reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2022 and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved (i)
for presentation to the Board for consideration and
approval the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and (i) audit-related matters. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the Year,
amongst others, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited (“BDO”), Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent
Auditor, in respect of the Year amounted to
HK$1,040,000 and total fees paid/payable in relation
to non-audit service provided by BDO for the Year
amounted to HK$18,000.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO as the
Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the 2022
AGM.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG
Ping Kuen, two Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2022 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration certain remuneration-
related matters of the Directors and senior
management as well as the proposed Directors.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
During the Year, amongst others, the Remuneration
Committee (i) evaluated and reviewed the performance
of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company in respect of FY2021;
and (i) recommended to the Board for consideration
on the discretionary bonus for FY2021 of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding
and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen, one NED Mr. CHAN Kin
Sang and two Executive Directors Mr. WONG Lui and
Ms. GAO Lan.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year and a meeting on 28 June 2022 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2022 AGM as well as the
nomination of new Directors. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst
others, the Nomination Committee (i) assessed the
independence of the INEDs; (ii) reviewed the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and the board diversity
policy; and (iii) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the 2021 AGM.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship(s) to the Board by giving
due consideration to the criteria, including but not
limited to Board diversity, qualifications, experience,
independence, reputation for integrity and potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the
Board before making recommendation to the Board.
The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the
candidate(s) by interviews, background checks etc.
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TREBHRE

(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and
process:

52

The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include
but are not limited to the following (collectively
the “Criteria”):

(@ Diversity in the aspects, amongst others,
of gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the
Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(c)  Qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Group’s business is involved;

(d)  Independence;

()  Reputation for integrity;

® Potential contributions that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession
of the Board;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Vi

Vil

Viil.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside of
the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment, and where a NED
is considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected
candidate to be interviewed by the members
of the Board, who are not members of the
Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment
as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as Director of
the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities,
if required.

Vi

Vil

Viii.
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B E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June 2016
delegated such responsibilities to the Audit Committee
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised and adopted on 17 June 2016 to include
the responsibilities on reviewing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXREBRSE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general
meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

V) EERZEEERENSHHFETH

TRV EEFHRERAFERTZEFEEH

EXZBgg3

RARRBRTA R

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
HREBNE ERETNY

Annual Special
Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting Meeting
Eups EZ® ENZEE FHZERE REZEE RRBFAE RREAIKE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wong THRAE 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 11 11
NEm i
Mr. SHI Feng RE%E 4/4 N/A 1 N/A 11 il
N A
Mr. WONG Lui AEAE 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11 0N
TER NEH
Ms. GAO Lan BEZT 4/4 N/A N/A 1 11 11
i TER
NED FUTES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang BRig x4 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11 11
NEA NEH
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. XIE Gang SRR & 4/4 2/2 1 11 11 0/1
Mr. HE Dingding ETT44%E 4/4 2/2 11 11 il 11
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen BRELE 4/4 2/2 11 11 11 0/1
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control framework. The controls are
to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
The systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting the
tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions set
out in code provision C.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code by having adopted a three-tier risk management
approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle
risks. The Group has developed and adopted a
strategic planning and risk management policy, which
is designed to enhance risk management of the Group
by identifying, analyzing and evaluating the possible
material risks which shall have adverse impact on
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, including
strategic risks, financial risks, market risks, operational
risks and legal and regulatory risks. Divisions and
department heads are responsible for the first line
of defence. They oversee the daily operations of
their own business units and are accountable for the
conduct and performance of their own operations.
Any incidents regarding non-compliance of their
operations with regulations and laws, failure to identify
or properly manage the risks associated with their
business units, which might lead to financial or non-
financial losses to the Group, shall be reported to the
legal and compliance department and the internal
audit department of the Group (the “Internal Audit
Function”). As the second line of defence, the Internal
Audit Function defines rule sets and models, provides
professional advices, develops work plans of internal
audit, as well as monitor and review the processes,
practices and procedures of internal controls for
all business units on a regular basis. It annually
prepares internal audit report containing findings and
recommendations for improvements in respect of the
risk management and internal controls and submits
such report to the Audit Committee for review. It also
ensures that risks are within the acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line
of defence, the Audit Committee, with the professional
advices and opinions from the Internal Audit Function,
ensures that the first and second lines of defence are
effective through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to
the Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

° establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

o restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession of
inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

o disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;

° provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such
policy;

° document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation up
to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before the
inside information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company shall take reasonable measures to preserve
the confidentiality of the information. In the opinion of
the Board, where the information has not been kept
confidential or there has been a leak, the Company
must issue a public announcement by way of the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange as soon as reasonably practicable. If the
Board needs time to clarify details of, and the impact
arising from, an event or a set of circumstances
before it is in a position to issue a full announcement
to properly inform the public, the Board shall
consider issuing a “holding announcement”. There
are circumstances where confidentiality has not
been maintained and the Board is not able to make
a full announcement or a holding announcement,
the Board shall consider applying for a trading halt
in its securities until disclosure can be made. All
announcements in relation to inside information
disclosure should be properly approved by the Board
and issued to the public without delay.
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TEERRSE
(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EEERARIPESE(E)
CONTROL (CONTINUED)
The Independent Auditor has, during the course of BAUZEBMERFEEZRAERFERENEEREE
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant NEAEBRRESVBMRBEIATEE - KB
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated AFEEECCLERERZECRFRIAEER
financial statements within the scope of their audit. BEENMANMBERERG 2B - WE R ARAF]
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit i ANEFT M BERBESTENER - 8
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness ITHERRKES  UEKESHEINEIRERE
of the risk management and internal control systems HEERERH EFERA RAERAREERA
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of HEE R BT ERER
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board believes that the existing
risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective.
(L) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND L) EERSREEBSMH
SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate RIBREEARTASFANENEB. 1.5 - FHEHRAE
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members FRIEERABERBECBRFARI —H2AFE
of the senior management (other than the Directors) SREEE(TERES)KEFMIREESRS)E T
whose particulars are contained in the section headed NN
“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:
Remuneration band (in HK$) Number of individuals
FrNEEE (%) A
Nil to 1,000,000
= 21,000,000 &)
1,000,001 to 2,000,000
1,000,001% 2,000,000 1
(M) COMPANY SECRETARY M) ATWE

60

The Company has appointed Ms. YUE Sau Lan (“Ms.
Yue”) as the Company Secretary with effect from 26
January 2021.

Ms. Yue was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as
the Company Secretary and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to the
Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered
into between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Ms. Yue
has been contacting in respect of company secretarial
matters is Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Billy, the Group’s financial
controller.
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(M) COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

(N)

(0)

Ms. Yue attended over 15 hours’ relevant continuous
professional development training during the Year
pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
has been/will be subject to the Board’s approval at its
meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the meeting.
Vote results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall have the right to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

(M)

(N)

(0)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting (Continued)

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,

Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2153 1688
Facsimile: (852) 3020 5058

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

(P)

Procedures for Making Proposals at the
Meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has posted its constitutional documents on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEBRERWE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Group”)
is pleased to publish the Environmental, Social, and
Governance (the “ESG”) report, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) Guidance set
out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“HKex").

The Group is principally engaged in property development in
the second and third tier cities in China, whereas the head
office of the Group is located in Hong Kong. The property
project includes residential properties, detached housing,
apartments, retails as well as commercial properties.
In addition, the Group also conducts pharmaceutical
inspection business through its subsidiary Zhejiang IPS.

Since the previous reporting period, the Group has
continued actively expanding other medical related business
operations. The scope of this report has hence included the
dental service business in Pingxiang, Jiangxi which was not
included in the scope last year.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in
two subject areas, namely Environmental and Social, of the
business operations in China and Hong Kong from 1 April
2021 to 31 March 2022, unless otherwise stated.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange (the “Guide”). The contents covered herein are
in compliance with the mandatory disclosure requirement
and the provision of “Comply or Explain” as well as four
reporting principles of materiality, quantitativeness, balance
and consistency required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out
to identify material environmental and social issues that
have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders,
the significant stakeholders, procedures, and results of
the engagement of which are presented in the section
“Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality” in the Report.

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPI”s)
have been established, and are measurable and applicable
to make valid comparisons under appropriate conditions;
information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions,
and/or calculation tools used, and sources of conversion
factors used, have been disclosed when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding
choices, omissions or presentation formats that may unduly
influence readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and
presentation of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful
comparisons of related data over time.
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RE HEBRERWE

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The sustainable development of the Group consists not
only of establishing environmental, health, and safety
stewardship, but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The Group strives to provide different
kinds of properties with cozy amenity and lifestyles of health
and sustainability to the society.

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhances
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting
for its shareholders with a highly transparent and open
attitude.

The Group’s business sustainability strategy is based
on integrity, ethics, green innovation, originality, quality
and safety, and shareholders’ value. With such strategy,
green property for sustainable future will be achieved. The
Group is fully committed to resource-efficiency innovations,
environmental and social friendly operations. Such
engagement enables the Group to operate its business
with greater transparency and effective risk management
framework. The Board oversees the process to engage
stakeholders, identifies material topics, and oversee the risk
management framework.

The Group also holds a high standard in business ethics
and invest in sustainable businesses. It is committed to
improving quality of the communities and the environment,
whilst providing long-term returns to its shareholders

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability strategy and reporting. The sustainability
plan of the Group is developed based on results of ESG
Reports and regular reports from senior management of
its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an annual basis and
adjusted as needed to align with the long-term business
strategy of the Group.

Furthermore, the Board has committed to setting up an
ESG task force team to assess and manage ESG-related
issues in the following reporting period. These measures
shall ensure the sustainable and responsible growth and
operation of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD STATEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the significance of quality management of the environment
and activities in promoting sustainable economic
development. The Group is also well aware that its
corporate responsibilities to society and the environment run
parallel to operational performance. As such, we endeavour
to continuously improve the environmental performance
of our operations in order to minimize any impact on the
environment.

Looking ahead, we hope to maintain steady and efficient
sustainable business development and promote sustainable
development together with our stakeholders, thereby
fulfilling our corporate and social responsibility to create a
promising future.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY

The Group communicates with key stakeholders through
daily interactions to understand their concerns and
expectations on ESG issues. Through regular engagement
sessions, the Group obtains valuable feedback and reviews
areas of attention which will help the business to meet its
potential growth and be prepared for future ESG challenges.
Communication channels are as follows:
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Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
B E T HERE R R RE BERE
Shareholders and investors o Corporate governance system ° Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
RERREEE e DEERER other shareholder meeting
e Business strategies and e RERAFREREMKRIERE
performance ° Annual Reports and Interim Reports

s  XBEREERE

° Corporate transparency and °

reputation

s (XRFEHEEBR

s FERERTHHRE
Announcements and Circulars
] NE KB

° Company website and email

s  RAPBULRER

Customers and business partners @ Property and service quality ° Customer Satisfaction Survey
B REBBH o WXmMERKEE . ZTEWEEHED

o Delivery time
o RAIHFE

. Pricing
e EfE

° Progress Meetings

. REEH

° Communication with staff and
management

e HETREEENER
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ##@&2HEREZM (@)

(CONTINUED)

Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
HnE T RERAE R RE BERE

Employees ° Rights and benefits Trainings, Seminars, and Briefing
&8 o EFHEEAF Sessions

Suppliers and subcontractors
HER LY BB

Media, NGOs, and the public
e EBUNAEBE AR

68  Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22

° Remuneration and compensation

o HBEME

o Career development and training

o BIRITREIE

° Working hours

L/ I{/EE% fH

° Occupational health and safety
s REREEZE

° Working environment

° T{EIRE

o Supplier management
o (HEMER
° Customer service

s  EPRE

o Community environment

e HEIRIE

° Employment and community
development

s ERER#EEERE

° Social welfare

o dEEH

Bl g RENT S
Performance Reviews

KAERE

Intranet

R 4

Employee communication meetings
EEERS

Employee handbook

EEF

Supplier Management Meetings and
Events

HEREESREEH

Supplier Review

HEmMEE

Site visits

B iR

ESG Report

ESG#H &

Community activities
HEREE

Employee voluntary activities
EEETESH

Community welfare subsidies
A [ 48 ) #8 BA

Charitable donations
AERD
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
(CONTINUED)

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they have substantial contribution to the Group’s business.
Internal and external stakeholders have been involved in
regular engagement activities to share views regarding the
Group’s operations and performances. The Group has
specifically engaged the members of the Board of Directors,
senior management, shareholders, frontline staff, and
suppliers to gain further insights on ESG material aspects
and challenges during the Reporting Period. Based on the
feedback collected from different groups of stakeholders, a
materiality matrix was developed.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY ##@E&2EREEZM ()
(CONTINUED)

A. Environmental C. Operational
R =
Energy Al Supplier Management C1
gEIR HrER e
Water A2 Intellectual Property c2
X TR EERE
Air Emission A3 Data Protection C3
FE RHERR BRHRIE
Waste and Effluent Ad Customer Service C4
VETIN B PR
Other Raw Materials Consumption A5 Product/Service Quality C5
EH At R M EHER Em/ RGBS
Environmental Protection Measures A6 Anti-corruption C6
RRE RES
Climate Change A7 Community Investment C7
RizEt HRRE
B. Employees
E&
Employment B1
&R
Occupational Health and Safety B2
BEREREZ S
Development and Training B3
B IE
Labour Standards B4
& TR

According to the matrix, the most material topics to the RIEHMEM  BAEEFHERAEBRLEEZELAEEN

Group’s stakeholders and its operations are, EREA

e Employment o [EfE

e Occupational Health and Safety o BEREEREZE
e Development and Training o BEERREEI

e Data Protection e ERMREE

e Customer Service o EPR%

The Group strictly complies with the statutory requirements  ANEE S5 N EZHBEEKETEE - WEHF L
in respect of the identified material aspects. Corresponding B REZEBEHIE N, S5 ERENEREHERR - A&
management practices and policies are being formulated BB GRS FEBWFEEB(CRNIBBER » B REEN
and/or implemented following the identification of these EEIRE - HENEARHTEMNEIE KRR -

issues. The Group will continue to improve its ESG

management and performance by actively communicating

with its stakeholders and constantly improving its internal

policies.

70  Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk.

A. Environmental

Types of emissions the Group contributed
towards in the reporting period were mainly due to
petrol, electricity, water and paper consumption.
Business operations of the Group do not involve
the consumption of packaging materials, while
production-related air, water, and land pollutions are
regulated under national laws and regulations. These
include, but not limited to the followings:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

° Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution

° PRC Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27—
2001)

o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC

o PRC Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
(DB44/26-2001)

o Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Pollution by Environmental Noise

RIE - HEBRELBHRE

EHESRRE
AEEBRILFEDEHRMANRE HehERE
MERRELIREER - HF HTEBEEHRE

B ETHEZI»=E BTHER  EHHUA
enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk e

A. BE

REBEME  AEREEENHRDEERERER T
B KRER AKRENEHEETSLFER
BEME MELAEEBENZER - KEEHI52A
REFEARERAME - BRETRR

s HERRERE

o HBERRIBSRFIAE

o HEIKE)SAYBERIRE(DB44/27-2001)

o HBKIFREAE

o HREIK)F LY R E(DB44/26-2001)

o  HEEREYISRRENAE

o HEREISRMIAA
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

72

Environmental (Continued)

Since the Group’s operations consist mainly of
property development with construction work
outsourced, it does not have a material consumption
of natural resources and the production of hazardous
wastes. However, sales office and administration
office may inevitably produce non-hazardous
waste and consume fuels. Therefore, the Group
places the highest priority on reduction of the non-
hazardous wastes and limitation of gas consumption
by vehicles. Currently, the Group is not aware of
actual environmental risks on the Group’s business,
strategies and financial performance. Since the scope
for this Reporting Period has further expanded
to other medical-related operations in the form of
dental service business, an increase of electricity
consumption and GHG emission is inevitable
compared to the last reporting period.

The Group understands that electricity and water
consumed, as well as medical wastes generated in its
business operations, contribute to the consumption
of natural resources and poses a minor risk to public
health and the environment. Therefore, electricity
and water saving initiatives were highly promoted
and implemented in its workplace, medical wastes
were treated cautiously according to the Integrated
wastewater discharge standard (GB8978) of the PRC
and the Group’s guidelines during the Reporting
Period. Details of electricity and water saving initiatives
and handling of medical wastes are discussed below
in the corresponding sections.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was
16,143.75m>.

FOERRRERGER
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions 1. HHKY
() Greenhouse Gas Emissions )  BREREEHM

Scope of Greenhouse Emission Total Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tCO.e) (in percentage)
BmeE
(LAWE = 1L fx BHEME
AERBHENEE HERUORIR g2 (LB Z L)
Scope 1
EE1
Direct Emission Combustion of LPG and natural 7.55 9%
BEHNR gas in stationary sources
BRI A RRERAR
iy
Combustion of petrol in mobile 78.00
sources
B ENIR e Uh R
Scope 2
HiE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 840.40 89%
I BERR SNIEEE ]
Purchased Town Gas 0.69
SR R AR
Scope 3
E3
Other Indirect Emission Paper waste disposed at landfills 6.52 2%
HAtb B HE L HEREENAEEED
Electricity used for processing 9.44
fresh water and sewage
ARBRERKKFKEET
Total 942.60
st
Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to MaE1 . BREBEHBAN  BEREFR2REAERXS
Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing REZMAERARGIEANER MR8
Rules and their referred documentation Mgk — 4+ R E M A F -
as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.
Note 2:  Electricity consumed in Hong Kong was W2 REBOAEEHEBEAPEENEGRA
provided by CLP, with latest emission ARt —E - —FHEHERETA
factor of 0.37 in 2021. 0.37 °
Note 3:  Emission factor for South China is MaE3 . EEHEORE T AP EEERET

0.6101 issued by Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC 2019.

RZE—NFAMHARI0.6101
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

74

Environmental (Continued)

1.

Emissions (Continued)

()

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

There was 942.60 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases
(mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group’s
operation in the Reporting Period. The
annual emission intensity was 0.06 tCO.e/
m?2 and 2.89 tCO.e/employee, which
represents a 52.7% increase and 0.5%
decrease from the previous reporting
period respectively.

The Group strives to continually improve
its sustainability practices and reduce
its overall emissions and impacts on the
environment. Regarding air emissions,
due to the Group’s business nature,
it considers the relevant air emissions
generated as insignificant. However, it still
pays attention to the limited air emissions
that are generated by their electricity
consumption and vehicles. The Group
strives to mitigate the energy consumption
as much as possible.

Consequently, the Group is not aware
of any significant issues on energy
consumption and disposal.

Additionally, in the aspect of GHG
emissions, the Group is aware that the
principal GHG are generated from the
petrol consumption of vehicles (Scope
1) and purchased electricity (Scope 2).
Hence, the Group has adopted the various
measures to mitigate the direct GHG
emissions from petrol consumption in its
daily operation.

BFHERRRERGEE)
A, BEG
1.  HHY#E)
() BEREHMKE)
REMEEE - AEBMHEERLER
Q4260 —E L IREENRERE(XE
BZEix Fak—EtR) - FEH

MEER0.06M — AL EER T KK
280 A LIXEE A - B EEHRSH
HA53 B4 9N52.7% KR 4°0.5% e

AEBBIRBHEERAFEERE
B RO EBERENERHRBEERNE
- -EBERPRIE  ERIEHOME
g AEERRAELNHEBERER
ETK - EBENE@ITELERERER
EEMBERER AEEBEE2NKE

RERERERK -

Rt - NEE A7 EEA A B R B 7%
N B EAMHE -

gSh - EREREHENIH - AEEE
BETERERBELBER TVARER
(BEENRIMNEE S (BE2) - Bt - A&
BEXBRZEERBRDEREEETE
FATHMELNERBEREHM -
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

()

(i)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

The Group has developed preventive
measures for contractors to better
manage the emission on sites.
Contractors are also required to set up
on-site preventive measures for emissions
control. For property management, the
Group has installed a mechanical exhaust
system in underground parking lots. The
system measures the concentrations
of the gaseous emission to ensure the
concentrations are maintained within the
safety range stipulated in the standard that
required by the Group.

With the above measures, the Group
aims to achieve a 5% reduction in overall
emissions intensity in 10 years, or by
2032.

Direct Emission

A total of 29,326 litres of petrol, 1,465.6
cubic meter of town gas, and 1,512.5 kg
of LPG was used for the Group-owned
vehicles and canteen of different offices
during the Reporting Period, contributing
to 52.71 kg of nitrogen oxides, 0.43 kg
of sulphur oxides, 4.75 kg of particulate
matter emissions and 85.55 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent emission.

Electricity

In total, twelve office operations in China
and one office operation in Hong Kong
are included in the scope of this report.
The electricity consumption by the thirteen
offices of the Group was 1,382,058.9 kWh,
with 11,640 kWh consumed in Hong Kong
Office and 1,370,418.9 kWh consumed in
the twelve offices in China, which account
for an energy intensity of 85.61 kWh/m?
and 4,239.44 kWh/employee. The Group
encourages staff to adopt energy saving
measures through reminders and email.
For example, by switching off unnecessary
lighting and electronic appliances.

With the above measures, the Group aims
to achieve a 5% reduction in electricity
consumption intensity in 10 years, or by
2032.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A. REGE
1.  Emissions (Continued) 1.  HHY(E)
(iv)  Water (iv) 7k

Water consumption by the Group was
16,412.16 m3, with water intensity of
1.0 m3/m? and 50.34 m%/employee. It is
noteworthy that the water consumption
figures for five out of the thirteen offices
was unavailable as it was managed by
the management company of the office,
however the consumption of said locations
were insignificant.

Since GHG emissions from water
consumption are insignificant, the Group
has not set any reduction targets.
Nevertheless, the Group reminds its staff
to reduce water usage whenever possible.

Hazardous Waste

The business operation of the Group
generated 45.30 kg of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period. The
hazardous waste production intensity
was calculated at 2.81 g/m?, or 138.96 g/
employee. Hazardous waste generated
consists mainly of used batteries and
computer hardware. Hazardous waste is
collected by registered recyclers for further
handling and processing.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s waste was mainly generated
from its construction sites and office,
including non-hazardous waste types
such as construction waste, food waste
in the canteen and paper in the office.
All the construction work of the Group
are outsourced to contractors but the
Group by no means to turn a blind eye
on their operation. The Group has set
up monitoring system to identify areas
of improvements. A transparent and
verifiable waste recording system is set up
on each property to enable performance
monitoring.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

1.

Emissions (Continued)

(iv)

V)

Water (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste (Continued)

To promote waste separation at source,
waste streams are made readily available.
Procedure for reduction of construction
waste and office waste by implementing
arrangement of recycling of office waste
management.

A total of 11,387.64 kg of non-hazardous
waste, mainly food waste from the
canteen of the Group’s operation, was
generated in the reporting period. A total
1,357.6 kg of paper has been used for
daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. With
the Group’s effort in enhancing paper
recycling, 67.3 kg of wastepaper has been
collected by licensed recycling company.

Business Air Travels

During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any business air travel
because of Covid-19 pandemic. No
GHG emission has contributed by air
travel. However, the Group will strive to
reduce business air travel in the future by
using teleconference meetings and other
electronic communication.
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RE HEBRERWE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)
2. Use of Resources
Energy

The Group aims to minimise environmental
impacts in its operations by identifying and
adopting appropriate measures in its operations.
All contractors are notified to implement
such policies and measures on resource
utilisation. Regular review is conducted on
its energy objectives and targets to seek
continuous improvement in the Group’s energy
performance. During designing and planning
phases of its properties, preference is given to
energy saving building materials and equipment.

Energy Consumption

The total energy consumption by the Group was
1,677,519 Kilowatt-hour (“kWh”), with an overall
energy intensity of 5,145.76 kWh per employee
during the reporting period, representing a
25.5% increase from the previous reporting
period.
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Direct/indirect

Consumption

Consumption

energy sources Usage (unit) (kWh) Energy intensity
HIEE HEE
HiEBEERRR A% (1) (FEE) BEREE
Petrol For vehicles 29,326 Litre 259,891.1
i B 29,3267t
LPG For canteen 1,5612.5 kg 21,082.1
BRALAHE g 1,512.5F 7%
Town Gas For canteen 1,465.64 m® 14,487 1
ERMRE BEE 1,465.643L 75 K
Electricity For office 1,382,058.9 kWh 1,382,058.9
operations
£ WREEE 1,382,058.9F FL B
Total 1,677,519 5,145.76 kWh/
employee
@t 1,677,519 5,145.76
TR/ A

Note: Conversion factors were made reference to IEA
Energy Statistics Manual and 2006 IPCC Guidelines
for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.

Use of Resources (Continued)
Water

Freshwater consumed for the Group’s daily
business operations is supplied by municipal
freshwater supplier. The Group did not consume
significant amount of water through business
activities and the water consumption was
considered minimal. The Group has set up
procedures for water conservation measures.

There is a monitoring system for overlooking
the water consumption in the construction site.
The Group has incorporated various water
conservation apparatus in its building designs,
including central water reuse facilities and water-
saving toiletries to efficiency manage water
consumption from cradle to grave.

Packaging Material

The Group’s businesses did not involve any
use of packaging materials; hence no data nor
information is presented in this report.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

The Group has strictly complied with all national
and local laws and regulations in relation to
environmental protection and the use of natural
resources during the Reporting Period. To
alleviate its impact on the environment and
natural resources, the Group has followed
green building concept in the development of
real estate. The Group will continue to adhere
to the safety, harmony and green development
concept and make unremitting efforts to create
a resource-saving and eco-friendly corporation
in the future.

The Group has established and implemented
various controlling and mitigation schemes. In
particular, the Group’s real estate development.
All projects are required to demonstrate
environmentally responsible building practices.
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RE - HERER

wE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

3.

80

The Environment and Natural Resources
(Continued)

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment (Continued)

By committing to green concept, the project
demonstrates a comprehensive improvement
on various environmental criteria including
site plan, water efficiency, energy and
atmosphere, material and resources, and indoor
environmental quality.

Noise Mitigation

The Group strive to reduce noise pollution
at every construction site. For short-
term impacts caused by the works during
construction, the Group controls noise to
within established standards and guidelines
through implementation of mitigation measures
such as the use of temporary noise barriers
and silenced construction equipment to
reduce noise generation. The contractors are
required to implement noise control measures
in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

Climate Change
Significant Climate-Related Issues

Climate change poses a huge threat to all
businesses, and that of the Group’s is not an
exception. The Group recognises that extreme
weather events may negatively impact daily
operations and has accordingly prepared
contingency plans for these situations. In cases
of extreme weather such as typhoons or heavy
rain, the Board shall execute procedures to
resume and maintain operations as soon as
possible.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

4.

Climate Change (Continued)
Significant Climate-Related Issues (Continued)

However, the Group views climate change not
only as a risk to mitigate, but also an opportunity
for the Group to transition into a more
environmentally friendly enterprise. To echo with
international concerns on climate change, the
Group will begin assessing the short-, medium-
and long-term materiality of climate-related
risks and opportunities for the Group. Currently,
the Group has introduced green design and
building process for the real estate development
projects to mitigate the effects of environmental
and other destructive hazards. The Group
will continue to monitor the impact of climate
change that potential will bring to the Group
in the coming year and react in a responsible
manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEBRERWE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

B. Social

1. Employment and Labour Practices

()

Employment

The Group had a total number of 311
employees as of 31 March 2022, in which

all of them are located in the PRC.

FOEERREGE
B. #g
1. ERRFEFLER
0 &R

BE-_ZTZ-_—_F#=A=+—H8 ~&£H
HE31HEE  HRPBEIIE-

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY TYPE

REMNEDHWEESEY
Full Time Part Time
. Y
EX (4, 1.3%)

(307, 98.7%)

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY GENDER
BHERE T HESAR

Male
Eslis
(130, 41.8%)

Female
g
(181, 58.2%)

82

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited °

TOTAL WORKFORCE BY CATEGORY
BERETHESAR

Senior
Management
BREIEE
(44 14.2%)

Middle
Management
hAREERE
(52, 16.7%)

%

Frontline and
Other Employees
RIAR R EAME T
(215, 69.1%)
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R ARERRE

The Group has formulated policies in
determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees in accordance
with local employment laws. Apart from
the basic leaves, such as annual leaves,
employees are also entitled to additional
leaves, such as maternity leave, childcare
leave, marriage leave, and compassionate
leave, if such leave periods are granted in
accordance with the relevant employment
laws, and leaves are in accordance with
the provision of the local employment
regulations.

The Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance in relation to
employment during the reporting period.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) 0 1EEGE)
TOTAL WORKFORCE BY AGE
RERETNESHEH
56 or above
563 M £ 18-25
(16, 5.1%) (68, 21.9%)
46-55
(46, 14.8%)
36-45 26-35
(72, 23.1%) (109, 35.1%)
Work Policies TEERER
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) 0 1EEGE)

Competitive Compensation and Benefits
Package

Employees are entitled to basic salary
with various allowance as per their job
positions, age and extra work hours, year-
end bonus on performance. Basic social
insurance including pension, medical,
work-related injury, unemployment
compensation and maternity. Various
types of leave are provided including
annual, sick, work-related injury, marriage,
maternity and compassionate leave. The
Group regularly reviews employees’ salary
together with business growth and market
price.

Internal Promotion

Internal promotion and job opportunities
are offered to existing employees and
selection is based on the monthly reviewed
work capability, attitude, and quality of
work of the employees on a point scoring
system. Employees are encouraged to
discuss their goals in job advancement
and career development.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

()

Employment (Continued)
Equal Opportunity and Diversity

A diverse and skilled workforce is
crucial for its business. The Group is
committed to create and maintain an
inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture. It is dedicated to providing equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment
and maintaining workplace that are free
from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual based
on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.
The Group also strives to ensure that
complaints, grievances and concerns,
including whistleblowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group
has zero tolerance on sexual harassment
or abuse in the workplace of any form.

Employee Communication

No major activities were carried out due
to the pandemic. However, the Company
does occasional packed catering for its
workers and carry out mini activities for
workers to interact.
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RE HEBRERWE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices

(Continued)
(i) Employment (Continued)
Turnover

A total number of 118 employees left
the Group in 2021/22, contributing to
overall turnover rate of 37.9%. The annual
turnover rates (categorized by gender and
age groups) in the reporting period are as
follows:

Staff Turnover Rate by Gender

BURSTHEERKR LR

Female

hoglid

Male
B

254% 255% 25.6% 25.7% 25.8% 25.9% 26.0% 26.1% 26.2% 26.3%

FOERRRERGER
B. &)

1. FEERETERGE)

1E1E (4B)

EERKLE

R-_ZTE——/——FF £B5118%E
EAAER BEEEREERALEXA
37.9% - RREENFEEREERKLER
(BRI K F 4B RIEI D) T -

()

Staff Turnover Rate by Category
BRERE D NEERKLLR

——

‘H

0.0%  5.0%

Frontline and
Other Employees
AR EMET

Middle
Management
FRERE

Senior
Management
ERERE

100% 15.0% 200% 25.0% 30.0% 35.0%

Staff Turnover Rate by Age
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56 or above
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(i)

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed to provide
and maintain a safe and healthy
working environment for the benefit of
our employees, subcontractors, and
suppliers. It has set out clear terms for
project management approaches and
commitments to health and safety. The
Group reviews the policy annually, or
when incidents arising determine a need
to review, to ensure that the procedure
remains relevant and appropriate.

The Health and Safety system includes
main-contractor and subcontractor
responsibilities, and the management’s
commitments to safety and health. The
policy also states the requirement of
sub-contractor to provide sufficient and
appropriate resources at the site. The
system is reviewed at intervals, or when
there is a change of operations that
requires other sources and personnel
management.

In addition, the Group has monitored the
contractors to ensure if enough various
occupational health training programmes
which aim to protect workers from health
hazards relevant to the construction
industry such as noise, dust, toxic gases
and vapours has provided.

The Group haven’t collected any work
injury figure from the contractors.
The Group is not aware of any non-
compliances during the year.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety (Continued) (i) (EERFHELE(E)
For the internal management during the R ERFNABERFR - REBERE
reporting period, the Group did not note REMNBEARREZEZEEHANERKR
any cases of material non-compliance ERED - WERKETER MG EE
in relation to health and safety laws and ER  BREATBERNUATSE :

regulations, and strictly complied with
national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the followings:

Occupational health and safety laws and regulations complied in different regions
TR ENBERRERZZERZER

Hong Kong The PRC

&8 il

° Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance ° Law of the PRC on the Protection of

o BEZEREEED Production Safety

e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance o  HFEAETRHEERE

o ([EEFEKD e Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
of the PRC

o FEITERRIGH

2021/22 Occupational Health and Safety Data
SEC- /o RERRRTHE

Work related fatality 0
ETEREMILTHAE

Fatality Rate 0.00%
TR

Work injury cases >3 days 0
T{5>3H

Work injury cases <3 days 0
T15<38H

Lost days due to work injury 0
ETEEEXTIER
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RIE - HEBRELBHRE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EERZIELGE
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety (Continued) (i) (EERFHELE(E)

2020/21 Occupational Health and Safety Data
TECR /T -FREGRREAZTIHE

Work related fatality 0
ETEREMILTH AR

Fatality Rate 0.00%
TR

2019/20 Occupational Health and Safety Data
ZE-NCEFREERRERIHE

Work related fatality 0
ETEREMILTH A

Fatality Rate 0.00%

A
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EEREZIEHGE)
(Continued)
(i) Development and Training (i)  EERIF
The Group provides comprehensive career TEBAEEREBE>EMNBERRE KIE
development and training to employees. e FINETEBEABEE kK&
Training topics include orientation, anti- 5o BERREEZR A HERE
corruption, occupational health and safety, HMBEEANRER - R®EEM[ - 170
fire safety, professional medical technology FHIEE(HEEBE54.66%)EX T 15
lectures, and content management. During I BREE(BREIAREZEFINES)
the Reporting Period, 170 employees, K19 =3I R 8RR 2.08 [N o

or 54.66% of all employees received
training, and the average training hour per
employee (inclusive of employees who did
not receive training) was 2.08 hours.

Average training hours per employee

BEEEVIIRIEH
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Middle
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FREER

Frontline and
Other Employees
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i
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Percentage of employees trained

ZIEREEDH
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

Social (Continued)

1.

Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(iv)

Labour Standard

The Group strictly complies with local
laws and does not provide employment
to children before they reach the legal age
to work as defined by the International
Labour Organisation (“ILO”) Convention
and local regulations in Hong Kong and
China.

The Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Group strictly complies
with local laws and conducts recruitment
based on all the employment requirements
in each respective. Personal data will
be collected during the recruitment
process to assist in the selection
of suitable candidates. The Human
Resources Department will also ensure
the compliance at all operations and
facilities by checking original identification
cards upon recruitment. If violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of
circumstances. The Group also sources
its candidates through legal and legitimate
sources. The HR department reviews each
applicant’s resumes to ensure they are
of appropriate legal age before engaging
them for interview.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices 2. &EEH
() Supply Chain Management () (REEELE

92

The Group has established a vendor
performance assessment and monitoring
system to provide the Purchasing
Department with a structured and
systematic way to assess suppliers and
sub-contractors. A comprehensive,
impartial and transparent bidding
procedure has been developed for
selecting building materials, equipment
and services from contractors or suppliers.
All contractors and suppliers are expected
to meet environmental and occupational
health and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during
the tendering procedure. Supplier and
sub-contractor evaluations are based
on product quality, ability in meeting
contractual requirements, previous project
references and delivery capability. Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

Suppliers and sub-contractors’
assessments will be conducted
periodically, and the results of the
evaluations, both positive and those
needing improvement, will be promptly
shared with the vendors. Suppliers who
consistently fail to meet the Group’s
requirements may be subjected to
suspension for future supply.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
engaged 43 suppliers for office supplies,
cleaning supplies, food ingredients, online
recruiting services, hotel arrangements,
and drinking water. All of them were from
various provinces in the PRC.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

Social (Continued)

2.

Operating Practices (Continued)

(i)

Product Responsibility
Service Quality Assurance

In order to ensure service quality is being
maintained, the Group has implemented
the quality policy and code of conduct
as internal guide for quality control. The
Group is dedicated to deliver quality
products and services which satisfy the
needs and requirements of our customers
and interested parties by continually
improving the effectiveness of the quality
management system.

The Group has also established a set
of procedures in handling customers’
feedbacks or complaints in a professional
manner. Upon receiving product or
service-related enquiries or complaints,
reviews will be conducted immediately.
After complaints are settled, customers’
satisfaction will be evaluated. The Group
has received no complaints about the
products with regards to health and
safety, advertising, labelling or any privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and method of redress during
the reporting period.

Consumer Data Protection

The Group respects the values and rights
of customers’ information assets, and
strictly complies with the customers’
information security management systems
and standards. In order to provide high-
quality services, we are determined to
strengthen the protection of customers’
privacy. In addition, the Group adheres
to the PRC Cyber Security Law. It has
implemented firewall, anti-virus, and anti-
spam solutions for our IT systems to
prevent leakage of confidential information,
which are upgraded constantly.

There has been no complaints on the
Group’s services regarding the areas of
Data Protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HBREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRRERGEE)
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices (Continued) 2. EEBEHGE)
(i) Anti-corruption (i) KREZ

The Group has zero toleration on
any corruptions, frauds and all other
behaviours violating work ethics. It values
and upholds integrity, honesty and
fairness in the way it conducts businesses.
As spelt out in the internal control manual
and project bidding management system,
the Group has formulated related policies
on the control and prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in
each business operation and trade activity.

All employees should be alert for
occurrences of fraud and be aware that
unusual transactions or behaviours could
be indications of fraud. Employees will be
subjected to disciplinary actions if they
are found being engaged in fraudulent
activities. Disciplinary actions include
termination of an individual, or prosecution
to the appropriate law enforcement and/
or regulatory agencies for independent
investigation, depending on the situation.

Whistleblowing Mechanism:

In order to further maintain and achieve
the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group
has formulated a reporting procedure.
While management is responsible for
detecting irregularities, employees are also
encouraged to report fraudulent activity
immediately to the Head of Department, or
where that is not possible, to the Director
when they discover or suspect such
activity. Whistle-blowing policies were
implemented to all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct, malpractices
or fraudulent activities. Reported cases
shall be investigated by the Group’s Audit
Committee and executive management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)
(i) Anti-corruption (Continued)
Whistleblowing Mechanism: (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not note any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, including but not limited to
the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap
201)”. The Group did not work with any
contractors or suppliers who failed to
comply with the laws, regulations and the
Group’s policies.

Anti-corruption Training:

To ensure that its employees familiar with
anti-corruption topics such as identifying
bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, the Group had carried out anti-
corruption training during the Reporting
Period for over 114 employees, with an
average training hour of 1.02 hours per
employee.

3. Community Investment

As the business continues to evolve and
develop, the group has remained steadfast in its
commitment to make a positive change in the
communities. The Group firmly believes in its role
in invigorating the communities through sharing
its prosperity. Understanding that different
segments of the communities all have their own
distinct challenges, the outreach programs have
been developed to address the particular needs
of each group.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

Looking forward to the coming years, the Group is fully
engaged in promoting sustainability culture into its business
operation, practice and daily behaviour to its employees
and contractors. Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable development
management approach that values stakeholder’s
expectations.
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  [f{#% - B¢ X FTIRIR - H @ RERHmEIESI R

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page
—RIEBERBARENERS it BR

Environmental
RIB

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEAT : BBy
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 71
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
—MRIKEE FHERIORERBHN - KR THOEES - BERESEEYH
EEEN : @BK: K 0)BFTHETAGBEAZENEBER LR
IR EHL -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 75
RASEAE DR IRAT A PR R A R ARRR R B -
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. 73
BASEE IR IRAL.2 BERBREMER(WMER)ZE -
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 76
RASEAE IEIRA1.3 FEXEEREYREER (MER)EE -
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 76
BASEAE IR 1RA .4 FEAEEEZEYEER (WEREE -
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 74
RBAE BURIRA1.5 R AUBE PE R E VIR M R PRI AR o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 76

RS 4 ARIE1RAT1.6

reduction initiatives and results achieved.

WREEEENETREYNE  REELENEELABKR -
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  [Mfi# - B{ X FTIRIR - H @ RERHEIESI Rl (@)

(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—RERBRERIER Rt =P/

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[BHEA2: ERER

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 78
other raw materials.

— MR ERERER(BIERR - KREMEMEDBUER -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 78

B E IR 1RA2.1 RERESNEER AHEEEREEEREE

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 76

RABAE BUEIRA2.2 BREKEREE -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 78

RASEAE IR 1RA2.3 M ge IR E AR E B R PTG ARR o

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 79
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

RS E IR 1RA2.4 et SKEGE R OR BRI B EA MR - AR ARG 8 RATEK
o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, 79
with reference to per unit produced.

RSB BURIRA2.5 HXDPTABEMHNEER(MER) BEEBMGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 : BERXAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment 79
and natural resources.

—MRIKEE BIREITABIRERRANEREKERZENBUR

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 79
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BB AE R TRAS.1 M ER RS HRBERRARERNEAZERORREREHATEN
78 -
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APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  [Mfi# - B{ X FTIRIR - H @ RERHEIESI Rl (@)
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—REBERBERERIER S =N

Aspect A4: Climate Change
BEA4 : RIZE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 80
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—MRIRER BRI REHEERAIREEHBITAEEZENEARKEEEENR
% o

KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 80

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

A HEAE BB IZEAS A HMEE R EH B ITAEEFENEARGREBEE - REHTT
B

Social

e

Employment and Labor Practices

BREKREIER

Aspect B1: Employment
[BEB1 : EfE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 83
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
— R EBEFHEFERE  BEREF  IERE  BY - FEES - 2
£~ RIEBIAREMFBRBHE : @QBEK - ROETHEITABE
AT EOEBERERRIINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 82
geographical region.

BSEE I 1EB.1 RUER - EERE - FiRER KRB D HESEE -

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 86

RS E R 1EB1.2 RUER - FRARIRMMREDNIES AL E
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(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—RIFBERBREENER it =P/

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[BHEB2: RREZE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 87
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

— AR ER FARHZ2TERERREEEMEBENBEN : @BX : Xb)
BTHETAREATZENEBEZZRROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 88

R IR EB2.1 ETITHRABKLEK -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 88

RS E M IE1EB2.2 ETBERTIIERS -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 87
they are implemented and monitored.

RS E R 13B2.3 M PTER ANV B SR (R R B 2 24516 - AT REE R 5% o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

FEEB3 : &ERE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 90
duties at work. Description of training activities.

— AR ER FRARARERITIEBEN MM R RAERIBUR - HlFIES -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 90
category.

RS AR IR EB3.1 RUERREEERIEISNZIEEB DL ©

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 90
employee category.
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EREZEREBARATF o 2021/22 Fi

99



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HBREBRSE

APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX  [Mfi# - B{ X FTIRIR - H @ RERHEIESI Rl (@)
(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—REBERBERERIER S =N

Aspect B4: Labor Standards
fEEB4 : % T%E|

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 91
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labor.

— PR ER R IEETHRHSTH : @K ROETHEITABEAZE
AERERE RIROIFE R} -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 91
and forced labor.

SR IR EBA.A g R E SN ERARRE T REH ST -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 91

RS E M IE1EB4.2 MR ER BN ERE BB RPTERRA P5K -

Operating Practices

EEEA

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEB5 : ftREHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 92
chain.

—RRHEER EIREEEAIRE R ERARBUE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 92

RS AE I 1RB5.1 miRE D HEREE -

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of 92

supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

RS E e 1EB5.2 Hi AR AHEEEESN - MERTERENHEREE - UKk
BRAEBHOMITRERTEA -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 92
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
RS E 5 13B5.3 Hi A N R E EREIRE Rt @R E R - A RBEH

TTRERETE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 92
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

AR A IR 1EB5.4 M EREHERRREZARRER RRENED - LRABENT
REERTTIE »
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(CONTINUED)

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—REBERBERERIER S =N

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EHEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 93
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.

— AR ER FHFRHERRRBNREREZ S BE  SEELEEEARME
RITER - (@BER  RO)ETFHETABERZENBBEROER
EVE R o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 93
safety and health reasons.

A SR 4E 5 15B6. 1 PEEXRCEXEMAEPEL 2 REREHMARKNBE DT

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how 93
they are dealt with.

BB AE I 1RB6.2 BN Em MR FEE AR EEH A -

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 93
property rights.

BB 4E 5 12B6.3 T it B 4 B T (R PE ANRR EE R AR 1B A o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 93

RS A 5 1RB6.4 HE ST RERERERRERT

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they 93
are implemented and monitored.

RS E NI 1RB6.5 HIUEBEERHMRERFLEBE - ARMBBERITRERTE °
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General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—REBERBERERIER S =N

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : KES

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 94
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— PR ER BRADTILARER - MR - HGEFRERER © @BXE © RO)ETHEITA
BERZENHEBERIERNER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 94
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RASEAE ISR BT .1 RERBAHBITASEEEREYEEENE SHARHENEE R
FAREER o

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 94
how they are implemented and monitored.

AR AE IR 1ERT .2 B S s e S R RIZ T - AR REEIT MBS 0k o

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEB8 : HEBIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 95
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.

— PR ER BRANMESLERTHRETASEMNEHENT ENBRRELERED
SEEBLERNEABR

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 95
8 4 4E IR 12B8.1 EXEREE -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 95
FAS 4B IE1EB8.2 EEISEEMBAER -
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG Lam Ping ((£#K), aged 67, has been appointed
as Chairman and an Executive Director since 1 April
2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and the General
Manager since 22 May 2020. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He has over 30 years of
property development experience since he established Pan
Hong Co., Ltd. in 1983. He was an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Pan Hong Holdings,
a sister company of the Company and the issued shares
of which are listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: P36),
from 3 January 2006 to 31 March 2020. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. and Jiangxi
Ganghua Medical Management Co,. Limited. Mr. Wong also
sits on the boards of several investment holding companies.
He was a director of Chaozhou Jinaote Sanitary Ware Ltd.

Mr. Wong completed a post-graduate course in Economics
of Science and Technology and Management from Zhejiang
University of Technology in the PRC in 2000. He holds an
honorary degree of a Doctor of Business Management from
Armstrong University in the United States of America.

Mr. Wong is one of the Controlling Shareholders. He is the
father of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director and an uncle
of Mr. Chan Kin Sang, the Non-Executive Director.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (G 1#), aged 64, became the Deputy Chairman,
and an Executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SHI is responsible
for the management of project plans, quality control,
coordination with contractors, and the management of the
Company’s subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in September 2002 and was an executive director of Pan
Hong Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC ({F £ A KR BT ¥ T 2 &F) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department of
Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under the
Ministry of Metallurgy (f& TEZE -+ =ZAE&XAQ A
(i T BZ)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an engineer
at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of Light
Industry (& T % 3= aREHF) from 1983 to 1992, where
he specialised in the structural design of buildings. Mr. SHI
subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province (BEREBMMEESEBRAF) in
the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general manager,
responsible for real estate development and technical
construction management. Between 1999 and 2002, he
was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co., Ltd. (4
TEHIN=BEFEFTAHRAR) in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

WONG Lui (£%), aged 39, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (F§ & 4L A4 8lJiE) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#EJNZE#EEFT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of JX Asia City
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan
Hong Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou
Pan Hong”, #EMN BB E FHZE AR A 7)), Hangzhou
Ganglian (f /& E: B % BB A F]) and Jiangxi Hanyun
Incubator Limited (“Hanyun Incubator’, JT78/% ¥ 7/l 22
BBR/AE]) in 2009, 2014 and 2015 respectively and was
mainly responsible for the formulation of business strategy
and the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou
Ganglian and Hanyun Incubator.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. Chan and Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and a cousin of Mr. Chan King Sang, the Non-
Executive Director.

GAO Lan (5/&), aged 56, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as an
Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(TPE T KE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (B & AX£2), in 1987 with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 20083.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department
of Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development
Co., Ltd. (FETMMHIEMZEEGRE R R]) from 1987 to
1993. She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/&
IR (M E)EE]) in 1993, acting as the director of the
chief executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (BFEIRY FEHERZEBMR A F]). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (F/E8&EREEREHA
B PR A &)) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was
the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (FA B E MR AR A 7). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (IS8 B EXBRET
‘A \]) as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before
joining the Group.

EERGREEB2EBEFE

BITEE (R
ABAER/FEIAETBEARBAHA S HKE KT
BITRETHEMEEIEEELE -

ABAEERRL L FOEMKTEZ R T RIFAITEFREE
HEREZRS

BE 565 —E-EFRNAMNALREE - BEHRTT
BHag - AT —=Ft+— P AERAEELHE
B FIXEEZEHEYR SRIR_T—TFNAT
ZHEZEIRWITESLRRERZEENE -

BEEIR-NANEFEERFBRIRIEZERB(EEKRSR
ZHIR)  BELEBM TEIFERBREE - BN
NEFERARIEM  YR-_ZZ=FERAI R _RE
R o

BRITEREREHERBEXZHEEELER - #NR—NN
TtEE-NAN=ZFHHEREETHTRIEREAR QA
FEHEREZEIEME - YR —AN=ZFMABRERL (G
E)EE  BEEEENAZTIME  HERNEERIFHE
MBEERAREFRAKLE-B SRIE_TT—FE
“ERRFHERALERETHEREDABRAREE
KiE - R-TERFE_TTNF - WAHSEHERE
[RAFIRIAELIE o 18 - EIMAREBZH - R _-TF
NFE_ZT-ZFHREIAREERAREEQFEL
MBI -

EEEREEERAT - 202122 #5105



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (Rf&4), aged 70, became the NED
on 1 April 2020. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is currently a senior partner of Messrs. Peter
K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors and Notaries. He obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Laws from the University of Hong Kong
in 1979 and a post-graduate certificate in Laws from the
same university in 1980. He has been a practising solicitor
in Hong Kong since April 1982 and has been admitted as
a Notary Public since April 1997 and a China-appointed
Attesting Officer since January 2000. Mr. Chan has also
been a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
since August 2004 and a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal
(Buildings Ordinance, Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) since February 2007.

Currently, Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive
director of China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock
code: 290) and Pak Tak International Limited (stock code:
2668), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive
director of Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8622), which is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He was a director of Guanghe Landscape
Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi (stock code:
600234) between June 2016 to October 2020, which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

In the past three years, Mr. Chan held directorships in a
number of Hong Kong and Singapore listed companies,
namely as an independent non-executive director of China
Taifeng Beddings Holdings Limited (stock code: 873) from
November 2009 to September 2017, which was delisted
from the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 19 February
2019; Tianhe Chemicals Group Limited (stock code: 1619)
from June 2014 to September 2019, which is listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and Luxking Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: BKK) from June 2005 to
October 2019, which is listed on the SGX-ST. He also acted
as a non-executive director of China Healthcare Enterprise
Group Limited (stock code: 1143) from October 2016 to
July 2017, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange; Combest Holdings Limited (stock code: 8190)
from September 2004 to January 2017, which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange; and Pan Hong Holdings from
14 August 2006 to 31 March 2020.

Mr. Chan is a nephew of Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan and a
cousin of Mr. Wong Lui, an Executive Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (#Ml), aged 57, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

HE Dingding (27T T), aged 45, became an INED on 1
August 2018. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. He has more than 15 years of extensive
experiences in capital markets, corporate finance,
investment and finance, and corporate management
through working in investment banks, advisory firms and
listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since 2005.
Mr. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited (stock code:
8275) since May 2021, the issued shares of which are
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. He was an
independent non-executive director of China Kangda Food
Company Limited, the issued shares of which were listed
on the Main Board of both the Stock Exchange and the
SGX-ST (stock codes: 834 and P74, respectively), between
August 2012 and June 2015 and Crown International
Corporation Limited (stock code: 727), the issued shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
between May and September 2021. Mr. He was a non-
executive director of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited, the issued shares of which were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3326) between
March 2017 and February 2018.

Mr. He graduated from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.
He was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.

EERGREEB2EBEFE

BAFHTES

BE 57T M- —FLANBRRBILIERNTE
Z-BELENATHNEEERRERREGZIFENERE
BB - BEEN-—NNAFE_ZTT_FHHEEME
FRZBEEEEMNKREERERE  BHAERRRNERE
ZEBNRIDERLZBREBDRAAZERERE - B _FF
=FE_ZTT)\FHE  KReBASREERAFTE
BEROABECEE-—B  BERFER  BERIFA
AMRARAE  BEEE  LHEZR EREE - -™
BEEMEES - MEEAR - NN \NFLARERTEE

PR S BMNBELR -

BTT 458 W-ZT—N\F/N\B—HKABILIERNTT
EZ -WNAEZEZES FHWZESRRERZESRH
HKE - RE-_STAFTREBRFNERBEBZIRER
7 - BRARREMARIIEMREARTS « LE/RE -
WENBERNATERNERAIsFr EEKHR - B4
B -—FRABRNAKDEEER)FRARGRNDAR
5% 8275) ZBMIEITE S - ZR B ZBBHITRMD N
RHGEM LT « BAAR-ZT——FNAZE-_T—AFN~
AHEEEFTRERRAER AR ZBYIERNITES © %
PDEZ BT R AT E R R TR AT L (RS
ADRA  834KPT4A)  WRZEZ—5HAE A HEE
TEBRBKEEBER AR ERMARSE : 727) 2B IEHTT
BE ZRARZBEBEITRONEBZATER ET - BAER
T +FZAE T \F- AHHAREEERRIE
BRERARZIENITES  ZARZEBEITRORB AT
FiR EmRH R - 3326) ©

BRAERERFIEBIEIAS EEtATRE+S
Ri o B4 TN = BEAE N A B ISE B 55 AT 15 &
B2 A ATAAL -

EEEREEERAT - 202122 £ 107



BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

WONG Ping Kuen (E & #), aged 35, became an INED
on 1 June 2020. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 10 years of experience in the accounting, finance and
investment industry. He founded Credito Capital group in
September 2015 and is currently the managing director of
each of Credito Capital Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Beijing
Credito Capital Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.,
a private company incorporated in the PRC. Between
December 2011 and July 2014, Mr. Wong worked in latia
Ltd, a company previously listed on Australian Securities
Exchange and he was responsible for its restructuring
as financial controller. He also worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to November
2011,

Mr. Wong graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree
in accounting and information system (double major).
He obtained a master of business administration degree
from Peking University, the PRC and a master of business
administration degree from National University of Singapore
in 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN Heung Ling (FR®@%), aged 63, is one of the
founders of the Group. She is the director and general
manager of the subsidiary, Sino Harbour Limited. She has
engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011 and chairlady of
the Group from July 2011 to March 2020. Ms. CHAN is the
wife of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui, one
of the Executive Directors.

LI Ming Yuan (Z87t), aged 59, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in 2004 as deputy general manager of JX Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (TFEELEEER A 7)) in
the same year.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University (LFAEEEHR KE) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and
civil construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (F8 &M LR ZEFR A F]). Mr.
LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.

QlU Si Yuan (58 2JF), aged 62, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (#
WMTERDTEAR AR (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T 2%
R ERETET) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (#iF
ARG R AR A7) as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.

LAU Ka Ho, Billy (8|= %), aged 37, has been the Group’s
financial controller since 1 August 2018.

Mr. LAU joined Pan Hong Holdings as the group financial
controller and company secretary on 31 July 2017 and
was responsible for the finance and accounting functions,
statutory compliance and corporate governance.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to
September 2012, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP
(Beijing Branch, China) from October 2012 to November
2014 and Deloitte Touche Financial Advisory Service Limited
(Shenzhen, China) from December 2014 to June 2017. Mr.
Lau is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in commence majoring in accounting, finance and
financial planning from the Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
E5E 1 +852 2218 8288 HETHER1115E
{#H : +852 2815 2239 JKLHI>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
119 to 240, which comprise the consolidated statements of
financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Refer to notes 3.6, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
Statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale of approximately RMB1,667 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022. Revenue arising from the
sale of properties held for sale is recognised at a point in
time when customers accept the properties, unless at the
time of entering into the contract, the sales and purchase
agreement satisfied the criteria for recognising revenue
over time by containing an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and the performance of
the Group does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the transfer of control of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers. The revenue
recognition is dependent on the contractual arrangements
for the sale and the laws in the relevant jurisdiction and may
require significant audit effort and management judgement.

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Reviewing the legal advice provided by the
Group’s legal advisor, including the legal advisor’s
interpretation of the applicable laws and the
implication on the assessment of the enforceability of
the right to payment;

- Assessing the competency, experience and objectivity
of the legal advisor engaged by the Group;
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R

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Our response (Continued)

- Assessing the management’s control over the point
of time at which revenue from sales of properties held
for sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding
of the management‘s control process and testing the
control on a sampling basis; and

- Reading the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, and obtaining evidence regarding the
completion and the delivery of properties, including,
but not limited to, checking to completion certificates
and delivery notices on a sampling basis, to assess
whether the criteria for revenue recognition set out in
note 3.6 to the consolidated financial statements have
been met.

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.12, 3.13, 4, 20 and 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) which together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately RMB2,051 million as at
31 March 2022.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and their
net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.
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ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Assessing the calculations of net realisable values
of properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness and
consistency of the assumptions used by management;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sampling basis,
by comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 31% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2022.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied including discount/premium, discount
rate, and yield rates i.e. a small change in the assumptions
can have a significant impact to the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Our response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Involving an auditor’s valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

B RETRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P0O4092

Hong Kong, 28 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

Z—=——

EE e ——

F=ZH=1—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥ T ARBTF T
Revenue WA 6 1,738,833 426,884
Cost of sales SHE KA (1,236,077) (257,459)
Gross profit EF 502,756 169,425
Other income and other gains and losses ~ E MU A A K E Ath Yz K 6518 6 204,813 21,893
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (35,970) (17,423)
Administrative expenses EIEEBA (59,780) (52,535)
Operating profit e ER 611,819 121,360
Finance costs =N 7 (4,689) (4,008)
Share of result of an associate JEIRESE N A A = -
Profit before income tax R} FR 18 B4 A2 F 8 607,130 117,352
Income tax expense PRSI X 9 (290,759) (66,468)
Profit for the year F R A 316,371 50,884
Other comprehensive income Hih2mE k(B R E)
(net of tax)
Items that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEEE%2ER
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of equity instruments &2 £ (B R E 2 T U 25 51 BR
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ Zi&#E T B 2 A 4 EEE
income 2,703 2,632
Revaluation surplus upon transfer "W - WERXEERE
from property, plant and equipment to WEME 2 ElhRBER
investment properties 58,500 -
Item that may be reclassified HENGKEEHRIEEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss EHAB
Exchange differences on translation of BRERINEB A B IRET 2
financial statements of foreign operations ~ [& i = %8 2,014 691
Other comprehensive income FRHEMZEKE
for the year 63,217 )52
Total comprehensive income FAEHEWREHEEE
for the year 379,588 54,207
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TFT ARBTF T
Profit/(loss) for the year LT ALTEEERER,
attributable to: (E518) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZE DN 259,119 57,544
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR M 57,252 (6,660)
316,371 50,884
Total comprehensive income RTATEEEZERREE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEDN 322,336 60,867
Non-controlling interests PP i 57,252 (6,660)
379,588 54,207
Earnings per share for profit FARQATEE AEGERNZ
attributable to the owners of BRBAALKS)
the Company during the year
(in RMB cents) 11
- Basic and diluted -BEAXKREE 10.52 2.34
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a MBI R

Asat31 March2022 R —ZE - —F=HA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥FT ARKEFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment L S 13 49,328 79,281
Investment properties B 14 1,410,742 1,127,324
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 15,863 15,155
Intangibles mLEE 16 3,126 4,592
Interest in a joint venture REEPEIER 18 = =
Financial assets at fair value through BAnBEREMER KSR
other comprehensive income ZERMEE 19 13,000 10,297
Pledged deposits EHEATER 23 11,000 5,500
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE B 26 21,415 11,538
1,524,474 1,253,687
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development R ES 20 1,658,666 1,903,272
Properties held for sale FEME 21 392,406 542,785
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT 3R IR B H A B IR TR 22 698,945 1,081,562
Tax recoverable AR EIHIE 1,909 44,297
Contract cost assets BHRNAEE 6 7,356 10,509
Pledged deposits EHERER 23 42,518 34,574
Cash and bank balances B& RIRTTA 23 291,705 299,378
3,093,505 3,916,377
Current liabilities REBAE
Accounts payable e BR K 24 30,546 33,182
Accruals and other payables FE ST FRIE M E b B A 5K I8 24 525,515 667,014
Contract liabilities GHBE 6 1,131,860 2,000,323
Provision for tax IR 309,953 108,954
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 25 142,540 240,690
Lease liabilities MEEE 30 5,704 2,465
2,146,118 3,052,628
Net current assets REEEFE 947,387 863,749
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 2,471,861 2,117,436
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a MBI &

Asat 31 March 2022 R=—F-—F=F=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥T T ARKEFT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans IRITER 25 323,450 351,350
Lease liabilities HEB®E 30 10,537 12,808
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 26 123,798 96,863
457,785 461,021
Net assets BEE 2,014,076 1,656,415
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of ARAEEE AELER
the Company
Share capital A& A 27 20,735 20,735
Reserves e 28 1,688,213 1,386,795
1,708,948 1,407,530
Non-controlling interests FERER 305,128 248,885
Total equity MR 2,014,076 1,656,415

These consolidated financial statements on page 119 to  #RFE119BEF240B LR AMBRMEREN T _F <
240 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of A= T/\BEESZZERKETE  WHUATESRE

directors on 28 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: =
Wong Lam Ping Shi Feng
SE AKX Alg
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

AREHER NEGER
Fair value
through other Non-
Share Share  Statutory comprehensive  Exchange Retained controling Total
capital premium* reserve”  income reserve® reserve’ profits* Total interests equity
BAAER
A2 ERE
kx RGEE  AERE GIGGRR  EREE SRR i FERER  ERAE
RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBO00 RMBO00  RMBOO  RMBOOO  ARMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOO0
ANREFT AREFT AREFT  AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFR
(Note 28f) - (Note 26/l (Note 28/ii)
(Hosp)  (Watom)  (Hiosi)
At 1 Apr 2020 RZZ-FFMA-A 20,735 565,212 91,509 (21,192 (14,000 726930 1,369,194 200,155 1,619,349
Transactions with owners BREAZLE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company BAARREEAZRE - = = = = 22531)  (22531) = (22531)
Capital contribution by non-controling interests ~ FEf2RR &R T & - - - S = = - 5,390 5390
- - - - - (22,531) (22,531) 5390 (17,141)
Proft{oss) for the year ERgH/ (88 - - - - - 57,544 57,544 (6660 50,884
Changes in fair value of equity instruments BALER A2 ENESE
atfair value through other comprehensive LRETE 7 DAERY
income - - - 2,682 - - 2,632 - 2,632
Exchange differences on ranglation of HERNEBIBRRL
financial statements of forsign operations ERER - - - - 691 - 691 - 691
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEhREE - - - 2,632 691 57,544 60,867 (6,660) 54,207
Transfer to statuiory reserves ERELEER - - 6,941 - - (6.941) - - -
At 31 March 2021 R-B=-£=fA=1-A 20,735 565,212 98,450 (18,560) (13,309) 705,002 1,407,530 248885 1,656,415
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

LG N 5
Fair value
through other Property Non-
Share Share  Statutory  comprehensive  revaluation  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve’  income reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
BRAAER
Afp2EbE [

k& ROER  rERE iERE  EMRE  EXGR  EREA &t FEhRE  BEER
RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBU000 RMBO00  RMBU00  RMBUO0  RMBO00  RMBU00  RMBUO0  RMB0O0
ARKEFE  ARREFL  ARETR ARETE  AREFL  ARETT  ARETL  AREFZ  ARREFR  ARETR
(Note 28(j)  (Note 26 (Note 28(iif) ~ (Note 28(iv))
(Hio80)  (Kzzal) (Hiet2efi)  (Hiz28()

A1 Aprl 2021 RZE--¥MA-H 20,735 565,212 98,450 (18,560) - (13,309) 755,002 1,407,530 208885 1656415
Transactions with onners BEEAZKS

Divicend paic to owners of the Company ERERTRAALRE 2 = = = = - (20317 (20317) - (20317)
Aoqiston of non-controling interests WiEsRER 3 = = o = & (601) (601) (519) (1,120)
Distroution to non-controling nterests WA = = = = = 3 = = (490) (490)

- - - - - - (20,918) (20,918) (1,009) (21,927)

Profitfor the year - - - - - - 259,119 259,119 57,252 316,37

Changes in fair valug of equity instruments at fair

value through other comprehensive income - - - 2,703 - - - 2,703 - 2,708
Revaluation surplus upon transfer from property,

plant and equipment to investment propertes,

net of tax - - - - 58,500 - - 58,500 - 58,500
Exchangg difirences on ransiation of fnenciel -~ ABEINEREBRR L

statements of foreign operations EizE - - - = = 2,014 = 2014 = 2014

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 2,103 58,500 2,014 259,119 322,336 57,252 379,588

- - N - - - ) - - -

Transfer to statutory reserves

At 31 March 2022 W-BZZ§ZR=+-R 2,73 565,212 187,845 (15,857) 58,500 (11,205) 953,808 1,708,048 305128 2,014,076

= The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,688,213,000  * ZERMEHALARY1,688,213,000(ZE=-—F : AR
in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated #1,386,795,0000) st ARZZE - —F=A=+—RH2Z&FEH
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022 (2021: BIRRE 2 FEEA o
RMB1,386,795,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n’\?g?iiiggilnbigiE%%

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

=T

F=ZH=1—HILFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR T AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEMELERESRE
Profit before income tax B 1575 A& A 607,130 117,352
Adjustments for: PTHIEE EH AR -
Interest income B WA 6 (3,594) (7,459)
Interest expense FEMX 7 4,689 4,008
Amortisation of intangibles | EERE 8 466 466
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BEREETE
equipment 8 12,663 6,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 8 2,570 1,341
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREEZ
equipment Was 6 = (23)
Written off of property, plant and equipment i #13  BE K& & 1 8 181 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BB AR ERESE
equipment 6 4,000 -
Impairment loss on intangibles m A EREEE 6 1,000 -
Impairment loss on properties held under B3 4 % i E B 18
development 6 18,127 -
Loss allowance of other receivables Efb U IR 2 BB 8 2,132 2,008
Net fair value gain on investment RENEREBREREMSE
properties and properties held for sale ZREEME AR ENE
upon transfer to investment properties it 6 (17,742) (23,610)
Net gain on land resumption I Hb U M 2 R B 6 (201,564) =
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries KB AR 2 8 6 = 3,008
Operating profit before working capital LIEE S EHR 2KLEET
changes 430,058 104,060
Decrease/(increase) in properties held FRERYERSEME
under development and properties (35 an)
held for sale 760,622 (154,215)
Increase in prepayments and TE A SR8 M E b i W SR8
other receivables #n (155,099) (886,816)
Decrease/(increase) in contract cost assets & LI ANEER 2/ (& 0) 3,153 (4,939)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank SRR FIRITEE SRR LD,
balances (38 Hn) 9,656 (56,187)
Decrease in accounts payable FERTBRFOR A (2,636) (1,972)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, other FERTERIE - H AR FIA &
payables and contract liabilities AHBEECRD), (787,202) 780,258
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & FrEL/(FrA)E S 258,552 (219,811)
Interest received BEUH B 3,594 7,459
Income tax paid ERFTEE (49,814) (106,343)
Net cash generated from/{used in) AR BT EL S (BTFH)
operating activities B EFEE 212,332 (318,695)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n'\’éfﬁﬁblbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥ T AREFIT
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBMELERESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BE W% - M2 NZE (29,684) (19,439)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj’i*«*%i W= NS
plant and equipment FRIE = 169
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BT R OEM), R (13,444) 189,519
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE () FELREE
investing activities JFEE (43,128) 170,249
Cash flows from financing activities BETHMEERERE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company B AR E#HE AZRE 35(c) (20,317) (22,531)
Proceeds from new bank and other loans ¥R 1T & H A B Z P15 218 35(c) 148,500 280,490
Repayments of bank and other loans EERITREMER 35(c) (274,550) (211,834)
Repayments of principal portion of lease EEHEaB ALY
liabilities 35(c) (2,736) (1,223)
Capital contribution by non-controlling IR E
interests - 5,390
Distribution to non-controlling interests MRS E L 2k (490) -
Proceed for acquisition of non-controlling Y& I p& #EE 25 P18 7k 18
interests (1,120) -
Interest paid EfTFE 35(c) (18,522) (26,647)
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEFE (BT FrEL
financing activities B2 FEE (169,235) 23,645
Net decrease in cash and RERBESEENRDFE
cash equivalents (31) (124,801)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net X 2% 2,014 739
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#IE 4 NMIREZEY
the year 92,212 216,274
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRRESEEY
the year 23 94,195 92,212
Analysis of the balances of cash and RERBESEEYERD N
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances B& KIRTTAE 291,705 299,378
Less: restricted bank balances W R HIRITAEER (197,510) (207,166)
94,195 92,212

126 Ssino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries (together with the Company, known
as the “Group”) are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 119 to
240 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which collectively includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2022 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 28
June 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F - —F =HA=+—HIF F/Z

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the HKICPA which are relevant to the
Group’s operations and effective for its consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 April 2021.

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Reform — Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to COVID-19 Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

None of these new HKFRSs has a material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior period.

The Group has not early applied any new HKFRSs
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

The following new HKFRSs which are potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current?

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies?
HKFRS Practise
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates?

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to Proceeds before Intended
HKAS 16 Use!

Amendments to Amendments to HKAS 37,
HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1,
to HKFRSs 2018— HKFRS 9, lllustrative
2020 Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 411

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
(2020) Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023
g The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the

sale or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has concluded that the application of these
amendments will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEHEREKAH/ME

combination (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to
the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations
using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition
of a business and control is transferred to the
Group. In determining whether a particular set
of activities and assets is a business, the Group
assesses whether the set of assets and activities
acquired includes, at a minimum, an input and
substantive processes and whether the acquired
set has the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised
in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the
non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEHEREKAH/HE

combination (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and
each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to
such non-controlling interests even if this results
in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control of
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (i) power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to
variable returns from the investee; and (i) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Joint arrangement

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities of
the arrangement to the group and at least one
other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4

Joint arrangement (Continued)

The Group classifies its interest in a joint
arrangement as either:

- Joint venture: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

- Joint operation: where the Group has both
the rights to assets and obligations for the
liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interest in a
joint arrangement, the Group considers:

- The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangement
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interest in a joint
venture using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint venture’s net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
venture are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in a joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Group.

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESBERMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.6 Revenue recognition 3.6 WARER

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the goods or service may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. Where the contract contains
a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

For revenue from sale of properties and pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties in the ordinary course of business,
customers obtain control of the properties when
the properties are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised when the
customers accept the properties. There is no
other goods or services agreed to be provided
in the contract and in practice. There is generally
only one performance obligation. Payments are
usually received in advance and recognised
as contract liabilities. Costs such as sales
commission directly attributable for obtaining a
pre-sale property contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract cost assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease terms.

Chemistry, manufacturing and control (‘CMC”)
related services income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Consultancy service income is recognised when
the services are provided.

Revenue from the rendering of dental services
is recognised when the services have been
rendered given that such dental services are
generally completed within a short period of
time.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other 20.0%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20.0%

Buildings 2.5%

Leasehold improvement 25.0%

or over the lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the consolidated financial
statements until they are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment, intangibles, right-of-use
assets, and investments in subsidiaries and a
joint venture to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset or cash-generating unit (“CGU”),
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing
its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases; and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date gave a lease term less
than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 #HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
land and buildings held for own use, they are
carried at depreciated cost.

The Group accounts for land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREAEA ()
Lease liability HEARE
The lease liability is recognised at the present HEafRYINEERRBBX N 2BER
value of the lease payments that are not paid RERERER - HENRDEREERASH
at the date of commencement of the lease. K (HZ T R A Z M T ) EITEIR © WX
The lease payments are discounted using the MEEEKGETF - AREEFERAEE 2L
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can SERFE -

be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the THNIER A ER IR A 2 HEBAARERE
underlying asset during the lease term that are BEERMZNFERABENE : ()BT
not paid at the commencement date of the lease FOREREWEEEE : )\ FEABBHZ
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed EH A EFE 2 FBHEERNREVARIE S
payments less any lease incentives receivable; FE) (iR EARBRSEEERESRSS
(ii) variable lease payments that depend on an B 23R8 (VWBEREEZITHEE - AR
index or a rate, initially measured using the index FAAAGERBERITEZERRE 0 R(V)MHHEE
or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts [ AT AT B ERERIETHE - RIEHEZ
expected to be payable by the lessee under BN

residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the REBBEE  AEBZRUTHAAGEHEES

Group measures the lease liability by: f& :

()  increasing the carrying amount to reflect () HEINREBEARMEESEZHNE
interest on the lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the (i) BMOBREEURMEL ZHAENK &
lease payments made; and

(i)  remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect (i) EHFESEEE AR EREFTEK
any reassessment or lease modification, or HEgNRBEETELREEHEN
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease Koo

payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 #HE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of
the lease liability to reflect the payments to make
over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when
the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except
the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the
carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the
revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining lease term. If the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any
further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the
contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount
commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the
modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease, the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate
applicable on the modification date, with the
right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. With the exception to which the
practical expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions applies, if the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both
the carrying amount of the lease liability and
right-of-use asset are reduced by the same
proportion to reflect the partial or full termination
of the lease with any difference recognised in
profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects
the amount of the renegotiated payments over
the renegotiated term, with the modified lease
payments discounted at the rate applicable on
the modification date and the right-of-use asset
is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10 HE (&)
Accounting as a lessor EBHAANZ S EE
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever REEBRFBHEEEREENBARID RAR
the terms of the lease transfer substantially FERER FTAEAE  BZSEHESE AR
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the EHE - MEHMHEE D EAKCEHEE -

leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is KERE 2 S WARBRBHRANRESRER
recognised in profit or loss on a straight- BHRER  NBERTHK2HERS S zE
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. REERATNEHEEE 2 REE - WikH
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and HUBESEER AR -

arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration HEREOSEEL BN RBE G R EMSE
for a lease that was not part of the original terms — B RERE B KERMBEEEBIIAR - &
and conditions of the lease are accounted for BEFTEM B HRGKEEHEBRTERHHE
as lease modifications. The Group accounts for EANE  HENZSBERSBR THBANRESE
a modification to an operating lease as a new H B — RGEEBRBA o

lease from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining

lease term.
3.11 Financial Instruments 311 €@ITH

(i)  Financial assets () =Z=HEE
A financial asset (unless it is a trade BRSEERRMENXD ZEBBERFN - &
receivable without a significant financing T ERE  cRHEEARAAREFE -
component) is initially measured at EMELIEEARBERERR(EA
fair value plus, for an item not at fair REREBERFSIR]) CIERME)MEHEE
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), NBITEEBEBEIRIKNAE - RBEEK
transaction costs that are directly BMEKD 2K ERERT T ER 5 ERET
attributable to its acquisition or issue. =

A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

@

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. The measurement category
into which the Group classifies its debt
instruments is as follows:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

FESTHTBERME (&)

3.11 €@ T E(E)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued) () =Z=HEEGE)
Equity instruments RETA
On initial recognition of an equity RIS HERIIERFIEEE Ak 2 RER
investment that is not held for trading, the B ASEEIUATHEMREERNH
Group could irrevocably elect to present HEmEEFREINREAABEZEEE
subsequent changes in the investment’s B ZEEBDNRBEBREEL - AR
fair value in other comprehensive income. BEREMEEKRSEZREREZA
This election is made on an investment- REFE REWAREBEFER @ B
by-investment basis. Equity investments FERR B A RN KR EB D IR E KA 2 I
at FVOCI are measured at fair value. B o E bz & BB FRENE A4 2K
Dividend income are recognised in =ER - BYEENHEEZE= - 18
profit or loss unless the dividend income HEtWRETESEAZAAEBERER
clearly represents a recovery of part R-mAnBEEE - RERMNEWAR
of the cost of the investments. Other BB HER -
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

(i)  Impairment loss on financial assets (i) ZBEEZHEESE

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
contract cost assets and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following
bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for contract cost assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a
default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties.

3. IEEFBERBEG@E

3.11 €@ T E(E)

(ii)

EHEEZ B EER ()

AEBRE -
BEZIEERBRE AEEMN -

fi g AR @30 R - Rl @l
BRIEAL

lﬁ/\ﬁ—lsaﬁﬂ SR A A 15 5 Al
{/E}D]‘JHFFE °
EREUTELR TAEEREREE

BEHRELD  ()VERATKAEERE
BEERERRERERWMFE)FET
BHZERTRAAEERHINEEER
% Qe EEAMEE0R - FRIE
AEEEREREENERARERZE
MBRERSEE - BItERIE ©

ERLE-HEAZHEEMHHEREEZMA
AARARREREENAEYER AL
BReMEEDHREERME - ATH
BRI EAeREEC HRAEER
18 :

- ERARBETALBBRENER
£

- EH mMBABRIEBES

- ARERBEHMBELTTEEE
ZIGRERERE B

- BRARAUESWEIETEAMY
BEH X

- BHRERTSERE %R EMHE
2

150 Ssino Harbour Holdings Group Limited © ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including accounts payable, accruals
and other payables, lease liabilities and
bank and other loans. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out
in note 3.11; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.

3.

FESTHTBERME (&)

3.11 €@ T E(E)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued) 3.11 €@MITEGE

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.12 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which
are held for future sale are included in current
assets and comprise land held under operating
lease (note 3.10) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon
the application of HKFRS 16. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties.
Fixed overheads are indirect costs which remain
relatively constant regardless of the size or
volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

3.14

Properties held under development
(Continued)

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as
a component of tax expense in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.14 FiEBi 2 gt EE ()

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.14 FiEBi 2 gt EE ()

An exception to the general requirement on HRFAEEEHBEERANETESTEN
determining the appropriate tax rate used in —MRBEEMS * B—AFIINMER  BIEEME
measuring deferred tax amount is when an BIEEB ST EBFA05RREYE L AR B
investment property is carried at fair value BYER - BRIFZBEFER - TRILHFREY
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless X BEEMBESBEINL S EREMERE
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax AeBiE HERABREEHCEARBEE - B
amounts on these investment properties are B W) FE T ET R YT & N i DA B R ) HE R (T 3
measured using the tax rates that would apply AN E)MEREZMEMBESNBRIDLE
on sale of these investment properties at their FEAEN s BEENFER - ZBR T
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The & o

presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through

sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities BEEMIBEENBE SN ERPRER - X

are recognised in profit or loss, or in other i H BN E 2 E W s BN R R G

comprehensive income or directly in equity if AREEER  AREMmEEREREERE

they relate to items that are charged or credited P HER o

to other comprehensive income or directly to

equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are BVEARR I8 & 2= I BN HATR I8 & EE R IA T IBR A

presented in net if, and only if, FEEZ -

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right @ AEEBAIKEERGATEFNEEER
to set off the recognised amounts; DEEEH

(b)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities ) BHHEELEERNBPHREBEENFES
are presented in net; and H K&

() intends either to settle on a net basis, or ) WMUNFHEEELE SFARKEREEW
to realise the asset and settle the liability #EEARE-
simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.15

3.16

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only fif,

(@  the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which
is available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

FESTHTBERME (&)

3.16 RABR R &K =1 EEEF (&)

employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

317 BERIAREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation,
if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

3.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure
for the asset is incurred, borrowing costs are
incurred and activities that are necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are completed.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously
proposed and declared and consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Government grants (Continued)

3.21

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable and
are recognised as other revenue, rather than
reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a
below-market rate of interest is treated as a
government grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value
of the loan based on prevailing market interest
rates.

Intangibles (other than goodwiill)

(i) Intangibles acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangibles
acquired in a business combination
is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangibles with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-
line basis over their useful lives as follows.
Intangibles with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Copyright
Customer relationships

15 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Intangibles (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset
to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment

Intangibles with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. Intangibles
with indefinite useful lives and intangibles
not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication that they
may be impaired. Intangibles are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts
(see note 3.9).

If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease to the extent of its
revaluation surplus.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those persons
having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing, and controlling the activities of the
Group or the Company, directly or indirectly,
including any directors (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Group or the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(ivy  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESTBERSEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22 Related parties (Continued) 3.22 BIES ()
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of () WM—REERFES THEMGE - BNEA
the following conditions apply: (Continued) SEEHEE : (B)
(v The entity is a post-employment V) ZERBIASEEFERNEESRE
benefit plan for the benefit of the Zﬁﬁﬁ A1iE 8 F & M 22 3 7 BER AR
employees of the Group or an entity FIETE -

related to the Group.

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly Vi) ZEERIN(@FTHAIATES st
controlled by a person identified in EI4EH] o
(a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has Vi) REOPFTFEIATHZEBEEKX
significant influence over the entity FENNEZER(IZEBIER
or is a member of key management AZEEEEBEAE °
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viil) the entity, or any member of a group (vii) ZEBIEMBEE 2 EMNKEAR
of which it is a part, provides key AMASBE N ASEET AT IRMEE
management personnel services to EEEABRT -
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are —BATZERBE R ETE A T RS ETT

those family members who may be expected REBKEBZAANTHIXZBATHE LK

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in TREKE - BIE

their dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or ) ZBALZFRERBIREHSE
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or (i) ZBATZEBEBIREHBZTL: &
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that (i) FmBATHZBATZEBARENE

person’s spouse or domestic partner. LEEAN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.23 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of investment properties, and
properties held for sale and property, plant

and equipment upon transfer to investment
properties

Properties held for sale and property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties of
the Group were stated at fair value in accordance with
the accounting policy. The fair value of the investment
properties is determined by a firm of independently
qualified professional surveyors and the fair values
of investment properties as at the reporting dates,
and properties held for sale and property, plant and
equipment upon transfer to investment properties
are set out in note 14. Such valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of other receivables

The Group’s management assesses the collectability
of other receivables by determining future cash flows.
This estimate is based on assumptions about risk
of default and expected loss rates. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates. Management will reassess the
provision at the reporting date. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences
will affect the carrying value of receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development by using prevailing market data such
as most recent sale transactions and valuation of the
projects in its existing partially completed state of
construction taking into account cost of work done,
and cost to completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under development
(Continued)

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent sales
transactions in nearby locations, rate of new property
sales, marketing costs (including price discounts
required to stimulate sales) and the expected costs
of completion of properties, the legal and regulatory
framework and general market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s properties held under
development and properties held for sale as at 31
March 2022 were approximately RMB1,658,666,000
(2021: RMB1,903,272,000) and RMB392,406,000
(2021: RMB542,785,000) respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value
in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The
key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount for the different CGUs, are disclosed and
further explained in note 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on sale of properties held
for sale

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a
point in time when the buyer obtains control of the
completed property; otherwise, revenue is recognised
over time when the Group’s performance do not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Due to the contractual restrictions with the customer,
the Group shall not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. However, it requires management
to exercise significant judgement to determine
whether there is an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date, which depends on
the terms of sales and purchase agreement and the
interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to
the contract. The Group has obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right
to payment for sales and purchase agreements.
Management uses judgements, based on legal
counsel opinion, to classify sales and purchase
agreements into those with right to payment for
performance completed to date and those without the
right.

The Group believes that its recognition basis of sales
of properties held for sale as set out in note 3.6 is
appropriate and is the current practice in the PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision of taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in periods in which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax
(Continued)

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of this tax varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the land appreciation and its related LAT.
The Group recognised LAT based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the
tax rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and
is identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors considered the segment from a business
perspective, including sale and leasing of self-
constructed properties (“‘Property Development”)
and other businesses (mainly including investment and
operation in CMC process and medical service sector)
(“Others”). The Group’s executive directors assess
the performance of the operating segments based on
the measure of segment result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. 2HERGE

Property
Development Others Total
YR HAth &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFT AR¥FT AR¥ T
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-—z—_—
=A=t—HLFE
Segment revenue 2 EBULA 1,725,236 13,597 1,738,833
Revenue from external REPBEEZBA
customer 1,725,236 13,597 1,738,833
Segment profit/(loss) DEBER (BB 634,505 (13,146) 621,359
Less: L
Unallocated expense* Ko BER* (14,229)
Profit before income tax B AT B 8 A0 s A 607,130
Income tax expense FiiSfiMA > (290,759)
Profit for the year FERER 316,371
At 31 March 2022 R-ZEBE-__—F
=HB=+-—H
Segment assets DEPEEE 4,565,164 51,847 4,617,011
Other corporate assets HthdbEEE 968
Total assets wmEE 4,617,979
Segment liabilities DEBEE (2,584,437) (18,402) (2,602,839)
Other corporate liabilities HthEERE (1,064)
Total liabilities wmeE (2,603,903)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. WER (T
Property
Development Others Total
L E k" Hith &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AR®TFT ARETFT
Other segment information: Hitn HER
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z-—F
=ZA=+—BHLHE
Amortisation of Intangible assets 2 & B # 64 - (466) (466)
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - /= K& EITE
equipment (1,729) (10,934) (12,663)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FFREEETE = (2,570) (2,570)
Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% - B MR ERE
and equipment e 18 = (4,000) (4,000)
Impairment loss on intangibles miEERERE = (1,000) (1,000)
Impairment loss on properties held  F3 2% 4 5 R B &5 18
under development (18,127) - (18,127)
Loss allowance of other receivables H b U1 IA = 518 (49) (2,083) (2,132)
Interest income MBS A 3,549 45 3,594
Interest expenses MEFX (4,315) (374) (4,689)
Net gain on land resumption T R R Uk R 201,564 = 201,564
Net fair value gain of investment "EYEZ A ERE
properties HEE 17,742 = 17,742
Capital expenditure on property, WE - BERE#EZ
plant and equipment BARRFE (13,233) (16,451) (29,684)
Addition of right-of-use assets FRAEEERNE = 3,278 3,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DWERE)
Property
Development Others Total
ek Ht At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETFT

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z—_—F

=A=t—HLFE
Segment revenue 2 EBULA 420,003 6,881 426,884
Revenue from external REPBEEZIWA

customer 420,003 6,881 426,884

Segment profit/(loss) DEBER(BE) 149,923 (9,329) 140,594
Less: L
Unallocated expense* RO ER* (23,242)
Profit before income tax R FR 18 86 B & F 117,352
Income tax expense FriS i f (66,468)
Profit for the year FREF 50,884
At 31 March 2021 R=ZB=—F

=A=t-H
Segment assets DEPEEE 5,088,586 73,516 5,162,102
Other corporate assets HMhxEE 7,962
Total assets HWEE 5,170,064
Segment liabilities DEBEE (3,492,017) (21,568) (3,513,585)
Other corporate liabilities HthEERE (64)
Total liabilities Bmams (3,513,649)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

5. 2HERE)

=T

F=ZH=1—HILFE

Property
Development Others Total
Lk Htb BET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMFT AR FT
Other segment information: Hitn HER :
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-ZE——f%
ZA=+t—HLEE
Amortisation of Intangible assets 2 & B # 54 - (466) (466)
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - /= L& EITE
equipment (8,745) (8,224) (6,969)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FFREEETE - (1,341) (1,341)
Interest income MBS A 5,471 1,988 7,459
Interest expenses BRI (2,934) (1,074) (4,008)
Loss allowance of other receivables E fth & Ug 3118 7 B 18 B (1,951) (57) (2,008)
Net fair value gain of investment WEME 2 A ERE
properties it 23,610 - 23,610
Capital expenditure BEARRY (9,249) (10,190) (19,439)
Addition of right-of-use assets CREEERE - 16,496 16,496

*

The unallocated expenses mainly consist of staff cost,
directors’ emolument and exchange difference.

The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment,
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in the PRC, which considered
that the operation base of the Group is domiciled in
the PRC, as one geographical location and therefore,
no analysis of geographical information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed
in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021.

- APREMIZRFEEINA EXMERELZRE -

BEFRDEEMEMBUEIAZEEERME
WREE  HRME  BERREBAELZE A
FEHFHSEE - ARREFERR  AKREXZHE
ENEETLHFRAENTENBAR - AR /N
SEZEEEMONTE SE—MEVE - Fit
WS H IR E R DA o

BB ZIRARFEEERERE o WA BB
ORI -

B WES -—XFEAREE10%IA EWA °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA HtrAURHEMYEREER

GAINS AND LOSSES

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers
recognised under HKFRS 15, other income and other

AEEAEERIEEEY 5 MwE LR FE 155 R K
BEEPAKN WA « EAU AR E U s K &

gains and losses recognised during the year are as BT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFT
Revenue from contracts with BEEFEMBREAER
customers under HKFRS 15 EI5EREEFESY >
WA
Sales of properties held for sale HeEZFEyE 1,667,208 385,059
CMC related service income CMCHEE AR TE YA 8,613 5,730
Dental service income Mg & R S U 4,601 -
Consultancy service income LA RIE I A 383 1,151
1,680,805 391,940
Revenue from other source R EEAMRRZWA
Rental income HE WA 58,028 34,944
1,738,833 426,884
Timing of revenue recognition R Z R
Goods or services transferred at a point in time R R B 2882 2 B V) 5 AR 7S 1,676,204 391,940
Service transferred over time BERF 2T 2 BRFS 4,601 -
1,680,805 391,940
Other income and other gains and losses  Hft WA UK H b= R &8
Exchange gain/(loss), net BE 5 e (B518) %58 3,659 (7,119
Government grants* B & B 676 62
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWZE - BB REE 2 WS
equipment - 23
Impairment loss on property, plant and M - BE KR EREEE
equipment (note 13) (HtaE13) (4,000) =
Impairment loss on intangibles (note 16) \mREERERE R F16) (1,000) =
Impairment loss on properties held under 5 8 W) 2R E S 18 (M 77 20)
development (note 20) (18,127) -
Interest income FLE U A
— from bank deposits - RBRITER 3,594 7,459
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 35(b)) #E B A 72 &1
(H17%35(b)) - (3,008)
Net fair value gain on investment properties WEYHE 2 A BEREFRE
(note 14) (Htat14) 17,742 23,610
Net gain on land resumption (note 24(b)) 4 Hb Uk M e BB (B 22 24(b) 201,564 =
Sundry income HMIBWA 705 866
204,813 21,893

*

. AEBECWERBAETBEBAHES RS ETEE
B EGITRISER -

The Group received unconditional discretionary grants
from the relevant PRC government authorities in support
of enterprise operating in specified industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides information about
contract cost assets from contracts with customers.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

WA - E A BA R Bt i 25 K2 85 18 ()

TREREEFANZIENRAEERH 2B -

2022 2021

—=E=-= T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FoT ARBFT

Contract cost assets BHIKAEE 7,356 10,509

Contract cost assets mainly related to the incremental
cost for the sales of properties.

Contract costs capitalised related to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s
properties which were still under construction at the
reporting date. Contract costs will be recognised
as part of “selling and distribution expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which revenue from the related property
sales is recognised. During the year ended 31 March
2022, contract cost assets as of 31 March 2021 for
approximately RMB8,701,000 (2021: nil) recognised
in selling and distribution expenses. There was no
impairment in relation to the costs capitalised during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

The following table provides information about
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

BRRAEETEEYEHE ZIREKNAERH -

BRCEHRAEBST R TFHOERBZEEHERS
B MEREBECHETHERRFPEAEBERNR
SRMNERCYETLEEHE KA KR
BEREEYEHERAPHREEZEARZRER
BIHERDHER |2 —Bn - BEZT-_—_F=
A=+—BtFE WN-_ZT-_—F=A=+—HZ
BHKNAEEHNARKES, 701,000 (ZFE=—4F :
EVERBHEMDHER BE_T_—_FEK=F
ZT—F=ZA=+—HLEFE BEEHENEKA
ZIRIE ©

TREREZEFPANZANABERBZER -

\|

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKEFr
Contract liabilities AHEE 1,131,860 2,000,323

Contract liabilities mainly related to the deposits
received from customers for sales of properties.

BHEAETEHENEENERETRPKR Z2EESE

EBERERARAT 0 2021/22 #5% 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA - HttW AR EAUz K EE ()
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Contract liabilities of approximately RZE-Z—F=ZA=Z1+—H BHEBEHARE
RMB1,540,514,000 as of 31 March 2021 (31 March 1,540,514,000L(ZE=FEF=A=+—H : AR
2020: RMB247,088,000) were recognised as revenue #247,088,0007T) iR A F N2R B & P B2 2 I
during the year from acceptance of properties by A MRZEZ—_FR-_F-_—F=A=+—HZ
customers and the contract liabilities as at 31 March AABERERARPIE 2 BIWMAE -
2022 and 2021 were arising from the advance
considerations received from customers.
As at 31 March 2022, contract liabilities or the RZEZZF=A=+—H AHEBEHXRER
aggregated amount of the deposits received from SERBEAMBRTRATFRIM 2EEBED
the remaining performance obligations under the BARA1,131,860,000 0 (== —F : AR
Group’s existing contracts was approximately 2,000,323,0007T) ° W& REIETEH AR E PRIy
RMB1,131,860,000 (2021: RMB2,000,323,000). R A HER 2 WA « RERK RN B 1% (FAEH 7 R K 361H
This amount represents revenue expected to be A4 EREHKA -
recognised in the future from acceptance of properties
by customers. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future, which is expected to occur in the
next 36 months.
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERE
2022 2021
—=-= T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTF T
Interest charges on financial liabilities REBHEEATEREz2EMEE
stated at amortised cost: ZREMX%
Bank loans RITER 15,707 22,060
Other loans HEMER 2,441 4,317
Lease liabilities HEAE 374 270
18,522 26,647
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BEERERFAER
under development ME2 & (13,833) (22,639)
4,689 4,008
The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings FRN - BEZNMETHEREEREBF29%(ZE =

was 2.9% (2021: 4.8%) per annum for the year. —& 1 4.8%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

=T

F=ZH=1—HILFE

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. BRATEBHANZEF
2022 2021
—E-F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBEF T
Profit before income tax is arrived at after R BT1S 7 Al s A1) T &8 308k

charging/(crediting): GF A AT &IEZES :

Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN € 857 909
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as ~ FER AR X 2 15 E YRR

expense 1,205,543 245,387
Amortisation of intangibles (note 16) EREEEE(WiE16) 466 466
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE kREITE

(note 13(b)) (H15£13(b) 12,663 6,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) FREEENEWit15) 2,570 1,341
Loss allowance of other receivables H b pe Uk sR I8 2 B 2,132 2,008
Written off of property, plant and equipment M - BRE K&

(note 13) (Hat13) 181 -
Short-term lease expenses HHHERY 427 949
Outgoings in respect of investment properties ~ ELFERNEAR WA 2

that generated rental income during the year REMEBB I FAX 318 425
Employee costs, including Directors’ EEXRN(BIEESEHE)

emoluments (note 12) (Htat12)

- Wages and salaries - ITEEF® 39,943 34,345

— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — — RIRERET &I -

defined contribution plans* TERAEFRET & 2,952 2,880

Less: amount capitalised in properties held A BEERNIEARER
under development MEZ TR (5,085) (4,935)
37,810 32,290

There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

* BLE A AR B R E AR ERBRTOKT 2 2R Wtk -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25%
(2021: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2021: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred
upon transfer of property ownership. There are
certain exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FIEFHBEX
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARKEFT
Current tax - the PRC BUHEAFE 18 —
Current year REE

— Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) - EEMEH
([EFmEBH)D 199,544 24,509
- LAT - IS ER 93,657 35,246
293,201 59,755
Deferred income tax (note 26) R (A E26) (2,442) 6,713
Total income tax expense i EE 290,759 66,468

CEMBHRIIMETELLE ZMB LR 2 At ER
B FHR25% (ZF = —4F : 25%) fEHI 4 -

BEPECEMEHRZE  HINSIREERFINGE
TEMEEZZNDRZEEHKCETENAS
B AEBBERAZENMEHRME A% (ZT=—
F 1 5%) e

THEREREIHEEZIBENRENEI0%E
60% = - L EEZIBERHEEWEMAEFHER
AHRFAY - SR ERERAN - FERAE - &
EVMEBENFERAS - WARYMEHRARER
REL - HE—REETMEAELSTHR - HEEE
BT AR R HRIR B (E& RAERA P BEER) B2
20% - SHEBMEME A BERESEER R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on
the first Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million (2021: 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million).
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

8% % (5])

HAERF RNz Ba2aE8B T((BT])IA8.25%:t
EEBANGEH > M2E BB T EN T ERFER
A1B.5%T EBABFEH(ZEZ—F : B2AEAT
et FERRFHFIA8.25% 1 Fi 2B BB T A (st
FE R FI A 16.5%5T ) o AR AN B R %M EF
ERYEEESEERESTM G ERRES -
WA EEH BB RIS HRE -

REAREGEMGHRAXEG RN 2 HERAN
T

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREFT
Profit before income tax B BT 1S 50 B4 A 607,130 117,352
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at BRI TR M A8 -
the rates applicable to profit in the jurisdiction & B R e AREREF 2
concerned BERAMEGE 151,783 29,338
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBMBAZHIBTLE (5,112 (1,385)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DA B 2 2 IR 8 55,864 3,624
Provision of LAT for the year FARLHIREREE 93,657 35,246
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable JEAT IR ER 2 %
FIEH 2 IR & (23,414) (8,812)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERTIEEE ZHIBRE 17,231 8,557
Tax effect of withholding tax FEMH s RIETE 750 =
Income tax expense FriE8iRa 290,759 66,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥FT AREFT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year at o E—FERERT B
HK$0.01 per ordinary share 0.01 BTt 2 REAR B2 20,317 22,531

11.

On 25 June 2021, the directors proposed a first
and final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share
of the Company, amounting to approximately
HK$24,640,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB20,317,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021,
and formal approval by the shareholders was obtained
at the annual general meeting held on 20 August
2021.

On 28 June 2022, the directors proposed a first and
final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share of the
Company and a special dividend of HK$0.01 per
share of the Company, amounting to approximately
HK$49,280,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB39,900,000) for the year ended 31 March
2022, and the resolution will be submitted for formal
approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting to be held on 30 September
2022.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB259,119,000 (2021: RMB57,544,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,464,000,000 (2021: 2,464,000,000) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

11.

NRZTEZ—FXAZ+HB  EFgHLNEEZ
T F=ZA=+—HILFEVHEREBREAR
AR EER0.01E T + A F£4924,640,0007% 7t (48
ERHARKE20,317,000T) ' YER T - —4F
NAZ+HRTZBREAFRAE EERSRKREEXI
o

RIEBE-—FXA-F+N\H BEEEHENEEZ—
S _FZA=Zt+—BHUEFEVHEREREARAR
AR EBERO.ONVEBT AERREARR B EFRRGD
0.0178 7T » & $£4949,280,000/ 7t FHE RO AR
39,900,0007T) ' MAZRRGTIREURKENR ==
ZHENAZTRBOZEEREBAFARNS EEEK
RIERBLAE ©

BREF

ERERBFBBRBEARARADNBEE AEMLHFER
A ARK259,119,000L (=B = —F : A
R¥57,544,0007T) & A E &K INEF &K
2,464,000,0000% (=ZZ = —4 : 2,464,000,000/%) 5+

s

ﬁo

MR AREAEREE FOBEFE RN BEE TR
0 MEREERFEFREARFER -
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as

follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

12. EEFH - LEESFHMALRSREEEMNS

(a) E=#&
RIFE TR A REER RSS2 15 R E AT
BoESMeOT
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 2ER BIRER
He HitiEF MiERA SR fit

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARBTZ  ARMTZ  ARETT  ARETZ

Year ended 31 March 2022

Executive directors

Mr. Wong Lam Ping (‘Mr. Wong’)
Mr. Shi Feng

Mr. Wong Lui

Ms. Gao Lan

Non-executive director
Mr. Chan Kin Sang

Inaependent non-executive directors
Mr. Xie Gang

Mr. He Ding Ding

Mr. Wong Ping Kuen

Year ended 31 March 2021

Executive directors
Mr. Wong

Mr. Shi Feng

Mr. Wong Lui

Ms. Gao Lan

Non-executive director
Mr. Chan Kin Sang

Inaependent non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Man To*

Mr. Xie Gang

Mr. He Ding Ding

Mr. Wong Ping Kuen*

HE-E-CF
ZA=+-HLEE

HITEE

Ik L (BEEE]D)

yal -3

s ined

BEZT

FHTEF
Rizgxs

BUHHTEE
il i
BT TRk
ARELE

HEZT--F
ZRA=t+-HLLEE

HTEE

iined

yal -3t

s ined

BERL

HHTEE
Rizgts

BUNHTEE
PEHERL
fRRITE

BT TRk
ARELE

875 - 167 - 1,042
265 - - - 265
567 - 143 30 740
241 s - 5 246
233 - - - 233
% - - - %
% - - - %
148 - - - 148
2,521 - 310 3 2,872
875 - 217 - 1,002
201 - - 28 229
567 - 131 16 714
180 - - 2 205
247 - - - 247
22 - - - 22
10 - - - 106
105 - - = 106
131 - - - 131
2,433 - 348 69 2,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFH  EEBRSFMALIRSAETEENS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (48)

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

*

Mr. Lee Man To resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 22 May
2020 and Mr. Wong Ping Kuen was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 1 June 2020.

There is no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2021: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include two (2021: two) directors,
whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2021: three) highest paid
individuals, whose emoluments fell within
the salary bands of nil to HK$1,000,000 and
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000, for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

(a)

(b)

E=Me(®

© O RZE-BFRASTOA - FEEREREAR
ARBUFATEE  MR-F-FF<H—
B BB EEEEARAABIERTE
EFo

FR BEEENEXREREEOHS 2%
BT —F 8-

TEBREFMAL
AEEREAERTWALIBERE(ZE=—
FWMBES  EWeHN EXZHEE - #
E - —FR-EFE-_—F=ZA=+—HILF
B #BT=%CZ2E_—%F: ZR2)55FMA
T2 ME G EENFZE1,000,0007 T K%
1,000,001/ E2,000,000/87T) 20~

2022 2021

—E=-= T —%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FoT ARBFr

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e o EEREMER 1,807 1,684
Discretionary bonuses EIBIEAL 356 397
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET B TR 65 30
2,228 2,111

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2021: nil).

FA - AEERERNENESHSZSHEMAL
SAHERIBN 2 E R INA SN AR R 1R 2 22D
HEERAEE(CT - —F - ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members of

12. EEFH - LEESFHMALRSREEEMNS

(&)

(c) EREZEEME

non-director senior management were within the (N

following bands:

ENENIEERREEEXNE 2HEEHE

#

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 3 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 87L&
2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -  BMERRE
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings  improvement Total
K
Hith R B BT HENMERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
At 1 April 2020 RZE-ZFMA—H
Cost AR 17,417 5,021 56,434 10,345 89,217
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (7,385) (4,595) (7,058) (2,836) (21,874)
Net carrying amount BREFE 10,032 426 49,376 7,509 67,343
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-E--£=8
=t-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount BOERRFE 10,032 426 49,376 7,509 67,343
Additions HNE 3,046 - - 16,393 19,439
Depreciation ne (2,094) (145) (1,422) (3,692) (7,353)
Disposal & (5) (141) - - (146)
Deregistration of subsidiaries EHEMB AR @) = = = @)
Closing net carrying amount ARBEFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281
At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 R=—ZE=-—%=A#
=t-AR=B=-f
mA—AH
Cost 5% 20,410 3,878 56,434 26,737 107,459
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (9,433) (3,738) (8,480) (6,527) (28,178)
Net carrying amount REFE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281

ERZEREEARATF o 2021/22 F#
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRME )

(CONTINUED)
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total
EKR
Hftk AE BF HEWE#E @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETL AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-E-__f=8
=+-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount R FE 10,977 140 47,954 20,210 79,281
Additions NE 7,309 - - 22,375 29,684
Transfer to investment properties BREGENE = = (39,958) = (39,958)
Depreciation wE (2,806) (62) (1,423) (11,207) (15,498)
Write-off g (181) = = = (181)
Impairment RE (4,000) = = = (4,000)
Closing net carrying amount BRREEFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328
At 31 March 2022 RZB-=F=R
Er=
Cost B AR 22,833 3,878 8,919 49,112 84,742
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (11,534) (3,800) (2,346) (17,734) (35,414)
Net carrying amount BREFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s certain buildings of
RMB6,573,000 (2021: RMB47,954,000) were pledged
for bank loans (note 25) of the Group.

R-ZE-_—_F=A=+—H KAEBEARE

6,573,0007T (

— = —

— =

—4F : AR¥47,954,0007T) 2

ETRTRERRAEE 2 RITERHIEE25)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BERRZREE)
(CONTINUED)
During the year ended 31 March 2022, management HEZZT-__F=A=1T—HLFE  BARERE
of the Group identified impairment indicator on the KT K B BCMCHR B RIE < I RIFTE - &
Group’s CGU in relation to the provision of CMC EEEEEHER L IRECMCHEBRE ZAEERE
related services (the “CMC CGU”) due to decline EXBEMN(CMCREELEN]) ZRENR - A&
in financial performance in its CMC related services B G TESEASEE TSI REMEEZCMC
caused by tighter market condition. The Group ReELEBM 7T KESEE - WHEMECMCIRE E
assessed the recoverable amount of CMC CGU to FEMZEEEMREET KBS - Bt - RE
which certain computer and other equipment of the B oA+ HUIEFEREREEME
Group were allocated and as a result the carrying BREZIRER B A A RE4,000,0007T (M :E6) (ZZ =
amount of CMC CGU was written down to its —F fE) o
recoverable amount. Accordingly an impairment loss
on computer and other equipment of approximately
RMB4,000,000 (note 6) was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2022 (2021: nil).
Notes: Hiet -
(@)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. @ AEEFBIZEFMRFER -
(o)  Depreciation charges have been included in: ) WERAXEFA:
2022 2021
—EB-—F —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETFT
Consolidated statement of financial position RE MBI R
— capitalised in properties held under development — B A(L{E AR ZE R Y% 2,835 384
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 4R A& 2 M & &
- selling and distribution expenses - HERDHER 17 23
— administrative expenses -ERER 12,646 6,946
12,663 6,969
15,498 7,353
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREYE

2022 2021
—E-F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBTF T
At beginning of the year REA] 1,127,324 849,218
Transfer from properties held for sale B EmEEE 184,758 280,035
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B - BE &R EER 117,958 =

Net fair value change charged to the e EE2EKER S

consolidated statement of comprehensive NI Pt

income (19,298) (1,929)
At end of the year RER 1,410,742 1,127,324

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2054 (2021: from 2043 to 2054). As
at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group,
the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2022, investment properties
of approximately RMB738,535,000 (2021:
RMB409,149,000) were pledged against bank loans
of the Group (note 25).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 30).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, properties
held for sale with carrying value of approximately
RMB147,718,000 (2021: RMB254,496,000) (note 21)
were transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. The fair value gain of these properties upon
transfer to investment properties was approximately
RMB37,040,000 (2021: RMB25,539,000).

WEMEREMRPRZz b E#ERS - AEHR
TN =FETANF L EACE—F  ZTNQN
—FEFTANEZE)ER RZTEZZ_FK=
T-—FZA=+—H AEBETREVELE
BEEEMBERE AEB 2B YFREREAMR
B AEEBAEDNESREEMAES M &L EER
W EEREREEMBRERZSREYE -

RZE_—_F=ZA=+—H REVWEHARE
738,535,000t (ZZE = —4F : AR¥409,149,0007T)
FRERIRAREE 2 RITE R (FiFE25) ©

BREMEIIRBELHENE TIRME) (IFE30)

BE T -_—_F=A=+—HILFE EEE
HEANRE147,718,000L(ZE=—F : AR
254,496,0007T) 2 FFEMHE (W2 ) BR =R EY
¥ RAAZEVEDNBRBEFREFE=FFI 2L
EHETERDAS  MIERLAEBAEESBRE
PHE REEREREMEZVEZ A REBER
H A ANRBE37,040,000(ZTE-—F : AR
25,539,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, property, plant
and equipment with carrying value of approximately
RMB39,958,000 (2021: Nil) (note 13) were transferred
to investment properties as these properties were
under operating lease arrangements with third parties
during the year to earn rental, rather than for sale or
own use in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. The fair value gain of these properties upon
transfer to investment properties was approximately
RMB78,000,000 (2021: Nil) and credited to other
comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
expense of approximately RMB19,500,000 (2021: Nil),
as property revaluation reserve.

The total net fair value gain of investment properties
of approximately RMB17,742,000 (2021:
RMB23,610,000) was credited to profit or loss for the
year.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31
March 2022 and 2021 was revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
who have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale
of the property interests in their existing state with
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking
into account the net rental income derived from
its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been
then capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate; and the discounted
cash flow analysis that requires periodic net cash
flows to be forecasted over the life of the investment
and discounted at a risk-adjusted opportunity cost
of capital to arrive at a project value, taking into
consideration the year by year net cash flows, and
having regard to the assumptions made relating to
rental growth projections, vacancies and rent free.

14.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

BREYE(EK)
HE-_Z-_—_F=ZA=+—HILFE  FHEHNE
AR#39,958,000L(Z T - —F : )2 WE W
EREEIFINEBRE=ZREME  RAAZEY
ENRBEFRNEE =] 2 &R ELTHERIA
& MERAEBBEEBBREFLESEA - %
SHBESREMEZMEZARBRINAARE
78,000,000 C(ZZE=—F : ) - WIEAWHEEMHRE
B AFTREMEANE HBRAESHRASIHARE
19,500,000 (=8 = —4 : ) o

WEYWEZRAARERAFEAAHDARE
17,742,000c(ZZE = —F : AR¥23,610,00070) 5t
AF RIS -

BEYWER ST -_—_FR_FT=-_—F=H=+—H
ZARBENHEEGBBEEGEYEMBLALE RER
AR BU A ERBEERNEMITHERITE
¥TEERBRERARETENRGHE - HENNE
BHBERKE  BREVEESZERGMRRENE
RELRE  W2EHRETMB IS ELRBEER
S U ENBRYERERYEEMNE RIERH
HBFHTE s Z2ELEEFABLDH AR
ANEBKE  sIREEREHEEMER K, TR
BmHLEAREZHASBAFEE  THEEZ BT
EHEBAERBEERE  BHSWAZEZ 2EX
bR EREABEETISEE - AREITLMIAE
SRENNT BREA@HIMEANKREFHANTERA
HURESREFHE  WIEEAZRARFE#IHA
ARFEEBLIEREEE  EdeEREHsERE
Al ZEERREHEEZBRE -
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R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEWE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEMEZ ARBEBIREEERAREE - 7]
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of RERAREERHRET| AT o
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FHEH (EIREFE N
AVEIEY 1,127,324 849,218
Transfer from properties held for sale B RSy EeE R 184,758 280,035
Transfer from property, plant and equipment Y - BE KR e 117,958 -
Net fair value change charged to the HREHREEEKRRZ
consolidated statement of comprehensive N EEEFE
income (19,298) (1,929)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FREB (BT
NAE) 1,410,742 1,127,324

Change in unrealised gains or losses for the year LA =A=+—HHFEE

included in profit or loss for assets held at AR 2 FAREE W=
81 March (note 6) SRR (fi76) 17,742 23,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWE(E)
The following table shows the significant unobservable TR RNEEBRANFFIAHERTA]ERG AH
inputs used in the valuation model. 1% o
Fair Significant Range of  Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs to
Properties hierarchy  technique inputs inputs  fair value
AffE EXFABE TABERA FUTEEBAHEHR
L/ES BH HERN WAHE YECEE QAENER
Commercial offices in the 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/premium (14.4)% - 4.0%  The higher the discount, the
PRC approach on quality of (2021: (15.2)% — lower the fair value; the
the property 13.9%) higher the premium, the
higher the fair value
RECEERDE BERLEEA NEERZ(TE)/ (14.4)%-4.0% #EHE AAEBE EE
k] (ZF=—%F: HE - AREES
(15.2)% ~ 13.9%)
Commercial offices in the 3 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 8% (2021: 8%)  The higher the discount rate,
PRC approach the lower the fair value
hECEERDE BERHERE) BRE 8% HMEEXHSE ARESE
(ZZ=—F :8%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison Discount on quality (47.7)% = (11.6)%  The higher the discount, the
approach of the property (2021: (22.9)% — lower the fair value
(15.5)%)
e EREL BRLEE NEBERIE @r.0%-(11.6% HELR AREWE
(Z2=—%:
(22.9)% - (15.5)%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.5% (2021: 2.0%)  The higher the term yield, the
lower the fair value
e EHREN WA Gl G 25% MENHEES AAESE
(Z2=—%:
2.0%)
Reversionary yield 2.5% (2021: 2.5%)  The higher the reversionary
yield, the lower the fair value
(lGanpd 25% EREEEMS  DAESE
(ZB=—%:
2.5%)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques

during the years.

FAGERMLEES)

The fair value measurement is based on the above NABEFENERLIVE e kRERR(EE

properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ

from their actual use.

ERERAETEER) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. FHEEE
Premises
leased for Leased
own use machinery Total
BABEME THEMSE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB

AREFT ARETFT ARETFT

At 1 April 2020 —E_ZTHFMA—H = = =
Additions NE 16,496 = 16,496
Depreciation e (1,341) = (1,341)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZZE-_—§=A8

=+—H 15,155 = 15,155
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_—§=8

=+—H
Cost AR 16,496 = 16,496
Accumulated depreciation 25 E (1,341) = (1,341)
Net carrying amount BREFE 15,155 = 15,155
At 1 April 2021 R-EB=-—FMA—H 15,155 = 15,155
Additions NE - 3,278 3,278
Depreciation e (2,352) (218) (2,570)
As 31 March 2022 R-ZE--F=A

=+—H 12,803 3,060 15,863
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZE--F=A

=+—H
Cost DN 16,496 3,278 19,774
Accumulated depreciation 25t e (3,693) (218) (3,911)
Net carrying amount BREFE 12,803 3,060 15,863
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

INTANGIBLES 16. B EE
Customer
Copyright relationships Total
hix & EFBE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARKFIT
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZFWA—H
Cost %N 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and REHEEE NORE
impairment (8,556) (3,491) (12,047)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 3,444 1,614 5,058
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_ZT—_—F%
=R=t+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount B9 ER EFE 3,444 1,614 5,058
Amortisation By (287) (179) (466)
Closing net carrying amount HREREFE 3,157 1,435 4,592
At 31 March 2021 and R=B=—F
1 April 2021 =A=+—HEK
—E-—F
MA—H
Cost AR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and RETEENORE
impairment (8,843) (3,670) (12,513)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,157 1,435 4,592
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE—-ZT——
ZA=+—BHLEE
Opening net carrying amount B9 EREFE 3,157 1,435 4,592
Amortisation B 55 (287) (179) (466)
Impairment NERIE] (500) (500) (1,000)
Closing net carrying amount HREREFE 2,370 756 3,126
At 31 March 2022 R=2==
=A=+-—H
Cost B R 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and RETEE NORE
impairment (9,630) (4,349) (13,979)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,370 756 3,126
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F - —F =HA=+—HIF F/Z

16.

INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of impairment testing, intangibles
with definite useful life are allocated to the CMC
CGU. During the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2022, management identified impairment indicator
on CMC CGU due to decline in financial performance
in its CMC related services caused by tighter market
condition. The Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the CMC CGU to which copyright and
customer relationship were allocated and impairment
of approximately RMB1,000,000 (2021: nil) (note 6)
was made for the year ended 31 March 2022,

The recoverable amount of above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculation, which
is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent
financial forecast approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an estimated growth rate of 2% (2021: 3%)and an
estimated pre-tax discount rate of 22.3% (2021:
21.7%). The growth rate do not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates.

16.

| EE(E)

MBEARTS  EEBERAUGEAFH I ELEE
DEECMCREEXBN - HET - —FR=F
ZZHE=ZA=1T—ALFE  BAREREHTISIK
SEBBCMCHBBRF B ERIRTE - EREHT
HCMCREEABM 2 BETR - REBE G TE
DERENRRFBZ ZCMCE & E L BN 2 Al i [D
¢ REE-ZZE-_—_F=-A=1+—HLEFEEH
BELARE,000,000t(ZE=—F : &) (i
6) °

rHBReELBGZ ATKE SR DREEREER
HEr  MEREBEFENREBBLEXMGEEME
TZBERE - ZTENREARRRESZAILER
ENFHRcRONMBERNERRSRETRA -
BBRREFHzASREERAMTERR2% (2T
—F : 3%) RfART B AT IR E22.3% (ZF —— % :
21.7%)HE - ERETBBRASELBEULEER
ZRHITFIEIgRE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2022, were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

17.

Issued and fully

NI PN 3
R-EBE-_—_F=A=+—H TEHNERA
(ZERERAR) ZFBHIIAT

BoE - —F=A=1—HIFFE

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
L ERTRBREER
NAER BENE Ra/ZRER E# BE TEEHR
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin Islands United States dollar 100% = Investment holding
Limited (“BVI’)/Hong Kong (“‘US$)1
RERUEHES 1ET(ER)) B5 2100 REER
(%BRZ#E])/
BE
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited RBENES/ E3 B52100 REER
B
Sinotech International Holdings BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment holding
Limited
EBERAERERA EBRAME/ IE BA 2100 RERR
BE
Sino Harbour Technology Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% —  Investment holding
EANMBRARAR ERRUHS/ E B72100 RERR
&R
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EEERAR BE 10,000 7T BA2100 REER
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
BHEEREARAA BB 1008 7T AAZ100 REERR
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IRENAEREREERAR & 25,000,000 7 ARZ100 RHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BNNBS R HEREBRLR  PE AE#100,000,0007 BA2100 FHERE
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R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

RIE QR 2R (E)
R-EBE-_—_F=A=+—H TEHNERA
(ZERERAR)ZFBHIIMAT « (&)

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17.

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2022, were as follows: (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
ZMEL/ ERTRAREER
DEAER BENY BA&,/EMER E# BE TEEER
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(‘Nanchang Dingxun’)
HERLERERAT Gk AK100,000,0007C AR5 BHERE
(FEERal)
Nanchang Gangyun Enterprises PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd management
MEBMELEERBRAR e ARE1,0007 AAZ100 BEER
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Fenghuang
Jincheng’)
SYTEEEHEXARAF " AR #24,500,0007 AAZSl  FHERE
(BE£H))
Leping Runze Real Estate PRC RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LYTHERHERRERRA  FH AK%6,000,0007T BAZ51  EHERE
Leping Runfeng Real Estate PRC RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LYTESEHEREERAR P AR ¥6,000,0007C ARZ51 BHERE
Sino Harbour Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BERRARAT BE 1T BA2100 REER
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Limited
HEREEREEFRAF Bk 100/ 7T BA2100 REER
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited
EBERREBRAA &k 1A BAZ100 EEXHK
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each (@)
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2022, were as follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #;

17. RKE 27z (R

Issued and fully

BoE - —F=A=1—HIFFE

R-EBE-_—_F=A=+—H TEHNERA
(ZERERAR)ZFBEHINMAT « (&

)

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
ZMEL/ ERTRAREER
DEAER BENY BA&,/EMER E# BE TEEER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co., PRC RMB420,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Limited
MMEREXERAT i A #420,000,0007C ARZ100 FHERE
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co., ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 - 50%  Property development
Limited (“Jiangxi Ganghong’)
(note (})
IRELEFARAR(DIFEAR]) + AR #100,000,0007C B7250 FHERE
(Hia)
Capital Manager Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EBRAEE/ 50,000% 7T AAZ100 REER
BE
Sino Harbour Bio Technology Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Limited
ERLNMRERERAT BB 18T BR2I00 EEEE
Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
IREANMRERAT i AR#30,000,0007 BAZ100 REEK
Sinotech Digital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EVEHEERAR BE BT BAZ100 REAER
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
IEEVFIRERAR t AR #10,000,00070 ARZ100 EEEH
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Transfer and
Limited consultation services
BREBEMRMERAT i AR #10,000,00070 AAZ0 BN RHARE
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC RMB60,000,000 - 80%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited inspection
MIERBERRARAA i AR ¥60,000,00070 AS280 E@iA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. R EA B2 ()

(8) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MZE-_—_F=A=+—H TEHEBERA
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (BFERBRAB) ZFHBEHIIMT : (8)

March 2022, were as follows: (Continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
L EERTRBREER
DEAER EEBY R&/ZRER E# B FEEER
Xiamen Sino Harbour Bio PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited
EFEEENRMARAA e AE%30,000,0007 BAZ100 EELE
Jiangxi Ganghua Medical PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited
TRAZEEREEARAH " AR #10,000,00070 ANZ5l  REER
Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry PRC RMB11,000,000 - 51%  Provision of dental
Hospital Co., Ltd services
SHEENRERRARAA h AR 11,000,0007T AR5l REOBREBRRG
Forest Construction Technology HK HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RAREENMRERAT &k 1T BAZ100 RERK
Hangzhou Gangze Enterprises PRC RMB100,000 - 100%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. management
MNEREFERERAF PE AR 100,000 AHZ100 BEER
Hangzhou Sino Harbour PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Commercial
Commercial Management Co., management
Ltd.
MNEEAFERARAA e AR #10,000,00070 BAZI00 FHEER
Shanghai Huiyi International Trading  PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Dormant
Co., Ltd. (note (i)
LEERERE SRR e AE#1,0007 BAZ100 EEEH
(L)
Shanghai Ganghan Business PRC RMB1,000 - 100%  Dormant
Management Co., Ltd. (nofe (i)
TEAREEERERRRM ) T AEH1,0007 BAZ100 EEEK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2022, were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi
HongKelLong Industrial Limited (“Jdiangxi
HongKelLong”), which held the remaining 50%
equity interests in Jiangxi Ganghong, entered
into a designated operating agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions, Jiangxi HongKelLong
designate all the rights and responsibility of the
management, operation and financing of the
Yichun Elderly Apartment undeveloped project
(the “Undeveloped Project”) to the Group and
all the future costs and revenues in relation to the
Undeveloped Project will belong to the Group with
a compensation of RMB244,000,000 payable by
the Group to Jiangxi HongKelLong.

All conditions under the Agreement had been
fulfilled in prior years. The Agreement became
effective and all assets and liabilities of the
Undeveloped Project are beneficially owned by the
Group and Jiangxi Ganghong ceased to be a joint
venture of the Group and became a subsidiary of
the Group after the completion date.

(ii) The companies are newly incorporated during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

17. RKE 27z (R

@)

R-EBE-_—_F=A=+—H TEHERA
(ZERERAR)ZFBHIIMAT « (&)

Bt

0] RZZE—NEFE=ZA=1+H AEEEIELEERE
BEARAR(CIBARER)GFEIABSEKRT
50%A%4%) 5] 315 TE 48 & ik ([ D) - &t -
BFETHREERE  THAERBEEEEZFAE
KEAZEE ((RERBEBDNHERE  CELRE
WATEEFRETEEETFTAER - MAMZEEE
MATBARRRARBABBRASE @ AEEE
M IR RE X A R%244,000,0007T K {E ©

ZHHBETHAA G CBEFEERK ° ZH
AOEAEXN MAFEREMEEERAEARN
SEERES  MRTKBAHE  ITEBLTE
AEEERECEIRAREENBEAR -

(ii) HENARBE_E-_—F=RA=+—HItEE
MRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. REB AR 2% (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXERINABEHAEEMS BEKXN 2 FFIERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMEAREERARLETHE RSB
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERRE -

have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group.

Nanchang Dingxun HERA
Summarised statement of financial position BB RE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKEFT
Current TE
Assets BE 609,077 609,177
Liabilities afE (113,786) (116,318)
Total net current assets RBEEFRELRH 495,291 492,859
Non-current R
Assets BE 30 35
Total net non-current assets FRBEEFEAE 30 35
Net assets BEEFE 495,321 492,894
Accumulated non-controlling interests B FEERES 238,636 237,544
Dividends paid to a non-controlling ENEEREERE
interests - B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. REB AR 2% (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXERINABEHAEEMS BEKRN 2 FFIERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RS2 8

City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)

have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued) mERAE
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HENEHE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE-HA=+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Revenue WA 14,038 20,408
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATSHiRT (B518), % 7 (1,883) 3,747
Total comprehensive income 2HKZAEE 2,427 2,211)

Profit/(loss) allocated to non-controlling 7 Bt F3EiERER >

interests w=HL(EE) 1,092 (995)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling ENEEREERE
interest - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. REB AR 2% (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXERINABEHAEEMS BEKXN 2 FFIERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMEAREERARLETHE RSB

City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)

have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued) mERAE
Summarised statement of cash flows BenEXxHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—-HLHFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARETT

Cash flows from operating activities RETHMELHESRE
Cash generated from operations KEMEAXRE 3,324 10,608
Interest received A B 237 123
Net cash generated from operating activities — #8& B P ELE o F5H 3,561 10,731
Cash flows from investing activity RETHMEEHESRE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits B RITIFFOR 2,280 6,753
Net cash generated from investing activity REZE)TEEH 2 FHE 2,280 6,753
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEYILM

equivalents HER 5,841 17,484
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR & MR L EHEY

the year 19,498 2,014

Cash and cash equivalent attheend of HXBEERBELEEY
the year 25,339 19,498

200 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



17.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

17. RKE 27z (R

Set out below are the summarised financial ) TXHIBEBEHAEEMEBEN 2 FFIERE

information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping

SrHBAREELARETHEES ALY

City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)
have a non-controlling interest which is material

to the Group. (Continued)

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “YmBEREH
Summarised statement of financial position BB RE

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

Current
Assets
Liabilities

Total net current assets

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

TE

BE 308,389 375,718
aE (138,584) (337,401)
RBEEFEEARE 169,805 38,317
BEEZFE 169,805 38,317
Rt FERER 83,204 18,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17.

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

TR 8 2 B 2 s ()

b) TXHINEBHAKEMSEEA 2 FFEEE
@ B A R & S R 2 RLUEL & 32 B
BERBE - ()

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng Y hmEREHE(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HENZEEE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZRA=1t—HLEE
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKFIT
Revenue WA - -
Profit before income tax B PS5 A e 183,436 =
Total comprehensive income 2HEWN SR 131,488 =
Profit allocated to non-controlling DEFIFERER ZEF
interests 64,429 -
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RKMIB QA 2% (1E)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RS2 8
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHEE - (8)
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng Y hmEREHE(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows BEREFRHE
For the year ended 31 March
BE-HA=+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFTT ARBTFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEHEERSRE
Cash generated from operations REMEXRE 493 222,760
Net cash generated from operating activities A8 F B FTELH 2 F5E 493 222,760
Cash flows from investing activity RETEHMELESRE
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from FEYLH B A R IER A
subsidiaries (8 28,005 (222,760)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing — K& ZBETESL (BT H)
activity e HEE 28,005 (222,760)
Cash flows from financing activities METEMEERESRE
Decrease in amount due to related company  F& Uk #8382 &1 3k I8 A > (490) =
Decrease in amounts due to fellow i AEES NS E S
subsidiaries Do (28,005) =
Net cash used in financing activities BEEE TR L FEE (28,495) =
Net increase in cash and cash RERAEEEYWEM
equivalents HE 3 -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#I3R & RIBESHEY
the year - -
Cash and cash equivalent attheend of EXBEERBELEEY
the year 3 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

18.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

18. REELE2ER

2022 2021

—EC-_F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT ARMFT

Unlisted investment, at cost JEETIRE « AR —* -

Share of post-acquisition loss Dh ik EE & B 1R —* -
“ Represented the amount less than RMB1,000 “ Ble IR ARE1,0007T

Under HKFRS 11, this joint arrangement is classified BIBEBEHBRELERFI1R - WEELHELIER

as a joint venture and has been included in the EECERFRAESETAGETBRE - RZF

consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had interest
in the following joint venture:

TF=A=t—B AEEEUTRLELERHE

B

Issued and fully

paid ordinary Percentage

share capital/ of equity

Place of Principal activities and registered interests held

Company name establishment place of operation capital by the Group
ERTRAR

EERRE S ARERERE

DRERE FRL i 2 TEEBRREXLE EMER Bk

Sino Grace Holdings Limited Hong Kong General trading, HK$2  50% (2021: 50%)

Hong Kong
ErEEEGRAT B —RE5 BE 27T 50%
(ZF=—%F:
50%)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not
individually material:

TRERAEELHEREA
BER

BELEZAHM

2022 2021
—E_— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREFT
Share of loss and total comprehensive income of & A EG & S M EEE L
a joint venture for the year FHEREETE —* -
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REEREGEDERZZ
interest in a joint venture RE&E =* -

ki Represented the amount less than RMB1,000

- ELRARK1,000t 2 &5
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18.

19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. REELEEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Except for above, at 31 March 2022 and 2021, BrbuiEIN RZZE_—FR_TF-_—F=A=+
neither contingent liabilities nor capital commitments — A AEBEWEEGKIABEREAREIE -
are shared by the Group.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19. BEAREREMEZEKRIIRzESHEE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
2022 2021
—=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR%FT
Equity instruments measured at FVOCI RAAEREMEZEKESIER
STECZREIA
Unlisted equity investments RETRERE 13,000 10,297

At 31 March 2022, within financial assets at FVOCI,
balance of approximately RMB13,000,000 (2021:
RMB10,297,000) represented carrying amount of
5.09% of equity interest in Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited shares held by the Group.

The equity investments of the Group was irrevocably
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

RZBE-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' REAALEREH
tmEmWREIECERMEET  BHROARE
13,000,0007t(=E =—F : AR¥10,297,0007T) &
REERFENIARETE RGN AR R F5.09%8% 7
ZARHEE -

HERASRERSZSTREREBRBEE - A5E
ZHEREETAHEMEEE/REAABEREME
Gl

Fair value of the equity instruments has been T A EBZENEI3MATHMETZ -
measured as described in note 33(f).
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. MBPYE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFT ARBTF T
Leasehold interests in land TR E R 1,080,213 810,756
Development costs 2 AR 529,832 1,049,460
Finance costs capitalised =N o PN 48,621 43,056
1,658,666 1,903,272
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and THHEEEEVATR  HERR-_ZTN_FF
have lease terms expiring from 2042 to 2090 (2021: ENEFCE—F: ZTWH_FE-ZF tt@z

2042 to 2077).

el ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

20. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

21.

(CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold
land where the interest in the land is held for
development of inventories and included in the same
line as properties held under development as that
within which the corresponding assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, impairment on
properties held under development of approximately
RMB18,127,000 (2021: nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
(note 6).

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale included property interests
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2077 (2021: 2043 to 2080). As at 31
March 2022, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB83,390,000 (2021:
RMB184,750,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, properties held
for sale with carrying value of RMB147,718,000 (2021:
RMB254,496,000) were transferred to investment
properties as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental (note 14).

20.

21.

e ESC Y

EREEERTHHERSEH  EhttEaRs
EREEFER Yt ABEAREERRAZAZTY
% o

BE_Z__€="A=+T—HBLEE BERE
AEEWBZRTREIAZLRDERBEHNARE
18,127,0007C( =& = —4F : ) (fiz¥6) °

FEWE

FEVEIRETR I Mo WE#ER  HEHR
TEN=FE_FTLEF (T —F: TP =
FE_FTNEZEF)2EER RZTE_=—_F=A=
+—H e KEHEENRERA
W AHBAREES3,390,000L (ZFE=_—4F : ARK
184,750,0007T) ©

BE_ZT_—_F#=A=+—HIEE EEE
BAREE147,718,000 (== —F : ARK
254,496,00070)  FFEMEBREIRENE - RAA
ZEMEDNRBEFRNEE = FI L 2EERELRH
BEE A2 (H5E14) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

22, FENRIERHMERKIE

2022 2021

—Eg2- T —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat ARMTF T ARMFT
Prepayments TETRIE (@ 651,847 1,032,914
Other receivables E fh pE U GRIE (b) 47,098 48,648
698,945 1,081,562

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group made
successful bids for the land use rights of four land parcels
located in Leping City, Jiangxi Province the PRC. Deposits
in total of approximately RMB887,010,000 were paid by
the Group to relevant authority to secure the land grant
contracts and included in prepayment as at 31 March
2021. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
has obtained land use right certificates of three out of
four land parcels. As at 31 March 2022, prepayment
included deposit paid of approximately RMB351,000,000
for remaining land parcel of which the land use rights
certificate has not been obtained by the Group.

None of the other receivables is either past due or
impaired. The other receivables related to counterparties
for which there was no recent history of default.

The Group recognises loss allowance for other receivables
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 respectively
based on the accounting policies stated in note 3.11.
Further details of the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from other receivables are set out in note 33(b).

Kt

BE-_ZT-—F=A=+—BULEE AEEXDPIE
iz AR BT 7 4 44 7 PO iRt R e T b (0 PR A - AR
[F)78 RAMEHE S (B RH 49 AR #6887,010,000 T 932 % BA
ArEEARERBEYFA ST -_—F=A=1+—8
MENHKEAN - BE_T-_—_F=A=1+—HILFE -
RNREBEDESUIRH I E R =8 i E AR - K=
T--F=-A=+—H8 BNRESERF SR
SEHARSEIHMERAER) MIAHRESHARE
351,000,0007T ©

10048 L At B MK R TR 8 B SRR o Lt B W R IR B
BENLBEZRZHTER -

P

REERBHFS AT 2 @ ER S ERHEE=-Z
CoERCE—F=ZA=+—R I FEHMERZIE
ZEERE  AEBGEEBRREKEEMERFBELE Y
EERR 2 #— S BERMES3(D) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

23. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 23. EEFERUARBRERBITER

BALANCES

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AR¥FT ARMFT
Cash and bank deposits RE RIRITFK 345,223 339,452
Less: Ve
Deposit pledged against banking PARBERRITRUE T
facilities granted to the mortgages B2 FER (a) (42,518) (34,574)
Deposit pledged for bank loans BERITERIEIR 275K (b) (11,000) (5,500)
Deposit restricted for construction MEETERGIZFHK
works (197,510) (207,166)
Cash and cash equivalents for the BEEHEMERMEZ
purpose of the consolidated statement IR & R EFED
of cash flows 94,195 92,212

Notes:

(@) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security
in the PRC as detailed in note 31. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period
from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the
date when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. Such charges will be
released upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.

(b) As at 31 March 2022, the bank deposit of
RMB11,000,000 (2021: RMB5,500,000) was pledged
against bank loans due to be settled over twelve months
after the reporting period (note 25). The effective interest
rates of this deposit was 2.11% (2021: 3.80%).

At 31 March 2022, approximately RMB343,353,000
(2021: RMB247,240,000) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

Hrat

(@)  BUHMEESTATARAL - ZEFRAE TRITERERR T
Bz iR G o R FRITAMBARE Y2 BREHRIR
BEN - EREHRERRZBERANENXERERT
FEMEHERRENR - ERERBERDEERERT
FEMAEZR R

) WH-ZZE-—_—_F=A=+—H  AEK¥11,000,000c(=F
——%F : AR¥5,500,00070) ZRITERERE BT
—EABEBAEE 2 RITER (W FE25) (EHER - ZFER
ZEBERNRAE211%(ZE - —4%F : 3.80%) °

RZZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H ' HH ARK¥343,353,000
T(ZE = —4 : AR¥247,240,0007T) B1FERLH
BZRITHHEMBEMEB RS - ZEEHUAR
BESTHE - ARBARTA B B EBBINE o RIEH BN
EEHEPRERE EERNEERRT  A5H
BB BIE R ETIMNE XS 2 IRITHBARK
HAIAGNEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

me M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z = F——

24. BEARR -

R MR

F=ZH=1—HILFE

FESHROR R H B RO’

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfet AR#¥FT AREFT
Accounts payable FET AR X @) 30,546 33,182
Accruals and other payables FE T SR8 N H b FE T 5RIB (b) 525,515 667,014
Notes: Kt -
(@  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice @ ENRRIREZEAHZERESTNOT
date, is as follows:
2022 2021
B —F T —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARKTFT
Less than 3 months LR=MEA 20,786 15,082
3 - 6 months =@ A=REA 145 59
6 months — 1 year NEAZE—F 1,524 250
More than 1 year —FPE 8,091 17,791
30,546 33,182

(b) Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB214,223,000 as at 31
March 2022 (2021: RMB276,780,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

) H-ZZE-_—F=A=+—8 " stARBFREREMRE
NRBEZEAREXNAREMIEE HERIHOARE
214,223,00070(ZZE =——4F : AR¥276,780,0007T) °
B RENBREERBZE R REE#EENE - AR
AR MR E HER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 B2 = F - —F =HA=+—HIF F/Z

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND 24, BENERR - BirREREMENSREGE

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) Btat - (&

(o) (Continued) ) (&
As at 31 March 2021, other payables included an amount RZZTZ—F=A=+—0 EMERNFIEREELYT
of approximately RMB222,760,000 collected from TERAERMBRER((HHEBEB)KNERBAHA=T
Leping City Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (the ——FZ A=+ B E(TURERE]D
“Local Authority”) in connection with a land resumption # AR #222,760,0007T + 5% 1755 FA BB\ & 81 B i 75 #E S
agreement (the “Land Resumption Agreement”) dated RIS ARIBZ WG 0 BES MG EE R EMR
26 March 2021 and entered into between Fenghuang IFE REEME T MR ILeE2RES AR (B
Jincheng and the Local Authority under which Fenghuang i) REBBESHEARE222,760, OOO7T? AR
Jincheng should surrender its land parcel located at ARIREBBE T B EBEORRRE S SEE -
the Hushan Meiyan Reclamation Farm, Leping City, i RERRARERB - A TR BRGERILE - FIBER
Jingdezhen City, Jiangxi Province (the “Resumed Land”) BlE 3 B b 5 i B UER Y A B b U R A RO AT
to the Local Authority at a consideration by way of cash BIRETHAEE  MEWRRE LT bEREDSR
compensation of RMB222,760,000, subject to the BE&#EAME - RZT 7*¢£ﬂ +—BRITHRERE
passing of resolution by the shareholders of the Company FAEE ABREBBAARATGHRRESE -
to approve the Land Resumption Agreement. In the event HE_Z-_—"F=A=+—HULEFE  AEEERLH
that the resolution was not passed, the Land Resumption W M R FE 4 AR #5201,564,0007T (B 7E6) ©

Agreement should be terminated, all payments received
by Fenghuang Jingcheng from the Local Authority in
connection with the Land Resumption would be refunded
without interest to the Local Authority and the land
use rights of the Resumed Land remained under the
Fenghuang Jincheng. The resolution was passed and the
Company obtained the approval from its shareholders at
a special general meeting held on 21 May 2021. Net gain
from land resumption of approximately RMB201,564,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2022

(note 6).

As at 31 March 2021, other payables included an amount R-IZE-—F=ZA=+—80 EMEMFEBSEHAR
of approximately RMB141,490,000, which was payable #141,490,0007C B IAR R B EREBR AT 2K
to Jiangxi Dongjing Property Development Limited (‘T 74 H - EREEASENRB AR T MER S HI0%ARIE -
RS b EF# AR A F) which held 49% equity interest ZERNFIELEHARER R RREANRERKIAR S
in the Group’s subsidiary, Leping City. These payable Hig -

balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand in cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

25. WITREMER

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥TFT ARMFT
Bank loans —secured and guaranteed IRITER - B HEIERER (a) 465,990 449,550
Other loan — unsecured and guaranteed  E it B 3 — S48 [
BHER ) - 142,490
465,990 592,040
The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and BITREMERREEITOT :
other loans is as follows:
2022 2021
—Eg-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMFT
Current TE
Portion of bank and other loans due for AR —FARNBEEZBNIZREK
repayment within one year or on demand EEZRITRAMERIH 142,540 240,690
Non-current FEFRED
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after B —F£ R HEE Z R1TTER
one year o 323,450 351,350
Total borrowings BEE 465,990 592,040

The Group’s bank and other loans are denominated in

AEBEEEZAARBIERTREME K

RMB and repayable as follows: T~
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Within one year or on demand —FRRIREK 142,540 240,690
In the second year REZFAR 198,700 170,525
In the third to fifth year RE=ZZ2FRFNR 124,750 180,825
323,450 351,350
Total borrowings wmEg 465,990 592,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@

As at 31 March 2022, the effective interest rates of the
Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 6.9% to
10.6% (2021: 7.5% to 10.6%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2022, bank loans were:

0] secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB6,573,000 (2021:
RMB47,954,000) (note 13);

(ii) secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB738,535,000 (2021:
RMB409,149,000) (note 14);

(iii) secured by the Group’s bank deposits

of approximately RMB11,000,000 (2021:

RMBS5,500,000) (note 23);

(iv) secured by certain present and future issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group; and
(V) guaranteed by Mr. Wong, the controlling

shareholder and director of the Company.

On 10 January, 2020, the Group has entered into a
RMB150 million revolving loan facility agreement with
Huzhou Pan Hong Runhe Property Development Limited
of which Mr. Wong, the controlling shareholder and a
director of the Company is a beneficial owner. As at 31
March 2021, the outstanding balance of RMB142,490,000
was guaranteed by Mr. Wong, interest-bearing at a fixed
interest rate of 9.35% (2020: 9.35%) was repayable within
one year after 31 March 2021 and subject to a repayment
on demand clause. During the year ended 31 March
2022, the revolving loan facility was expired and other
loan was fully repaid by the Group.

25. ITREMENR(E)

Kyt

(@

R-ZBE-—FE=A=+—08 AEEAEHRTER
BEREMNENTEEC.I9%E10.6%(ZTE-—F : 7.5%=
10.6%) °

RZF-=_F=A=+—R0 RITEX:

0] RAEEYZE - BE &KZELNAREE,573,0007T
(ZZ=—%F + AR¥47,954,0007T) {EHEH8 (M 5%
13)

(ii) AASEEIREYELNARKT738,535,0007T (=
T——F : AR¥409,149,0007T) {E#& 1 (M 7%
14)

AL ERITERN ARE11,000,0000(ZF =
—4 1 AR¥S5,500,0007T) {E1E 38 (1 5E23) ¢

(i)

HAKESE THEAR ZE THAERKRKEET
PR - R

()

V)  HBARRAERRRREETEERER -

RZT-ZZTF—F+H8  AEBEEBHNABBENEH
ERZERAR(RRAREERRXESTILAEAEE
#HHEA N)FTM A R150,000,0007T 2 BIRE KB E 1%
HFoMNZTE-—F=-A=+—H8 AEBEHARE
142,490,000 C R L £ AR - REEFXK.35% (=T
ZZF 1 9.835%)F B BRZT-_—F=-A=+—H%
—FREE  WEBTREREERR BE=ZT==
FZA=+—HLFE BREFBECIHHMEME
HEHRAEEEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 26. EEBIEEE (BE)
At 31 March 2022, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RZTBZZF=A=+—RH  EEHEELE(ABRF)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2021: 25%). The AT E25% (= = —F : 25%) sl - HER=
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising BMEAZEEHBEEE (BB Z2Z&HHMT

from temporary differences are as follows:

Deferredtax ~ Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities in liabilities in  Deferred tax

assetsin  Deferred tax respect of fair respect of liabilities in

respect assetsin  value change  undistributed respect of

of provision respect  of investment earnings of contract
for LAT  of tax losses properties  subsidiaries cost assets Total

REENE  RNELT
EiiE  EHEER  AAERD  AOREN  EAHEXA
HERER:  ABZEE  RRZEE  RBCEE  BEREZ
BEHERE HEKE RERE HERE BEHEAE act
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETT  AR¥TT  ARETT  ARETn

At 1 April 2020 RZZ-2EMA—H 11,178 1,170 (90,960) = = (78,612)
Deferred tax credited/ (charged) MEZET A/ (1K) 2
to the profit or loss (note 9) BRHE WY (1,762) 952 (5,903) = = (6,713)

At31 March 2021 and 1 April  R=Z=—F

2021 ZA=+-RAk
—“E-—FmA—H 9,416 2,122 (96,363) - - (85,325)
Deferred tax credited/(charged)  RIBZET A/ (118) 2
tothe profitor lossote 9 EIEFIB(H29) 11,999 (2,122) (4,435) (1,000 (2,000 2,442
Deferred tax charged to other I E b2 AWz
comprehensive income i i 13705
(note 14) (Hizt14) - = (19,500) = = (19,500)
At 31 March 2022 RZZZZ
=A=+-A 21,415 - (120,798) (1,000 (20000  (102,383)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried EEFRIIREESL TS 2 BIIAEE T A®R - N
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax AREEBRRERT BN ER 2 BERIBF =B
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. BeRZBEZZFRZTE-—F=A=+—H &
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses SEWEE AKRERTIEEE A EAEHRIER K E
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31 RGN ©

March 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 26. ELBEELEE (BF) @)

(CONTINUED)

Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2022,
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB45,833,000 (2021: RMB26,343,000) in respect
of aggregate amount of temporary difference
of approximately RMB916,668,000 (2021:
RMB526,867,000) associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised.
because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

DIERFINEREE 2R B THIRTBNH E5%ERNT
K R-ZTE-_—_F=F=+—H ENBRARIEXD
IKENEE R EEESTENARKI6,668,000
T(ZZ=——%F : AR#¥526,867,0007T) Z i T Fi1H
BEHARKA5,833,000c (T -—F : AR¥
26,343,00070) (MR T LARER © JTIHRASE B EE
FlZENB AR ZRERE - EEBERBRAIET
SRR R REE o

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BR
Number of
shares RMB’000
BHEE ARBFT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRRMEE0.01/B L 2 TR
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 and RZZZZFHA—HUEK
2022 R —FRIFF
=A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE
At 1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 and RZEZEFHA—BUEZ
2022 T —FRZFT_F=H
Sar=—E 2,464,000,000 20,735

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

g AAARAEMHEATEEHE 1L
BIAR B LB -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue of
shares of the Company at premium.

Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.

FVOCI reserve

Balance represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve of the Group
represents the gains arising on revaluation of
properties.

28. &
REE 2 FHEE

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

RERNGARERDE - BE

ZHERBERINT

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

MR8
AEE 2 B s EREAR ARG ERITRN
PRESLZE(E

EERE

RIEAETERER  HEBARAKRETEE
FOARPTEEE 2 R BIRAERE D 10% B B )X
ERE BEERBAEREBRNBARGEMER
250% - RRFHEBBAND KRS THER
BIERBEA A ZAVEST < AERBTADIK -
MRS B8 X BB BRAS RSN o

BARBEREMZE KRS RREE
BBREANERE  BERBEHREBERE
FREMBRELENEOREERRAAEBRE
fE2EREN R BRERERABERFE
@JO

VIR E fh#E
AEENFELRBEREEEMMERMELN

A
I ES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

28. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28. f#E(E)
The Company AAF
Share Retained
premium profits Total
IR 17 %18 BaA &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
At 1 April 2020 RZZE_ZFMA—H 565,212 26,852 592,064
Profit for the year and total FRRMEFAZE
comprehensive income for the Uz 48 %8
year - 27,290 27,290
Dividend paid to owners of the ERRARIEEA
Company d) &5\ - (22,531) (22,531)
At 31 March 2021 and RZEZ—4F
1 April 2021 —A=+—HK
—E-—FA[—H 565,212 31,611 596,823
Profit for the year and total FRRFNMFAZE
comprehensive income Wz 4858
for the year - 36,992 36,992
Dividend paid to owners of the EAQRER A
Company ) &5\ = (20,317) (20,317)
At 31 March 2022 R=-2=Z=
=B=+—H 565,212 48,286 613,498
29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 20. EAREIE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial RS BHREREMBOMBEEIN  AEEHEE
statements, the Group had the following outstanding AT RBITE AR
capital commitments:
2022 2021
—=E_— T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT ARBTF T
Contracted but not provided for BMUTEBEITHNEREE
in respect of
- properties held under development - BRI 518,359 229,637
— property, plant & equipment - BEREE - 4,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. LEASES

(@)

The Group leases premises under lease
agreements. The lease agreements are between
one to fifteen years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants. Leased assets are
not used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leases. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use assets
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

- uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk of lessee; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease
terms.

None of the leases contain variable lease
payments.

30. #HE

@)

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

AEERBEHERZEEYE - HEHEED
NFE—Z+HEF -

MEA TR (A R B EE R E 5U%T|ﬁ1l5‘¥§(&
B - HEBZW N MEKERNRHE  HEEE

WARBIEEE 2 EHm -

MEMNKEREERNS N EREER o MELEEK
BEZME(AEEHEEBEENL) - AIZRAE
A 2 HE 8 8 A = (BNME Bl A AR R
RIBPIRIEE R - FER RAGRIT R EEUE A

REEBEHEZEEMSELRESHAX
FEFIZR)BEIR -

AHKEF - AEED -

HEES

- BB LEAERNAEAIHERDY
FZTREZNE  BETHEARR
BERF=ZTRERBREKRT 22 :

- EARMEEESN - ALEEERRA
xR BRABEAZEERRIEAER K&

HEMEREIHHEENRK -
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e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

30. LEASES (CONTINUED) 30. HE(E)
(b) The amount included in the consolidated ) WUTHhEfEfEaealBRiikcHEaBECR
statement of financial position in respect of the HERRFERN
carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year is as follows:
Premises
leased for Leased
own use machinery Total
BA
HEYE THEHS st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETFT
At 1 April 2020 R-B-ZFNA—H - - -
Addition =T 16,496 - 16,496
Interest expenses FERZ 270 - 270
Lease payments HERR (1,493) = (1,493)
At 31 March 2021 and N-EBE-—&F
1 April 2021 =A=+—HEK
—E-—-FMA—H 15,273 - 15,273
Ad(dition WE - 3,704 3,704
Interest expenses B 165 209 374
Lease payments MERK (2,372) (738) (3,110
At 31 March 2022 N-TE—-—
=A=+—H 13,066 3,175 16,241
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRMEMNR B HBERLAT ¢
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Minimum lease payment due RIATHAR 2 E 2
=ERBENRK
— Within one year - —FR 6,708 3,141
- In the second to fifth years, inclusive -WMFEFERF(BEER
M) 13,532 6,730
— More than five years -RAFENE = 9,942
20,240 19,813
Less: future interest expenses W RRF B (3,999) (4,540)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEEZHE 16,241 15,273
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

30. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(©)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #Z = F——

30. HEH)

F=ZH=1—HILFE

The present value of future lease payments are © REREENRZBEITWOT :
analysed as:

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥FT AREFT
Current liabilities nBBE 5,704 2,465
Non-current liabilities JERBAE 10,537 12,808
16,241 15,273
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease 0 AEEREMERBIUHEBELEHEEMNEK

receipts under non-cancellable operating leases

in respect of its properties as follows:

RUWHR z xR EERFRWT ¢

2022 2021

—_E__ —E-—%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTF T AEET T

Not later than one year —F R 39,341 32,474
Later than one year and not later than five —FLAFETNHBBRF

years 110,584 73,901

Later than five years HEFENE 18,267 43,806

168,192 150,181

The Group leases out its investment properties
which run for initial periods of one to sixteen
years (2021: one to sixteen years), without
option to renew the lease terms at the respective
expiry dates. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

AEBHBAREYNE  MSFHE—ZE+F
ZE—F —EF+RF) REZEEHET
RBEEHZEEE HEMEARS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

31.

32.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2022, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB1,258,661,000
(2021: RMB1,164,009,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within one or two years after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant properties; or (i) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loans by the purchasers of
properties. No provision for the Group’s obligation
under the guarantees has been made as the
directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following material related party transactions:

31.

32.

M ER
REBEEAETYEEVUERTHEREBEER
THERZEEREAREER KT =
ZHF=ZRA=1+—H HABBRZ2ERBELOAE
AR®1,258,661,000 (= =—F : ARK
1,164,009,0007T) ° Z FERERATEBARE
EFEE)RIE  ((BHEWEMEEE(—RENER
HHEREBYEEZ —IMFRRMEE  Ki/PEER
EEEBERE - HREERBTAAIELIRAE
EERMBR AW ARTGAERZ ERETEL
B o

BELTRS
Rz EFMIERREME D FIRE 2R S RERIN
AEEEETUTERBETIRS ¢

Group
rE
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hat AE¥FT ARMFT
Car park rental expense charged by THALTWE Z ZEH
Helws (@)
- Spouse of Mr. Wong —EEAEZERE 25 54
Rental expense charged by T3 RARWE Z W B
- A related company - —E@EAT (b) 147 323
Interest expense charged by T RABYELZ ) B U B
- A related company - —FERT] (b) and
25(b)
(b)X25(b) 2,441 4,317

Notes:

(@) During years ended 31 March 2022, Ms. Chan Heung
Ling (“Ms. Chan”), the spouse of Mr. Wong, has entered
into an agreement of car park rental for HK$60,000 (2021:
HK$60,000) per year.

(b) Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan have beneficial interests in these
related companies.

it -

@ BEZZ-_—_F-A=Z+—AHLFE BRBRZT(RK
x| TEAEZEG)REESRESI LR - FA5
60,0007 7L (ZF =—4F : 60,000/ 7T) °

I

b) CERERRAEINZEMEATEA LS -

E
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

During the reporting periods, the Group maintained
a repayable on demand, interest-free and unsecured
current account due to a company in which Mr. Wong
has beneficial interests. The current account due to
this company was fully settled during the reporting
periods.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain highest paid employees, are
disclosed in note 12.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group currently
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

32.

33.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

BERRS (&)

RBEHRE - AREER —AEN—HAR0EEE
RzrmfEAEmags) NIZERER R RER
MERER - BNZRBNERERD R HREHH
BHEE -

FEBIREBASHMH

ZK%%@ REBRABZFM BRENARAESER
ET &= MES Z M) R 125 -

BBERERERERBE

AEEEBSAKEARZRY KRR  BEMS

R (BEINERBRENEZRR) FERBRRAHE
e AREZEEBRREEHHUSRTE 2T

AIFRANE - IR HAKBEMBERR 2 BETE
ERERE - AEERKIETABX 2 EREE
BR kIS - KW i%A HiAMes  wEET
REBEABREAE  OMRBIERBAEERE
ZEATS R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. Bt EMRERE B ERBE (@)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes. The most significant financial
risks to which the Group is exposed to be described
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks,
bank and other loans which bore interests at
fixed and floating interest rates. Bank and other
loans arranged at variable rates and fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The interest rate and repayment terms of
the borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in note 25.

Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the year
and retained profits would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB1,025,000 (2021:
RMB951,000) respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve-month period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022 has been prepared on
the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 31.

In respect of other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group did
not have any accounts receivable.

The Group measures loss allowances for
other receivables, bank balances and pledged
deposits at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that the
general economic conditions will not significantly
change for the 12 months after the reporting
date. Applying the ECL model results in loss
allowances of approximately RMB11,553,000
as at 31 March 2022 (2021: RMB9,421,000).
As at 31 March 2022, the gross carrying
amount of other receivables is approximately
RMB58,651,000 (2021: RMB58,069,000) and
the loss allowances increased by approximately
RMB2,132,000 (2021: RMB2,008,000) for other
receivables during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of other receivables during the year is as
follows:

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

MR EE B R R BUR ()

EEE R ()
FREMEBYRFE BBRBRERZEINT

(b)

RMB’000

AR®FT

At 1 April 2020 RZE—TFHA—H 7,413
Impairment losses recognised during the year FANER B EEE 2,008
A 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=HA=+—H 9,421
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRERZBIEBE 2,132
A 31 March 2022 R-E-__F=A=+—H 11,553

An adverse change in business, financial and
macroeconomic conditions has resulted in an
increase in overall loss allowance.

In respect of other receivables, the Group is not
exposed to any significant credit risk exposure
to any single counterparty or any group of
counterparties having similar characteristics.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged
deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings. Based on
the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for
bank balances and pledged deposits.

The Group’s cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits are mainly balances with
state-owned banks in the PRC and a reputable
bank in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2022, the
Group had approximately 61% (2021: 54%)
bank balances placed with two banks in the
PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries.
The credit risk on these financial assets of the
Company is limited because the counterparties
have no historical default record and the
directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly change for the 12
months after the reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances, other receivables, and
other payables which are denominated in HKS,
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group did
not have significant exposure to risk resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables, lease liabilities and bank
and other loans, and its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis
for other bank loans is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

33.

(d)

B b E

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

BEERRBEGE

T8 S B ()
FEREERReHERE
EESURNEBERASBR - FEEZHE
BERERNNRERADES R - AR
HERERASHERE B MBBIEHTH
e e
STK -

2 HPERE

TRESRTEVIPEIMARE ZEREA
B RERPEBEZEBREFTNAMBERSR

=
E-°

HEMS @ e ATﬁﬁﬁ%%%FﬁﬁZE
EREBGRFZEHER P DI RR %
?%W%Heri%ﬁFiZﬁémﬁ@Mﬁ

ERAESI R ERIENEVMEMER) - B
ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁzﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁgmﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
HifR R -

EEEREEARAT - 2021/22 5 227



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. Bt EMRERE B ERBE (@)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d #RBESERGE
More than
Ondemand  one year but Total Total
or within less than More than  undiscounted carrying
one year five years five years amount amount

RERS —FhE

R-Fn [EFEBEF BEME RRERAR EEAE

AMB'000 AMB'000 RMB'000 AMB 000 RMB'000
ARETL  ABETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR

At 31 March 2022 R-B-Z

=B=1+-H
Accounts payable R 30,546 = = 30,546 30,546
Accruals and other payables e B REM

JEf 3R 55,515 = = 55,515 595,515
Lease liabilities MEaR 6,708 4,609 8,923 20,240 16,241
Bank loans FITER 174,707 366,171 = 540,878 465,990

737,476 370,780 8,923 1,117,179 1,038,292

Financial quarantee issued: B{EH 2 B

BR
Maximum amount guaranteed EREREE 1,258,661 = = 1,258,661 -
At 31 March 2021 R-E=-%

=A=t+-H
Accounts payable EREER 33,182 = = 33,182 33,182
Accruals and other payables fER B R

e 667,014 = = 667,014 667,014
Lease liabilities HEERE 3,141 6,730 9,942 19,813 15,273
Bank and other loans BAREMER 273,966 395,826 = 669,792 592,040

977,303 402,556 9,942 1,389,801 1,307,509
Financial quarantee issued: [RAEPAL
o

Maximum amount guaranteed REERSH 1,164,009 = = 1,164,009 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a result,
these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the financial positions of the companies in the
Group, the directors do not consider that it is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

33.
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5% e Bt - WESBESN _LAFEA DT
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Maturity analysis -

Bank and other loans subject to a repayment on demand

clause based on scheduled repayments

WA - RRREEREBRRRZBTRAMER

(RETERD)
Total
undiscounted Carrying
Within 1 year Over 1 year amount amount
—FR —FHE REREHE RHEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AEETT
31 March 2022 —E—-—

=A=+-H . . = =

31 March 2021 —E-—HF
=H=+—H 154,308 - 154,308 142,490

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Company held
no material financial liabilities and the Company
ensured that it maintains sufficient financial
support from Group’s subsidiaries to meet its
liquidity requirements.
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R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets
measured at fair value in the statement of
financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:
o Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

° Level 2:  inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based
on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EEMEIE R ZREEKE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
()  Fair value measurements recognised in the N REESHBERRERBRZAAEBEEGE)
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the REGHBURARIBRARBIECCREED
consolidated statement of financial position are HAUTAREER

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ERF E28 38 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTR ARBTR AR®TFT

Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z_CF

ZA=t-HLEE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI RARERAMZE
WiassliR s e RAE
= Unlisted equity investments - R EMRERE = = 13,000 13,000
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1H VR R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFI ARETFT
Year ended 31 March 2021 Bz-%--F
ZAZt-BLFE
Assets BE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREREMZE
WS eREE
- Unlisted equity investments - R EMRERE - = 10,297 10,297
There were no transfers between levels during FRE R FEW EeE A -
the year.
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried IRIEE KA B8 A SR (380 IR A R (B 5
at fair value based on significant unobservable R 2R T AYRNT

inputs (Level 3) are as follows:

232  Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited = ANNUAL REPORT 2021/22



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

MR EE B R R BUR ()

RiGEMBRRARER 2 AAETEGE)

Unlisted equity investments K ETRERE
2022 2021
—E__F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB¥TF T ARET T
At the beginning of the year REH] 10,297 7,665

Total gains or losses: W sk Bt 4R FE

= in other comprehensive income -REMZEKE 2,703 2,632
At the end of the year RER 13,000 10,297

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using market approach of
comparable companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount.

-

BE > YHmR=HE

AETRETAZ AR EGRAALLARTSE
B 32x
23 /)1

BIESTRIEHAE

Significant unobservable input BATAEERA IR
2022 2021
—E_— =
Discount for lack of marketability B M RBtTE 25% 25%

The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. As at 31 March 2022, it is
estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in the discount
for lack of marketability by 5% (2021: 5%) would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by RMB885,000 (2021:
RMB687,000).

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

AR EFTE 8RR iR ET RN RG] -
RZZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H " A5 EMEEM
FERBFIENBERLT @ Wk TG mE TS
BRA EINE%(ZE - —F : 5%) 0 AEE
2 E 2w, m A A R#885,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. Bt EMRERE B ERBE (@)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9) RENEP>ZEREERAGHE
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities NTBREEGEMBERARZEREERE
included in the consolidated statements of BEHEAARKBEMNAZIBE :

financial position and the headings in which they
are included are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARETT

Financial assets measured at fair value EAABIEZELREE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREREMER
WP S BEE 13,000 10,297

Financial assets measured at amortised ZEEREFTEZ SR

cost BE
Other receivables ot FE UK IR 47,098 48,648
Pledged deposits B FER 53,518 40,074
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHER 291,705 299,378
392,321 388,100
405,321 398,397
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHRATEZER
=L
Accounts payable FERTER X 30,546 33,182
Accruals and other payables FESTERIE R H At
FEfT IR 525,515 667,014
Lease liabilities HEB®E 16,241 15,273
Bank and other loans RITREMER 465,990 592,040
1,038,292 1,307,509
At the end of reporting period, the carrying RWMEBRR - REBEKATHECERNEERS
values of financial assets and financial liabilities MEEZERMEEEARERS °
at amortised costs are approximate to their fair
value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

(i To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt
any formal dividend policy.

34.

e MR EmR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2022 {2 —F — —F =H=+—HIF F/Z

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 34. EXREE(E)
Management regards total equity as capital. The EEERERBRERAREAR RZTE-__F=H=
amount of capital as at 31 March 2022 amounted +—H  BXESELHAARE2,014,076,0007T(=ZF
to approximately RMB2,014,076,000 (2021: ——%F : AR¥1,656,415,0007T) - BIRELEETE
RMB1,656,415,000), which the management AEARXREARRUEREKGR  RAEHS
considers as optimal having considered the projected HEBEEKFE RZZFZZFR=-ZF-_—F=H=
capital expenditures and the projected strategic TR ZEBFBEEERLEENT
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity
ratios at 31 March 2022 and 2021 were as follows:
2022 2021
—g=-= -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Accounts payable FET AR K 30,546 33,182
Accruals and other payables FEET I N HAtb FE T 5B 525,515 667,014
Lease liabilities HERE 16,241 15,273
Bank and other loans RITREMER 465,990 592,040
1,038,292 1,307,509
Less: Cash and bank balances B IR RIRTTE A (291,705) (299,378)
Pledged deposits BEBER (53,518) (40,074)
Net debts (EVrYE 693,069 968,057
Equity e 2,014,076 1,656,415
Net debts to equity ratio B FREY bt & 34% 58%
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GERESRERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a BREeRBELEEYEE
2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of FL4FAEESRERME 2
consolidated statements of cash flows RERBFEFEY 94,195 92,212
(b) Major non-cash transaction b) EEXBEEXRS
Deregistration of subsidiaries B =100 RAT|
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR#TFT AREFT
Assets/(liabilities) disposed of: BERELEE (B8R :
Properties, plant and equipment W - BEREE - 2
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFHIE - EZE& K
receivables H 4th fE WL FRIE = 3,010
Accrued liabilities and other JEFTBE R EMERN
payables KT8 - 4)
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries 5B A &) 2 18 6 = 3,008
There was no net inflow/outflow of cash and RBERARBEEETHEHNBEAT CRE KB
cash equivalents in respect of the deregistration SEEBWRA RLFE

of subsidiaries during the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GERSRERMZEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) BMEITBFEEZEEYHE:

financing activities:

Dividend Lease Bank and
payable liabilities  other loans
(note 30) (note 25)

RITR

EARE HEEE Hth &R
(H#t7#30) (Htzt25)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFIT ARETFiT ARETFIL

At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-FFMYA—H - - 523,384
Changes from cash flows: Renes & -
Dividend paid ERIRE (22,531) - -
Proceeds from new bank and RTTREMERZ

other loans Fr18 308 - = 280,490
Repayment of bank and other BERITEREMER

loans - - (211,834)
Repayment of principal portion of {BEHE& GRS D

lease liabilities - (1,223) -
Interest paid ERHLE - (270) (26,377)

R

G

Total changes from financing cash B &R & RE L 1A

flows (22,531) (1,493) 42,279
Other changes: o &
Dividend declared EEIRERE 22,531 = =
Interest expenses B = 270 3,738
Additions of lease liabilities HEBaEEM - 16,496 =
Capitalised borrowing costs EETMEEER A - = 22,639
Total other changes Hith BB a8 22,531 16,766 26,377
As 31 March 2021 RZE——F=A=+—H - 15,273 592,040
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 H#E=—F - —F=F =+—HI-F&E

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GERSARERMZEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) RMETBFEEZEEBYER: (&)

financing activities: (Continued)

Dividend Lease Bank and
payable liabilities  other loans
(note 30) (note 25)
RITR
EBARE HEAE HittERK
(Kt5£30) (Ht5t25)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETFT
At 1 April 2021 R-ZZE-——FMA—H - 15,273 592,040
Changes from cash flows: Rem=Le)
Dividend paid ERRE (20,317) = =
Proceeds from new bank and FIRITREMER 2
other loans FR1S3/IA - - 148,500
Repayment of bank and other BEERITEREMER
loans - - (274,550)
Repayment of principal portion of (EEHEE &GRS D
lease liabilities - (2,736) -
Interest paid EAHE - (374) (18,148)
Total changes from financing cash B &R & REE B EEE
flows (20,317) (3,110) (144,198)
Other changes: Hofh
Dividend declared _/)Eﬂx,u 20,317 = =
Interest expenses FERX = 374 4,315
Additions of lease liabilities HE B FEEN - 3,704 =
Capitalised borrowing costs BEETEERA - = 13,833
Total other changes HEEB) e 20,317 4,078 18,148
At 31 March 2022 R-ZE__F£=H=+—H = 16,241 465,990
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For the year ended 31 March 2022 #{Z - F - —F = =+—HIFF&

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. ARQTEEMREK
THE COMPANY
2022 2021
—E_— —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥For ARBFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SCIENGIPR - $ 17 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A 5R78 M H b B YRR 923 932
Amounts due from subsidiaries A ENGIE €] 365,445 339,141
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTT4E 8 45 180
366,413 340,253
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTFRI8 I b FE 45 5B 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B R B FUA 17,568 8,083
17,632 8,147
Net current assets RBEEZFE 348,781 332,106
Total assets less current liabilities @AEERKEBEE 634,233 617,558
Net assets EEFE 634,233 617,558
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the Z2Q F#EHE A EILER
Company
Share capital [N 27 20,735 20,735
Reserves i 28 613,498 596,823
Total equity EREE 634,233 617,558
On behalf of the Board REEES
Wong Lam Ping Shi Feng
5 SEMROK fig
il Director Director
E2 EE
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 31 March

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHRE

BE=A=1t—-HLEE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—EB-)N\F —E—NF —E-TE —E-—F —E-CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT AR%ETx
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(i=&7)) (i=&7) (i&E7))
Revenue WA 158,675 412,826 448,420 426,884 1,738,833
Profit before income tax BTSRRI & F 41,302 67,928 140,691 117,352 607,130
Income tax expenses TS X (40,114) (35,292) (84,749 (66,468) (290,759)
Profit for the year ERBEF 1,188 32,636 55,942 50,884 316,371
Attributable to: AT ALELN
Owners of the Company E/NGIEZZS N 4,883 20,730 56,958 57,544 259,119
Non-controlling interests IR (3,695) 11,906 (1,016) (6,660) 57.252
1,188 32,636 55,942 50,884 316,371
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND REEE - RzRREE
LIABILITIES
As at 31 March
R=B=+-—8
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-)N\F “E-NF —ET-EF —ET-—F —E-CE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRETT AREFT ARETT ARETT AR%¥Tx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 873,765 690,201 947,132 1,253,687 1,524,474
Current assets MEEE 2,641,379 3,135,881 3,348,273 3,016,377 3,093,505
Total assets MEE 3,515,144 3,826,082 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EERaE
Total equity ERERE 1,602,106 1,602,182 1,619,349 1,656,415 2,014,076
Non-current liabilities FERBARE 767,785 561,273 340,510 461,021 457,785
Current liabilities mENEE 1,145,253 1,662,627 2,335,546 3,052,628 2,146,118
Total liabiftes mal 1918088 2223900 2676056 3518649 2603903
Total equity and liabilities EahkEERSE 3,515,144 3,826,082 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M BHE

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO TEMKLE 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\E —Z-NE —T-TF —E--F —E--F
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(f&51)) (l=E5) )
Gross profit margin (%) EME (%) 43.7 23.8 43,0 39.7 28.9
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 0.75 7.9 125 11.9 18.2
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BREBELE %)
(Hrit1) 59.9 61.7 204 35.4 22.5%
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) e E (15)
(Hrit2) 23 1.89 1.43 1.28 1.44
Earnings per share BREN (ARES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (Hi23) 0.2 08 2.3 2.3 10.5
Net asset value per share ARAEBA
attributable to owners of EhERFEE
the Company (RMB) (Note 4) (AR®) (Kizt4) 0.6 06 0.6 0.6 0.7
Notes: Hfaz -
1. Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank 1. BAREEBHRUEEERTREMEREEE) FABEBER
and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity. BrUABERSBRERTHE ©
2. Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total 2. ML RN FRNTEEELERARE B ERE -
current liabilities as at the end of the year.
3. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit 3. BREABRFNZFARQBHEE ARG RE FHTRM NE
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average EHEEHE o
number of Shares in issue during the year.
According to the ordinary resolution approved by the BERZE-—R"FLtAZT+"BRITZREBFAG LB
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of REHENEBRAER  RZT—<"FNA+=H ' &#
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant 1,232,000,0000% 51 A% 19 1R IR AT A% 35 17 JE AL 35 f2 B8 1T » AT PR 3%
to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The weighted average TRZZE—XR"ENA+TZBEKRE ' RAEHE=ZT—tF
number of Shares for the purposes of calculating basic A=+t BLFESRELRRT ZRM T EEHH
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 had been B ZE2,464,000,000R(BE=—T—A"F=A=1+—HILFE :
retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (for the year 2,446,338,7981%) ©
ended 31 March 2016: 2,446,338,798 Shares) after completion
of the bonus issue on 12 August 2016.
4. Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company 4. ARBHEABEERFEEEARNRARER ABLERERUF

represents equity attributable to the Company’s owners divided
by number of Shares in issue as at the end of the year.

REBTROHHKAE -
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
MI=ES

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
2EERM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 FHEE BEEE 9 HEREE AE
K K
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 12 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, 80,521 R: 1,815 R Expiring on 100%  Completed
Honggu Tan Central District, C: 3,541 16 September 2073
Nanchang City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
BEUAIE 24 TEIREREEMAIAR RiMZBL=E BRI
fORAAKE1568% AATABRER
C:R-ER=F
NATRBRER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West 719,548 C:8,074  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 1~ Low rise residential annexed Road, Nanchang Economic
with commercial and car parking spaces  and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
B EkdiEnAE - BELE hEIRERETHELE C:RZBHZf BRI
BRmx B RiTREEER R608%H RATINBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West 719,648 R: 543 R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 56%  Completed
Zone 2~ Part A=Town house Road, Nanchang Economic C:5449  C: Expiring on 18 May 2062
annexed with commercial and car and Technology Development
parking spaces Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEERI A - AR HEIEEBETRHELE R:RZBtI% BRI
-ERAIZERES B RiTREBER HR686% BATN\RER
C:R-ER-F
AATNBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ER ARE  ERHAT
k3 LE] FHEE BEER £ HEREE AE
(Frx) (Er#)
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINEE)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West C 719,648 C: 1,676 C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 3 - High rise residential annexed ~ Road, Nanchang Economic
with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEERIENAE - REfT TEIREREMRESEE C:RZBH=F BRI
EfER RITREBER HR686% BATNRER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 1 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 C:1,925  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
INERER -5 HEIRE RN T EAE C:R-ZnEF BAT
766%: —A=t-BER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 C:5511  C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BN R el = 5 HEIRE RN T EAE C:R-ZnEF BAT
766%: —A=t-BER
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R:67 R Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, G:617  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
A HEIEEEETRNE R:MZBttf BAT
BB AE290% ZAZTNBER
C:R-BMLE
ZAZThBER
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E SRy

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
sqm) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ B ARE  ERHAT
k3 £l EHER BEER £ EEREE AE
Y (T
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINEE)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R 719,548 R:2,115 R Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zone 2, Part B~ Town house Road, Nanchang Economic
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BE s enoaERS » TEIREREMESEE RIMZZLCE BRI
- BRAIZ RREEER IR EATNBER
8688%
Sino Harbour » Wu Lin Hui Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:8585  C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
i o A R AN T ERE T C:RZZARE BAT
BREERERD mABER
Sino Harbour ¢ Guan Lan Phasg 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R: 17,242 R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, ;2,331 G: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEBE-H HEIEEHETRME RMZBLE BAT
EBAE299% ZAZTARER
C:R-EMtE
ZAZThBER
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
REMIZ
Sino Harbour ¢ Guan Lan Phase 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R: 228,702  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  CY2023Q1
Yuanzhou District, (:89,594  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEBRE_H hEIREEETRME RiRZBttE “E-CEF
ERAE299% ZAZTARER 538
C:RZEMtE
ZAZThBER
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M=EE

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ B ARE  ERHAT
k3 LE] EHER BEER £ HEREE AE
K (K
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued)
GEGHES )
Fenghuang Yulongwan No. 988 Dongfeng North Road, R, C 64,322 R: 151,386 R: Expiring on 22 September 51%  Under planning
Leping City, Jiangxi Province, C:6,119 2090
the PRC C: Expiring on 22 September
2060
BEEE RETRELTH R:RZENEE stal
REJ 0083 AAZTZBER
C:RZEAEE
NAZt=HER
FUTURE PROJECTS
ARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R: 746,425  R:Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Under planning
Zone 4-13 Road, Nanchang Economic C: 156,472 C: Expiring on 18 May 2042
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BE s 138 TEIREREMESEE R:WZBL=F EE
RiREERER AR BATNRER
888% C:RZEm=%
AATNBER
Sino Harbour  Guan Lan Phase 3-4 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R,C:509,429  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun Cty, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEEF-ENE HEIREHETRME RMZBLE stEl
HRAB209% ZAZThRER
C:R-ZMLE
ZRAZTNBER
Sino Harbour  Run Yuan A-02, A-05 and A-07 Tongjia RC 138,034 R, C:431,667 R Expiring on 8 November 2090 51%  Under planning
| Mountain, Leping City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on 8 November 2060
. Province, the PRC
Bk ER HETRELTHER R:NZENEE stal
A-02 - A-OBRA-OTSH T-ANBER
C:RZEAEE
T-ANBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
MI=ES

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ B ARE  ERHAT
k3 LE] EHER BEER £ HEREE AE
Y (T
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
REREENR
Unit 105 on Level 1 of Block 1, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;4,836  C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Unit 101 on Level 1 and unit 201 on Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Level 2 of Block 2, Units 02 to 05, 07 Nanchang City,
and 08 on Level 1 of Block 6, Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Unit 103 on Level 1 of Block 1 of
Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center and
a 3-storey kindergarten of Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
HEAAdE—E-EI05 HEIRERETAAR NER C:RZEM=% BAT
ZE-E101R=B201 - hORAAKE1568% NATRBER
AE—E02205  07R08E
RN L—E-E103ER
~B=ER(HE
Various retall units on Levels 1-4 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;31839 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
and various office units on Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Levels 6-24 of Sino Harbour Nanchang City,
Kaixuan Center, Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
BEAAT RER TR0 14E hEIRERETAAR ER C:RIZM=F BRI
ATRERRROE b RAAKIE 15685 AATABER
ATEFEREN
Various retail units on Levels 1 and 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A C:4,025  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047 100%  Completed
of Blocks 1104, 6.and 7 of Yuanzhou District,
Yichun Royal Lake City Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BRIMHEIZ4 6RTE tEIREEETRNE 0 i C:RZEMtE B&I
F-R_ERTZEER EBAE299% ZAZThBEER
Various retail and office units of Hanzhiyun -~ Southwest junction of C 20,482 C: 44,819 C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Commercial Center Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road,
Gongshu District,
Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
EZBEERLETREERR R AN T ERE T C:RZZAMFRANAER BAT
BTREN RRBTEAAERD
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M=EE

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest ~ Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
B2EEAN RE/ B ARE  ERHAT
k3 L) FHEE BEEE 9 LERES BH
(Frx) (Er#)
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HAEELEEZNZ
Levels, 25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;1,232 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEMAIEE AR L0R6E  REIRLEETLAE NER C:RZEM=% BRI
fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R 166 R:Expiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Bulding of Minshi Garden Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
LB BIEBET 1500 TEIRERETREAR NER R: BB NERARR BRI
L3285
R: Residential R: FE
C:  Commercial and other C: BFERAM
CY:  Calendar year cy: JEBEFE

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on the — [#Z|EZE & /R [FEiIE T HE I DEREEER RIEF GG EZ

best estimate by the management. These figures may change as the [t ° ZZFE(/FAJGEFEIE B £ E M EE) -
projects progress.
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